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1.0 INTRODUCTION

ACC419 is a firstsemeter, three credit and 400 level core cour3dis course introduces
learnersto accounting and reporting concepts, analysis and interpretation as well as guide
preparation and presentation of accounts of group of companies.

2.0 COURSE AIMS

The aim ofthe course is to help the learner become reasonablini@lined about financial
accounting. It will also enable you to have the knowledge and skill of analyzing, presenting ar
reporting financial statements in different organizations.

3.0COURSE OBJECTIVES

The major objectives of this course, as designed, are to enable the students to know all the
relevant enactments and legislations in relation to financial accounting in Nigeria and all over 1
world. As well, students should be able to:

T

Explan Financial Statement and the underlying assumptions, elements, concey
principles and standards ;

State the legal and regulatory framework of group accounts, application of su
framework to preparation of consolidated financial statements;

Familiarize yourself with the disclosure requirements for banks and Insurance Companic
Make analysis based on the use of ratio analysis;

Explain the accounting treatment forudiness combination reconstructions and
reorganization;

Explain accounting treatment ifsolvency and Bankruptcy;

Understand concepts of valuation and various approaches to valuation of business
shares;

Familiarize yourself with conversion of a foreign branch trial balance to head office tri.
balance;

Prepare the accotmof specialized companies such as joint venture, purchasegoods

on sale or return, containers account, consignment accounts, investments and secur
bill of exchange and pension ;

4.0 STUDY UNITS

The study units in this course are as fokow

MODULE 1

STUDY UNITS



The study units in this course are as follows:

MODULE 1
Unit 1. Review of Company Accounts

Unit 2: Legal and Regulatofyramework of Group Accounts
Unit 3: Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Unit 4: Consolidated Income Statement

Unit 5: Associated Companies

Unit 6: Multiple Subsidiary and Vedal Structure

MODULE TWO

Unit 1: Ratio and Interpretation of Account

Unit 2: Business Combination (Takeover, Mergers and Acquisitions)

Unit 3: Reconstructions and Reorganization

Unit 4: Account for Banks (with special reference tievant legislation)

Unit 5: Account for Insurance Companies (with special reference to relevant legislation)
Unit 6: Insolvency and Bankruptcy

Unit 7: Valuation of business and shares

Unit 8: Accounting for Foreign Branches

MODULE THREE

Unit 1: Joint Venture Account
Unit 2: Hire Purchas@ccount
Unit 3: Goods on Sale or Return
Unit 4: Containerg\ccount

Unit 5: Consignmenfccount

Unit 6: Investment and Securities
Unit 7: kil of exchange

Unit 8: Pension Fund

5.0ASSIGNMENT

Each unit of the course has a setsessment exercise. You will be expected to attempt them as
this will enable you understand the content of the unit.

6.0 TUTOR-MARKED ASSIGNMENT (TMAS)
There is a Tutor Marked Assignment (TMA) at the end for every unit. You are required

attempt all the assignments. You will be assessed on all of them but the best three performe
will be used for assessment. The assignment carries 1686 ea



When you have completed each assignment, send it together with a (Tutor Marked Assignm
form, to your tutor. Make sure that teach assignment reaches your tutor on or before
deadline. If for any reason you cannot complete your work on tiomact your tutor before the
assignment is due to discuss the possibility of an extension. Extensions will not be granted ¢
the due date unless under exceptional circumstances.

7.0FINAL EXAMINATION AND GRADING
The end of course examination casrid®% of the total score for the course. You will be notified

of the time of the examination. You should prepare thoroughly for the examination by studyi
very hard. You should also submit yourself for the examination.

8.0 SUMMARY

The course ACCH9 examines the contents of Financial Accounting. The course is designed ¢
developed for your benefit as an accounting student.

We hope you enjoy your acquaintances with the National Open University of Nigeria (NOUN
We wish you success in this coairsSuccess in this course will help you attain your life goals.
Best wishes and regards.



MODULE ONE

Unit 1: Review of Company Accounts

Unit 2: Legal and Regulatory Framework of Group Accounts
Unit 3: Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Unit 4 Consolidated Income Statement

Unit 5: Associated Companies

Unit 6: Multiple Subsidiary and Vertical Structure

UNIT ONE: REVIEW OF COMPANY ACCOUNTS
CONTENTS

1.0 Introduction

2.0 Objectives
3.0 Main Contents
3.1 Elements of Financial statements
3.2 Comporents of Financial Statements
3.3 Qualitative characteristics of financial statements
3.4 Format of Statement of Financial position
3.5 Forma of Income statement
3.6 Statement of Changes in Equity
3.7 Notes to the Accounts
3.8 Presentation of Accounting Policies
3.9 Other notes
4.0 Conclusion
5.0 Summary
6.0 Tutor-Marked Assignments
7.0 References/Further Readings

1.0 Introduction
Topics covered in this unit include overview of components and elements of finantéhstas, characteristics,
formats, and preparation of finanai statements.

2.0 Objectives
After studying this unit, you should be able to:

State the elemerdand the components of financial statements.
Define and describe characteristig&financial statements
Describe the formantef financial statements.

Prepare financiatatements.

o

3.1 Elements of Financial statements

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) set out the conceptual framework for financial Reportin
private business enterprises amiblic sector business enterprises. The cqugal framework form the basis for
the preparation of General Purpose Financial Statenf&mFS)



Classification of elements of financial statements as stipulated in the conceptual framework.
The elements of financial statements consist of the following:

Assets
Liabilities
Equity
Revenue and
Expenses

I > >

Assets

These are future economic benefits controlled by an entity as a result of past transactions or
other past events. They are recognized in the Statement of Financial Position (SFP) when and
only when:

() It is likely that the outflow of future economic benefits related thereto would
arise and

(i) Thevalue of the assetsan be reliably measured

Liabilities

These are the present obligation to pay arising from past transactions (or other past eamsats)
are expected to result in outflow of future ecomic benefits. They are recogadin the SFP
when:

I It is likely that the outflow of future economic benefits related thereto would
arise and
ii.  The amount of the liability can be reliably measured
Equiy

This is the residual interest in the assets of the entity after deducting liabilities. It is about the
sum of share capital and reserves.

Revenue

Revenue is defined as the gross inflow of economic benefits (cash, receivables, other assets)
during thereport period arising from the ordinary operating activities of an entity when those
inflows result in increases in equity other than increases relating to contributions from equity
participants. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considenat@ived or receivable.

Revenue is recognized in the income statement when:

A It is probable that any future economic benefits associated with the
item of revenue will flow to the entity and
A The amount of revenue can be measured with reliability
Expense

These are consumption of future economic benefits in the form of reductions in assets or
increase in liabilities of the entity, other than those relating to distributions to owners that result
in a decrease in equity. Expenses are recognized in thenmstatement when:



(i) It is probable that the consumption or loss of future economic benefits has/or
would occur and

(i) The consumption or loss of future economic benefits can be reliably measured.

3.2 Components of Financial Statements

TheFrameworkis corcerned with'general purpose' financial statement§.e. a normal set of annual
statements), but it can be applied to other types of accounts. A complete set of financial statements includes:
(a) A statement of financial position
(b) A statement of comprehensiviacome
(c) A statement of chnges in Equity
(d) A statement of cash flows
(e) Notes, other statements and explanatory material
()  Statement of accounting policies
Supplementary information may be included, but some items are not included in the financial statements
themselves, namelyommentaries and reports by the directors, the chairman, management etc.

Note that before the adoption of International Reporting Standard in Nigeria, the standards that guided the
preparation of accourst were Statement of Accountingtandards (SAS) issued by the then Nigeria Accounting
Standard Board.dnplete set of financial statements prescribedSAS includes

(a) Balance sheet

(b)  Profit and loss account

(c) Caslhflow statement

(d) Notesto the accounts

(e) Statement of accounting policies

(d  Valueadded statement

(9) Directors Report

3.3Quialitative Characteristics of Financial Statements

In order for the financial statements to be useful to the stakeholders of a business they must embody certe
gualitative characteristics. They are defined as fedp

The fundamental qualitative characteristics:
Relevance financial information is regarded as relevant if it is capable of influencing the decisions of

usersinformation is relevant to users if it can be used to assist in evaluating past, preséritjrerevents or in
confirming, or correcting, past evaluations. In order to be relevant, information must be timely.

Faithful representationg this means that financial information must be complete, neutral and free from error.
For inbrmation to repregnt faithful transactions and other events,should be presented in accordance with the
substance of the transactions and other events, and not merely their legal form.



The enhancing qualitative characteristics:
Comparabilityg it should be possible tcompare an entity over time and with similar information about other

entities. Information in financial statements is comparable when users are able to identify similarities an
differences between that information and information in other reports.

An important implication of the characteristic of comparability is that users need to be informed of the policie:
employed in the preparation of financial statements, changes to those policies, and the effects of those chang
Because users wish to compare therformance of an entity over timdt is important that financial statements
show corresponding information for preceding periods.

Verifiability ¢ if information can be verified (e.g. through an audit) this provides assurance to the users that it
both credible and reliable.

Timeliness¢ information should be provided to users within a timescale suitable for their decision making
purposes.

Understandability ¢ information should be understandable to those that might want to review and use it. This
can be facilitated through appropate classification, characteadon and presentation of
information.nformation is understandable when users might reasonably be expected to comprehend i
meaning. For this purpose, users are assumed to have reasonablg knS RIS 2F GKS Sy Al
environments in which it operateand to be willing to study the information. Information about complex matters
should not be excluded from the financial statements merelytioe grounds of possibldifficulties for certain
users to understand.

Materiality -The relevance of information is affected by its nature and materiality. Information is material if it
omission or misstatement could influence the decisions of users or assessments made on the financ
statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the item or error, judged in the particular circumstance
of its omission or misstatement. Thus, materiality provides a threshold or aff point rather than being a
primary qualitative characteristithat information must have if it is to be useful

34 Format of the Statement of Financial Position is as follows:

The example given by IAS 1 (revised) is as follows.

20X7 20X6
Assets NOO0O NOOO
Non-current assets
Property, plant and egipment 350,700 360,020
Goodwill 80,800 91,200
Other intangible assets 227,470 227,470
Investments in associates 100,150 110,770
Availablefor-sale financial assets 142,500 156,000




Current assets

Inventoiies

Trade receivables

Other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity attributabé to owners of the parent
Share capital
Retained earnings
Other components of equity

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Longterm borrowings

Deferred tax

Longterm provisions
Total noncurrent liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Shortterm borrowings
Current portion of longerm borrowings

Current tax payable

Shortterm provisions
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

901,620

945,460

135,230
91,600
25,650

312,400

132,500
110,800

12,540
322,900

564,880

578,740

1,466,500

1,524,200

650,000
243,500
10,200

600,000
161,700
21,200

903,700
70,050

782,900
48,600

973,750

831,500

120,000
28,800
28,850

160,000
26,040
52,240

117,650

238,280

115,100
150,000
10,000
35,000
5,000

187,620
200,000
20,000
42,000
4,800

315,100

454,420

492,750

692,700

1,466,500

1,524,200

IAS 1 (revised) specifies various items which must appear dadkeof the statement of financial
position as a minimum disclosure.

(@)
(b)
(©
(d)
(€)
()

Property, plant and equipment
Investment propety

Intangible assets

Financial assets

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Biological assets (outside the scope of the syllabus)
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(9) Inventories

(h) Trade and other receivables

0] Cash and cash equivalents

0)] Assets classified as held for sale unkdid®S 5

k) Trade and other payables

) Provisions

(m) Financial liabilities

(n) Current tax liabilities and assets as in IAS 12

(o) Deferred tax liabilities and assets

(p) Liabilities included in disposal groups under IFRS 5
(@) Non-controlling interests Issued capital and eeges

Any other line items, headings or stditals should be shown on the face of the statement of financial
position when it is necessary for an understanding of the entity's financial position.

Whether additional items are presented separately depend judgments based on the assessment of
the following factors.

@ Nature and liquidity of assets and their materiality. Thgoedwill and assets arising
from development expenditure will be presented separately, as will monetary/non
monetary assets andicrent/non-current assets.

(b) Function within the entity. Operating and financial assets, inventories, receivables ar
cash and cash equivalents are therefore shown separately.

(c) Amounts, nature and timing of liabilities. Interdstaring and noanterest-bearing
liabilities and provisions will be shown separately, classified as current ecuroent as
appropriate.

The standard also requires separate presentation where different measurement bases are used fo
and liabilities which differ in naturer function. According to IAS 16, for example, it is permitted to ¢
certain items of property, plant and equipment at cost or at a revalued amount

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Statement of Financial Position is a Statement that shows Adsatslities and Net Asts / Equity of the
enterprise Both Assets and Liabilities are categorized as Curreniancurrent.

1. CURRENT ASSETS

Current Assets are assets that can either be converted to cash or used to pay current liabilities tittiin a s
period of time (3months). Typical current assets include:

i. Cash & Its Equivalent:

C Cash at BankMoney deposited in the bank, demand deposits and interest bearing bank accounts such :
time deposits or certificates of deposits held by the bank.

C CashiHand¢ KA & FOO2dzy i AyOf dRS& OdNNByOes O2Aiyas ¢
deposit with a bank. This account also includes petty cash.

ii. Account Receivables

11



C Amounts due from private persons, firms or corporations for goods and services furnished by the
enterprise It also includes revenue receivables and short term loans / advances to employees etc.

iii. Inventoriesinclude
C Materials and supplies on hand for future consumption

C Goods held for resale, rather than for use in operations. This includes land and building intended for sa
and not for use.

iv. Prepayments

These argpayments madewhich benefits are not yet taken by the
organization (payments made in advance)

v. Other Current Asset
Assets, nopreviously classified that become due within one year.
2. NONCURRENT ASSETS
Non-Current Assets are Assets that become due or can be converted to cash in over a year. These include:
(i) Property, Plant & Equipmefii) Investment Propertgiii) Intangible asets
(iv) Investments (Long Term)  [(@ng Term Loans Granted
i. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)

PPE are tangible assets that are held byahterprisefor use in the production or supply of goods or services,

for rental to others, or for adminiséitive purposes; and are expected to be used duringaentban one reporting
period. IAS 1@learly provides definition, Measurement and Recognition of PPE. The Standard prescribes the
principles for initial recognition and subsequent accounting (determimadif carrying amount and the

depreciation charges and impairment losses for property, plant and equipment so that users of financial
aldladSySyida OFry RAAOSNY AYyF2NNIGA2Y | 02dzi GKS t2fe@
the changesn such investment. An item of property, plant and equipment should be recognized as an asset
when:

C Itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the
entity

C The cost or fair valuef the asset tadhe enterprisecan be measured reliably.

I Oflda 2F LINRPBLISNIezx LXFyd FyR SldALYSYyd Aa | 3INP
operations. The following are examples of separate classes:

(a). Land (b). Operational buildings). Roads (d). Machinery
(e). Electricity Transmission Network (f). Ships (g). Aircraft

(h). Specialist military equipment (i). Motor vehicles ( j). Furniture and fixtures

12



(k). Office equipment (). Oil rigs

a.

Land:A fixed asset account, which refletk® acquisition cost of land owned by the Polytechnic. If land is
purchased, this account includes the purchase price and costs such as legal fees, filling and excavatior
costs and the likg which are incurred to put the land in condition for its intemdese. If land is acquired

by gift, the account reflects its appraised value at the time of acquisition.

Operational BuildingA fixed asset account, which reflects the acquisition cost of permanent structures
used to house persons and property owned bg ¢émterprise If buildings are purchased or constructed,
this account includes the purchase or contract price of all permanent buildings and fixtures attached to
and forming a permanent part of such buildings. If buildings are acquired by gift, the acebecis

their appraised value at the time of acquisition.

Infrastructure: The acquisition cost of permanent improvements, other than buildings which add value tc
the land. These improvements consist of capital expenditure such as roads, bridges, stdsstalks,

curbs theseassets are normally immovable and of value to ¢inéerprise Therefore, it is the

enterpriseQd 2 LJiA2Yy G6KSGOKSNJ adzOK aasSdia NBE NBO2NRSH

d. Equipment and FurnitureEquipment, Furniture, Fixtures andhetr tangible property of a non
consumable nature with a normal expected life of one year or more.

Property under Capital Leasegroperty acquired under a lease agreement that rrselhe requirements
of capitalistion.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment propety is land or buildings held (whether by the owner or under a finance lease) to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for:

Use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;

Sale in the ordinary cose of operations.

IAS 4@rescribeghe accounting treatment for investment property and related disclosures.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible Assets that have no physical existence and the value are limited by rights and anticipative
benefits that possessiotonfers upon the owner (patent, copyright, etc.)

INVESTMENGNON¢g CURRENT

Securities, including repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements held for the production of income
the form of interest and dividends.g.bonds. These accounts do not inclusktificates of deposits or
other interest bearing bank accounts.

gutters, drainage systems and outdoor lighting systems.

LONG TERM LOAN GRANTED

13



O 0O 0O O

Loans granted by thenterpriseto be repaid within a long period of time.
3. CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Lidilities are Liabilities in existence at the date of the (balance sheet) Statement of Financial
Position which is due for repayment with in shortest possible time. They include the following:

i. Deposits ii. Unremitted Deductions iii. Account PayableShert Term Loans.
v. Current Portion of Borrowings.

Deposits:A Liability incurred for deposits received. They also represent funds held by the Polytechnic or
behalf of third party or outsiders e.g. Retention Fees. They are treated as part of currdittd&bi
because owners can demand for payment at any point in time.

Unremitted DeductionsThese are deductions made from payment by the Polytechnic but not remitted
at the end of the reporting period. They include PAYE, WHT VAT, Union Dues, NHF, etc.

Accaunt PayablesAccount Payables include:

Liabilities due to private persons, firms or corporation for goods and services receiveddnteharise
but not including amounts due to other funds of the Polytechnic.

Judgments debts to be paid by tkaterprie as aresult of court decisions, including damages awarded
for private property taken for public use.

Annuities due and payable to retired employees in a pl¢ LI 2 eetBefhanOsystem.
Amounts due on contracts for assets, goods and services redeyvind Polytechnic.
Current portion of borrowings

In the enterprisefunds, the current portion would be used to record only that portion that was payable
with current, available resources; the lotgym portion would be recorded in the long term dedtcount

group.
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non CurrentLiabilitiesncludeLongTerm Debtsand borrowings

3.5 Forma of Income Statement

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Statement ofProfit or Loss isne of the Principabtatements includeth GPFS. The Statemeshows income
accrued to theenterprisefrom all sources and Expensesurred during the period AIS 1 prescribes minimum
requirements to be disclosed at the face of the Statement.

IAS 1 (revised) allows income and expense items to be presented either:

14



(@ ina single statement of comprehensive inco(f¢atement of Profit or Loss)r
(b) in two statements: a separate income statemé8tatement of Profit or Loss)d statement of other
comprehensive income.

XYZ GROUPSTATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INSOMEMENT OF PROFIT OR LBGSK®) THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20X7

20X7 20X6
NOnnn NOnny

Revenue 390,000 355,000
Cost of sales (245,000 (230,000
Gross profit 145,000 125,000
Other income 20,667 11,300
Distribution costs (9,000) (8,700
Administrative expenses (20,000) (21,000)
Other expenses (2,100) (1,200)
Finance costs (8,000) (7,500)
Share of profit of associates 35,100 30,100
Profit before tax 161,667 128,000
Income tax expense (40,417 (32,000
Profit for the year from continuing operations 121,250 96,000
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (30,500
Profit for the year 121,250 65,500
Other comprehensive income:
* Exchange differences on translating foreign operation 5,334 10,667
Availablefor-sale financial assets (24,000) 26,667
*Cash flow hedges (667) (4,000)
Gains on property revaluation 993 3,367
*Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit pension pla (667) 1,333
Share of other comprehensive mmoe of associates 400 (700)

Separatelncome Statement

In other national published accounting standaidir€fetred to as theProfit and Loss Accourithe standard
RAAUGAYAdzA aKSa GKS TFdzyOlAz2y 2F SELISYaS dDARRI (Fadzy O
Fdzy QUA2yQ F2NX¥IG Aa Ffaz2 NBFSNNBR (2 a (GKS O2ad
¢KS adFyRFENR aidl (dSa (ekn classificationdasddsl profatNabich most fairy prasenss the S
St SySyida 2F GKS SYyUuSNILINRASQa LISNF2NX¥YI yOSE

IAS offerswo possible formats for the income statement section or separate income statelmehitnction or by

nature. Classification by function is more common.

Formant of separate income statements
lllustrating the classification of expenses by function
XYZ GRORSTATEMENT GROFIT OR LOSSR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20X8

20X8 20X7

NOOO NOOO
Revenue X X
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Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Finance costs

Share of profit of associates
Profit before tax

Income tax expense
Profit forthe year
Attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

lllustrating the classificatin of expenses by nature

x) X
X X
X X
x) (X
x) X
x) X
x) X
X X
X X
x) X
X X
X X
X X

XYZ GROUFTATEMENT OF PROFIT OR EORSHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20X8

Revenue

Other operating income

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress
Work performed by the entity andapitalised
Raw material and consumalsleised
Employee benefits expense

Depreciation anémortisation expense
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of profit of associates

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributed to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Note The usual method of presentation is expenses by function
The following example illustrates these two differing formats.

Illustration 1

16
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NOOO NOOO

X X

X X

x) X

X X

X) X)

X) X)

X))  (X)

xX)  (X)

X))  (X)

X)X

X X

X X

xX)  (X)

X X
X X
X X
X X



The following is an extract of balances in the accounts of Sba#us and Fertilizers a limited company at 31
December 2010.

Nm
Cost of sales 7.2
Sales revenue 18.2
Distribution costs 2.6
Loan note interest 2.8
Admin expenses 4.2

An analysis of the costs other than interestNidm showed the following:

Alm
Raw materials and consumables 4.2
Increase in inventories finished goods and work
progress (0.4)
Depreciation 3.6
Staff costs 5.8
Other operating expenses 0.8
14m -

The provision for income tax expense had been agreed0adm. From thisnformation we can now produce
income statements in both formats.

Y. & CdzyOGA2yQ C2NXI
SouthFeeds andrertilizers Statement of Profit or Loger Year Ended 31 December 2010

Am Am
Revenue 18.2
Cost of sales 7.2
Gross profit 11.0
Distribution costs 2.6
Administration expenses 4.2

6.8

Profit from operations 4.2
Interest payable 2.8
Profit before tax 14
Income tax expense 0.4
Net profit for period 1.0
Y. & bl Gdz2NBQ C2NXI

Nm Nm
Revenue 18.2
Increase innventories of finished goods and work
progress 0.4

18.6

Raw materials and consumables 4.2
Staff costs 5.8

17



Depreciation 3.6

Other operating expenses 0.8
14.4
Profit from operations 4.2
Interest payable 2.8
Profit befae tax 14
Income tax expense 0.4
Net profit for period 1.0
3.6 Forma of Statement of Changes in Equity
Share Share Revaluation Retained Total
Capital Premium Reserve earnings
Am Am Am ANm Am
Balance 31 December 2009 * * * * *
Surplus on revaluation of * *
properties
Deficit on revaluation of ™* ™*
investments
Net gains and losses not
recognized in the income
statement * *
Net profit for period * *
Dividends * *)
Issle of Share Capital * * *
Balance at 31 December 201C * * * * *

Statement of changes in equity shows net assets for the NetrAsset/Equity simply refers to Assets less
Liabilities. Net Assets/Equity is financed by Reserves, Accumulatdassarptc. The Statement is important in
GPFS because it enables users to ascertain causes for movement in Net Worth of the enterprise. Vide the forn
GP5;

Changes in Net Assets /Equity are therefore normally caused by:
C Significant changes in AccourgiPolicies
C /2NNBOGAZ2Y 2F LINA2N 8SI NDa SNNENH
C Revaluation of the Assets
C Surplus or Deficit for the period
C Changes in Currency Translations etc.

3.7Statement of Cash flow

18



Statement of Cash flow is oné the Statements required by IAS&be presented irthe GPFS. The cash flow
statement identifies the sources of cash inflows and outflows: the items on which cash was expended during th
reporting period, and the cash balance at the end of the reporting date. Cash flows are basically reported unde
three (3 separate activities as follows:

C OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash flow from Operating Activities includes:
- Revenues or income from regular activities
- Payment to and on behalf of staff (personnel cost)
- Overheads
- Other charges etc.
C Investing Activities

Cash fbw from investing activitiesicludesacquisition and disposal of long term assets and other investments
not included in cash equivalent.

C Financial Activities
These are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed aagditaorrowings.
Method of Preparing Cash Flow

IAS 7Frecognizes two methods of preparing cash flow; that is Direct and Indirect Method. Under direct method,
major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments are disclosed while under intioel¢tete

surplus / deficit is adjusted for the effect of, for instance transactions ofcash nature like depreciation.
Enterpriseusing direct method should provide a reconciliation of the surplus / deficit with the net cash from
operating activitiesEnterprise are however recommended to use direct method.

3.8 Notes to the financial statements
Notes and other disclosures@PFS aradditional information presented in thHePFS tenable users understand

the financial statements better and comparteetn with those of other entities.

Notes include narrative description or more detailed schedules or analyses of amounts shown on the face of
statement of financial performance, statements of financial position, cash flow statement and statement
charges in net assets / equity, as well as additional information such as contingent liabilities and commitments.

T FORWARD
Contents of Notes

The notes to the financial statements will amplify the information given in the statement of financial position.
statement of comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity. We have already noted above tt
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information which the IAS allows to be shown by note rather than in the statements. To some extent, then, th
contents of the notes will be determined by thevel of detail shown on the face of the statements.

Structure
No Standard specifically provides format for preparation of notes and other disclosures to the financial stateme
but as a minimum requiremenptes to the financial statements should fem the following functions.

(a) Provide information about the basis on which the financial statements were prepared andwhich
specific accounting policies were chosen and applied to significant transactions/events

(b) Disclose any information, not shown eldssve in the financial statements, which is requiredby IFRSs

(c) Show any additional information that is relevant to understanding which is not shoglsewhere in
the financial statements he way the notes are presented is important. They should be given ina

systematic manner and cross referenced back to the related figure(s)ithe statement of financial
position, statement of comprehensive income or statement of cash  flows.

Notes to the financial statements will amplify the information shown thereigiling the following.
(a)More detailed analysis or breakdowns of figures in the statements

(b)Narrative information explaining figures in the statements
(c)Additional informationg.g.,contingent liabilities and commitments

IAS 1 suggests a certain order fotes to the financial statements. This will assist users when comparing the
statements of different entities.

(a) Statement of compliance with IFRSs
(b) Statement of the measurement basis (bases) and accounting policies applied
(c) Supporting information for itempresented in each financial statement in the same order as each line item
and each financial statement is presented
(d)(d) Other disclosure®.qg.:
(i) Contingent liabilities, commitments and other financial disclosures
(i) NorHinancial disclosures
Theorder of specific items may have to be varied occasionally, but a systematic structure is still required.

3.9 Presentation of accounting policies

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices adopted ly iEn enti
preparing and presenting financial statements. They are part of the financial statements.

Enterpriseshould select and apply accounting policies so that the financial statements comply with all tt
requirements of each applicable Internatiof@handal ReportingStandard.

The accounting policies section should describe the following.

(a) The measurement basis (or bases) used in preparing the financial statements

(b) The other accounting policies used, as required for a proper understanding of the firetatéanents
This information may be shown in the notes or sometimes as a separate component of the financial statements
The information on measurement bases used is obviously fundamental to an understanding of the financie
statements. Where more thaane basis is used, it should be stated to which assets or liabilities each basis has
been applied.
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3.100ther disclosures

An entity must disclose in the notes:
(@) The amount of dividends proposed or declared before the financial statements were authfmisssue
but not recognised as a distribution to owners during the period, and the amount per share
(b) The amount of any cumulative preference dividends not recognised
IAS 1 ends by listing some specific disclosures which will always be required if they sttewn elsewhere in
the financial statements.
(@) The domicile and legal form of the entity, its country of incorporation and the address of the registered
office (or, if different, principal place of business)
(b) A description of the nature of the entitytgperations and its principal activities
The name of the parent entity and the ultimate parent entity of the group

lllustration 2
The following balances remained in the books of Lagbaja Plc at December 31, 2014 after
determining the gross profit:

N nyJ
Sharecapital, authorised and issued:
200,000,000 ordinary sharesfi each 200,000
Cash at bank and in hand 500
Inventory at December 31, 2014 61,200
Trade receivables 18,005
Trade payables 15,009
Gross profit at December 31, 2014 128,942
Retained earnings 25,000
Salaries & Wages 28,430
Prepayments 600
Bad debts 500
Accrued expenses 526
5 A NB @dcaumIeridit) 2,500
Finance cost on loan note (Y2 year to June 30, 2014) 600
Sundry expenses 4,100
Rates & ingrance 1,520
6% Loan notes 20,000
Lighting & cooling 1,310
Postage, telephone and telegrams 800
Motor vehicle (cosdN25million) 15,000
Office fittings and equipment (co8¥65.5million) 42,350
Profit at January 1, 2014 22,300
Land and hildings at Cost 239,362

The following additional information is relevant:

0] Office fittings and equipment are to be depreciated at 15% of cost, and Motor vehicle at
20% of cost.

(i) Provisions are to be made for:
5ANBO02NE N6@IDIE
Audit Fees N2,500,000
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(i)  The amount of insurance includes a premiumN&00,000 paid in September 2014 to
cover the company against fire for the period September 1, 2014 to August 31, 2015.

(iv) A bill forN548,000 in respect of electricity consumed up to December2®14 has not
been posted to the ledger.

Required:
a. Prepare the Statement of profit or loss for the year ended December 31, 2014; and

b. TheStatement of financial position as at December 31, 2014.

a.
LAGBAJA PLC
Statement ofProfit or Loss for the year ended 31 December, 2014
N'000 N'000
Gross profit 128,942
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 28,430
Bad debts 500
Sundry expenses 4,100
Rates & Insurance (N1,52(8/12*N600) 1,120
Lighting & cooling (N1,310+N548) 1,858
Postage, telephone & telegrams 800
Directors fees 6,000
Audit fees 2,500
Depr. Of Office fitting & equip (15% $H5million) 9,825
Depr. Of motor vehicles (20% x N25million) 5,000
Total operating expenses (60,133)
Profit from operation 68,809
Finance cost (6% x N20,000,000) (1,200)
Profit befole taxation 67,609
Income tax expenses -
Profit for the year 67,609

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December, 2014

Ordinary  Retained Total
Shares Earnings
NOnnn NOnnNQnnn

Prdit as at January 1, 2014 200,000 22,300 222,300
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Retained earnings brought forward
Profit for the period
Balance as at December 31, 2014

LAGBAJA PLC

Statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2014

Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings
Motor vehicles

Fittings and equipment

Total NonCurrent Assets
CurrentAssets:

Inventory

Trade Receivables
Prepayment (600 + 400)
Cash at bank and in hand
Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
Equityand Liabilities:
Share capital 200,000,000 ordinary shares of N1 each

RetainedEarnings

Total Equity
Non-Current Liabilities:

6% Loan notes
Current Liabilities:

Accrued audit Fees

Trade Payables

Director's account (2500 + 6000)
Accrued expenses (548 + 526)

Accrued finance cost on loan notes
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25,000
E 67,609
200,000 114,909

N'000

61,200

18,005

1,000
500

2,500
15,009
8,500
1,074

600

25,000
67,609
314,909

N'000
239,362
10,000

32,525
281,887

200,000
114,909
314,909
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Workings:
1.All the figures in bracket in the solution above ar&f@ 1 n n
2 .Noncurrentassets Property, Plant and Equipment

Land & Motor Fittings &
building Vehicle | equipment
N nn N nn N nn
Cost b/f 239,362| 25,000 65,500
Depreciation:
Bal b/f - 10,000 23,150
Charge for the year 5,000 9,825
Bal c/f 15,000 32,975
Carrying amount 31/12/2014 239,362| 10,000 32,525

4.0Conclusion

IAS 1 suggests foats for the statement of financial position and statemeni
comprehensive income, but these are not rigid. Certain items are specified, ho
for disclosure on the face of the financial statements.

5.0 Summary
IAS 1 covers the form and contentfofancial statements. The main components ¢

1. Statement of financial position

2 Income Statement

3. Statement of changes in equity

4, Statement of cash flows

5. Notes to the financial statements
Each component must be identified clearly.

6.0Tutor mark asessment

HK Ltd has prepared its draft trial balance to 30 June 20X1, which is shown below.

Trial balance at 30 June 20X1

NOOO NO0OC
Freehold land 2,10c
Freehold buildings (co$#4,680) 4,12¢
Plant and machinery (cosi3,096) 1,85¢
Fixtures and fittings (co94864) 691
Goodwill 48C
Trade receivables 7,268
Trade payables 2,591
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Inventory 11,79¢

Bank balance 11,561

Development grant received 85

Profit on sale of freehold land 53¢

Sales 381,60(

Cost of sales 318,97¢

Administration expenses 9,00c

Distribution costs 35,10(

5ANBOG2NEQ SY2fdzyYSyia 562

Bad debts 157

' dZRAG2NEQ NBYdzy SN} A2y 112

Hire of plant and machinery 2,40(

Loan interest 60E

Dividends paid during the yegmreference 162

Dividendspaid during the yeag ordinary 42€

9% loan 7,20(

Share capitat preference shares (treated as equity) 3,60(

Share capitad ordinary shares 5,40(

Retained earnings 6,36
407,37¢ 407,37¢

The following information is available:

(@) The authorized share capital is 4,000,000 9% preference shard¢l afach and 18,000,000 ordinary
shares of 50k each.

(b) Provide for depreciation at the following rates:

0] Plant and machinery 20% on cost

(i) Fixtures and fittings 10% on cost

(iii) Buildings 2% on cbs

Charge all depreciation to cost of sales.

(© ProvideN5,348,000 for income tax.

(d) The loan was raised during the year and there is no outstanding interest accrued at thengear

(e) Government grants ol85,000 have been received in respect of plant puselthduring the year and are
shown in the trial balance. OF#th is to be taken into profit in the current year.

OF0O 5dzNAy3I GKS @SEFENIF FANB (G221 LI I O8200,000. Phgst los’eB

have already been writtenfbto cost of sales shown in the trial balance. Since the end of the financial year ;
settlementofNMp nZnnn KlFa 06SSy F3INBSR 6A0GK (GKS O2YLI yeéQa
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(g)N500,000 of the inventory is obsolete. This has a realizable valN25§f,000.
(h) Acquisitions of prperty, plant and equipment during the year were:

Plant N173,000 Fixtures N144,000
(i) During the yearfreehold land which cod720,000 was sold fdd1,316,000.

() A final ordinary dividend of 3k per share is declared and was an obligation before thengkdogether with
the balance of the preference dividend. Neither dividend was paid at thesmar

(k) The goodwill has not been impaired.
(D The land was revalued at the year end¥2:500,000.
Required:

(@t NBLI NB GKS O2YLJ yeQa iddnelobtheSgaiito 30 Bune2DX] lamik Kt&igihirit @
financial position as at that date, complying with the relevant accounting standards in so far as tr
information given permits. (All calculations to nears900.)

7.0 References/Further Readings
Adebayo, P.A.(2011). Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards for Students and Professionals, Abuja:
Rainbow Graphic Printers and Publishers
Hennie V. G. (2010mternational Financial Reporting Standards: A practical Gé@lled. International Bankor

Reconstruction and Development and the World Bank, Washington D C

LYGSNY Il GAaz2ylFf 1 002dzyiAy3 {dFyRINRa .2FNRZ LyGaSNy!
IFRSs, London

International Accounting Standards Board, International fFigeA I £ wSLI2 NI AY 3 { G YRl NJ
IFRSs, LondolAS 1Presentation of Financial Statements
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UNIT TWOLEGAL AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK OF GROUP ACCOUNTS

1.0 Introduction
2.0 objectives

3.0 Main Content

3.1 Lawand Accounting Standards that Regulates Operations of Group Account
3.2 Group Financial Statements

3.3 Parent/Holding Company and Subsidiaries

34 Methods of Preparing Consolidated Accounts

3.5 Exemption of Subsidiaries from Consolidation

3.6 Explanation of terms underrGup Account

4.0 Conclusion

5.0 Summary

6.0 Tutor-Marked Assignment
7.0 References/Further Readings

1.0 INTRODUCTION

A company may own a relatively large number of shares in another company; usually in excess of 50 per cer
0§KS 23{KSNJ B&eqlisy shareQcapital, ardeven all its shares of one company. Combinations based
the ownership of controlling shares by one company in another company, directly or indirectly, give rise to
group of companies. Though, the combinations of this natdoenot affect the existence of the combined
companies, as separate legal entities. However, this transfer of control from one group of owners to anoth
affects the economic substance of members of the group which requires special accounting treatment.

2.0 OBJECTIVES
At the end of this unit, you should be able to:

A Explain the theoretical background and regulatory documents for the preparation and presentatiol
consolidation of financial statements.
A Describe the conditions required for an enterprise ® #& subsidiary, an associate of a group or a
joint entity.
A Understand consolidation procedures and key terms.
A Understand some terms in group account
3.0 MAIN CONTENT

3.1 Law and accounting standards that regulate the operations Group Accounts
The reguléory documents for the preparing of group accounts are as follows:
(@) TheCompaniesand Allied Matters Act Cap.C20 LFN 2004, later called the Act;

(b) IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
(© IAS 28 Investment in Associates

(d) IAS 31 Interests idoint Ventures

(e) IFRS 3 Business Combinations

()] IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements.

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresse
accounting for consolidated financial statements.
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(9) IFRS 11 Jdilrrangements, IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures-a8d SIC Jointly

controlled Entities Non-monetary  Contributions by Venturers.

(h) SIG12 Consolidatiom Special Purpose Entities

(1) IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in other Entities.
IFRS 2 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financi
statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28 Investn
in Associates.

3.2  Group Financial Statements

A goup is defined as a parent company and its subsidiaries, group financial statements are the financ
statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries combined to form a set of consolidated financi
statements.

Consolidated financial statements atbBe financial statements of a group presented as those of a single
SYGSNILINA&ES® LYy FOO2NRIYyOS gAlK GKS !0l GKS 3INR
follows:

@) Consolidated statement of financial position dealing with the stataffairs of the company and all the
subsidiaries of the company;

(b) Consolidated income statement/ comprehensive income statement of the company and its subsidiarie
and

(© Consolidated statement of cash flows of the company and its subsidiaries.

(d) Consolicited statement of changes in equity of the company and its subsidiaries.

(e) Notes to the consolidated statement of financial position.

3.3 Parent/Holding Company and Subsidiaries

A holding company is one that has one or more subsidiaries. A subsidiaryergeaprise that is controlled by
another enterprise known as the parent.

Under Section 338 of the Act, a company (say company A) shall be deemed to be the subsidiary of anot
company (say company B) if:

@) the company (company B) is a member of it andtoas the composition of its board of directors; or

(b) holds more than half the nominal value of its equity share capital; or

(© the first mentioned company (company A) is a subsidiary of any company which is a subsidiary
company B.

For the purpose of th Act, the composition of the board of directors of a company shall be deemed to be
controlled by another company if that other company has the power to remove all or a majority of the director
without the consent or concurrence of another party.

IFRS1Ga il of AaKSa | aAy3atsS O2yiNRf Y2 RSt OKFG FLILI
Wa i NHzO G dzeBHD I SWAT WEASS BAY I SNBald SYiAdGASaQd ¢KS OKI y3¢
exercise significanjudgment to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore are required to be
consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in IAS 27. Therefore, IFRS 10 may cha
which entities are within a group. These changes were made by the IAB&t,inn response to the financial
crisis, when there was heavy criticism of accounting rules that permitted certain entities to remdialafce
sheet.

Generallycontrol is also presumed to exist when the parent has:

1. Power over more than half the tiag right by virtue of agreement with other investors.
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n

Power to govern the financial and operating patcof the enterprise under a statute or agreement.

Power to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors.

4. Power to casttie majority of votes at a meeting of board of directors or equivalent governing body and
control of the entity is by that board or body.

w

lllustration 1
Green Co owns the following investments in other companies:
Equity shares held Non-equity shares hel
Violet Co 80% Nil
Amber Co 25% 80%
Black Co 45% 25%

Green Co also has appointed five of the seven directors of Black Co.
Which of the following investments are accounted for as subsidiaries in the consolidated accounts of Green
Co Group?

AViolet mly

B Amber only
CViolet and Black
D All of them

Answer

[ SGQa O2yaARSNI SIFEOK 2F (KS Ay @Sandhedfgré, dthey should tieNy” | 2
accounted for as a subsidiary.

Violet Cog by looking at the equity shares, Green Cs haore than 50% of the voting sharege. an 80% equity
holding. This gives them control and, therefore, Violet Co is a subsidiary.

Amber Cag you must remember to look at the equity shares, as despite having the majority of thequity
shares, these&o not give voting power. As Green Co only has 25% of the equity shares, they do not have contr
and, therefore, Amber Co is not a subsidiary.

Black Ca; by looking at the percentage of equity shares, you may incorrectly conclude that Black Co is not
subsidiary, as Green Co has less than half of the voting rights. However, by looking at the fact that Green Co
appointed five of the seven directors, effectively they have control over the decision making in the company
This control should make yowmrclude that Black Co is a subsidiary.

Therefore the correct answer is C.

3.4 Methods of preparing consolidated accounts

Before IFRS 3, there were two main methods of preparing consolidated statements, the purchase method and
pooling of interests rathod. The former method was the more common and was used in all cases where on

company was seen as acquiring another. IFRS 3 now allows only the purchase method.

The purchase method has the following features:

@ Assets and liabilities of the subsidiar@e® measured at fair market value at the date of acquisition;
(i) Shares purchased and issued in settlement of the purchase are valued by the parent company at f
value.

(iii) The profits of the subsidiary are divided into grequisition and posacquisition peiods. Only the post
acquisition profits are consolidated.
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(iv)

3.5

(@)

(b)

Goodwill arises on consolidation when the fair value of the consideration is different from the fair valu
of the net asset acquired.

Requirements of IFRS 3 in relation to Acquisition Method

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

All business combinations must be accounted for using acquisition method.
Identify the acquire; one of the combining entities must be identified as the acquirer.

Determine the acquisition datethis is generally the date on which tlaequirer obtains
control of thetcquiree€and this would usually be the closing date or sometimes a date e:
or later than the closing date.

Determine the acquisition datethis is generally the date on which the acquirer obtains
control of the Hcquire€and this would usually be the closing date or sometimes a date e
or later than the closing date.

(v) Recognise and measure the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assum
fair value on the acquisition date.

(Vi)NQin andlcquiredd K2 dzf R 6S YSI adzZNBR i FIF AN G €
the W Olj dzXideRtiabléinet assets at acquisition.

(vii)Recognise and measure goodwill or gain from a bargain purchase and test goodwill |
impairment perodically.

Exemption of Subsidiaries from Consolidation
Under theCompanies and Allied Mattefsct CAP C20 LFR 2004)

Under Section 336(2) of the Act, group accounts need not be prepared where the parent company its
is at the end of its financiglear, a wholly owned subsidiary of another company incorporated in Nigeria.
However, w here the ultimate parent company is incorporated overseas; the group accounts should |
prepared.

Under Section 336(3) of the Act, a subsidiary may be omitted fronyringp accounts if:

(i)
(i)
(iif)

(iv)

it is impracticable or would be of no real value to members because of the insignificant amoun
involved;

it would involve expenses or delay out of proportion to its value to members of the company;
the result would be misleading dnarmful to the business of the company or any of its
subsidiaries. For instance, it may be harmful to consolidate the result of a subsidiary witl
operating losses, poor liquidity position and massive borrowing; or

the business of the parent company artht of the subsidiary are so different that they cannot
reasonably be treated as a single undertaking.

Under IFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements, a parent entity is allowed not to present or prepare consolidated financial
statements if certain condons prevail.

(i) it is a whollyowned subsidiary or is a partialbyvned subsidiary of another entity and
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3.6

(a)

all its other owners, including those not otherwise entitled to vote, have been informed about, and
do not object to, the parent not presenting casiglated financial statements;

(i) its debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market (a domestic or foreign stock exchange
an overthe-counter market, including local and regional markets);

(i) it did not file, nor is it in the process of fig, its financial statements with a securities commission or
other regulatory organization for the purpose of issuing any class of instruments in a public marke
and its ultimate or any intermediate parent produces consolidated financial statementsathat
available for public use and comply with IFRSs.

Explanation of Concepts under Group Accounts

Equity share capital

This comprises any equity share capital which carries the right to participate beyond a specified amount in eitl
a capital or reenue distribution. Therefore, it includes all share capital other than-pamicipating preference
shares.

In the absence of information to the contrary, ordinary shares are summed to be equity while preference share:
are not.

(b)

Equity method of accountig
This is a method of accounting where the investment in a company is shown in the consolidate
statement of financial position at:

(1) the cost of the investment; plus

(i) 0KS Ay@Sailday3da O2YLI ye -aggMditignN@&aizedpeofitsiard! réeles o T
the company; less

(iii) any amount written off in respect of (i) and (ii) above. The investing company should accour
separately in the profit and loss account for its share of the profit before tax, taxation and
extraordinary items of the acquired cgrany.

This method is usually applied to associated companies.

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

Related company
The Act defines a related company as anybody corporate (other than that which is a group company
relation to that company) in which that company holds on a {evgn basis a qualifying capital interest

F2N) GKS LJzN112aS 2F &aSOdaNAy3a | O2yiNRodziA2yYy
influence arising from that interest.

Associated companies

This is an enterprise in which the investor has signifigghténce and which is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint venture of the investor.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of th
investee but does not have control over those policies. A holdind gfe2cent but less than 50% of the
equity voting rights is regarded as the ability to exercise significant influence (though not in a
circumstances).

Fellow subsidiaries

A body corporate is treated as a fellow subsidiary of another body corporatethfdre subsidiaries of
GKS alyYS O2YLIlyes odzi ySAGKSNI Aa (KS 2GKSNIDa
Cost of control account

3

It is described as an account opened to record the purchase of a business so as to determine whether
bua AySaa Aa o0SApoltorlJdINIDKI{RSR O Ly 20 KSNJ g2NRaz Al
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the Cost of Control Account is regarded as a loss on purchase because the cost of shares acquired is greater
the net assets acquired while a Credit balance on the Cost of Cadstmagarded as a gain (i.e. Negative
Goodwill). In the cost of control account, the cost of investment is cancelled against the net assets are acquire
determine goodwiill.

(¢)]

(i)

(ii)
(h)

()

Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill is the difference between the price paid the parent company and the fair value of the
adzo aARAFNEQa ySG FaaSda Fd GKS RFEGS 27F | Oljdzi a
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiaries.

IFRS 3 business combinationsates the positive purchased goodwill must be capitalised upon
consolidation and reviewed for impaired at least annually under IAS 36 impairment of assets. T
impairment goes through the consolidated income statement. Negative goodwill is investigateid and
taken to the consolidated income statement immediately as a credit. Negative goodwill is also known
Gol NHI Ay LIzZNOKI &S

The new revised IFRS 3 method of calculating goodwill now gives the parent company a choice betwee
2 methods of calculating goodiivand dealing with NCI:

b/ LQa &KL NB-thisTs th¢ 8ld methada(@sd &nown as the partial goodwill). Hére
goodwill is calculated in the traditional way. The NCI are basically ignored in the goodwill calculatior
YR 2dzail (fr&sHanNBy i Qa akKl

FairvaluecG KAa4 Aa GKS ySg YSGK2R ol ftaz (yz2eéy Fa fF
goodwill is established and shown in the consolidated financial statements.
Fair value of net assets

The fair value of an asset and abiiity is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged
2N I fAlFLOoAfAGe &aSGiftSR 0Si6SSy 1y2¢fSR3ISIOGE S
evidence of the fair values of acquired assets and liabilities becomes avaiftdlehe acquisition, the
consolidated financial statements should be adjusted to reflect this development.

Non-controlling interest (Formerly called Minority interest)

When the parent company owns less than 100% equity shares in the subsidiaid%aghe remaining
30% is attributable to the noeoontrolling interest (NCI). Ne®@2 Y i NR f f Ay3 Ay (iSNBa
adz0 AARAFNE y20 FAGGNROdzilI6f ST RANBOGEE 2NJ AYRAN

Pre-acquisition and post@acquisition profits

The profits ofa subsidiary company are distinguished between-grgquisition and posacquisition for

the purpose of preparing consolidated accounts.

Pre-acquisition reserves are the accumulated reserves earned by the subsidiary prior to its acquisition
the parent ompany. They are credited to cost of control account as part of the process required to arriv
at goodwill arising on consolidation.

Postacquisition reserves are the accumulated retained profits since the date of acquisition. Th

proportion of these reseves earned by the parent company is credited to the consolidated accounts. T
the extent that postacquisition profits earned by the subsidiary are transferred to the parent company
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by w ay of dividends, the amount to be aggregated when consolidatiors takece will be reduced
correspondingly.

)] Other reserves of a subsidiary

Other reserves of a subsidiary may include share premium account, revaluation surplus on fixed ass
and other reserves. The principle of dividing them betweenairguisition andostacquisition reserves

will apply.

4.0 CONCLUSION
Knowledge of the theoretical background for consolidation of financial statements and the regulatory documern
is very necessary for the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial stattemen

50 SUMMARY

This unit explained the legal and regulatory framework in the presentation of group accounts with particul:
reference to the detailed provisions of CAMA 2004 and IFRS.

In the next unit, we shall discuss consolidated statement of finhposition.

6.0 TUTORVMARKED ASSIGNMENT
Discuss the reasons for exempting a subsidiary from consolidation procedure.

7.0 REFERENCES/FURTHER READINGS
Adebayo, P.A.(2011). Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards for Students and

Professionals, Alpa: Rainbow Graphic Printers and Publishers

Bello, S. @& Barnabas, S. A2017)Advanced Financial Accounting, Bida, 9ICE LINK Production

Federal Government of Nigeria (2004) Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFR 2004

Hennie V. G. (2010ntemational Financial Reporting Standards: A practical Gi&ed. International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development and the World Bank, Washington D C

LYGSNYIGA2Y L § I O2dzyiAy3a {iGlF yRFNRa . 2 NRX , Stafda®INy |
IFRSs, London

LYGSNYFGA2YEE 1 002dzydAy3d {GFyRFNRE .2FNRZ LydSNyF
IFRSs, LondolERS 3, IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

The main objective of consolidated statements of financial positidnZs LIN2 A RS Ay F2 NN I G A
financial position to the equity shareholders of the parent company. The consolidated statement of financia
position is prepared by aggregating on a imeline basis all the assets and liabilities of the parerhpany

with those of its subsidiary. The result is a statement of financial position containing the assets and liabilities
GKS g2 SydAaAdASa a AT GKS& gSNBE 26ySR 08 | WaAy:

2.0 OBJECTIVES
At the end of this unit, you should be alite

Apply the basic principles and procedures involved in consolidation.
Calculate goodwill, unreaéid profit, fixed assets;

Account for intercompany items.

Determine goodwill, preacquisition, profit and NCI

> > >

3.0 MAIN CONTENT

3.1 Consolidation Procedures

The process of consolidating financial statements can be broken down into the following steps:

A Step 1 Determine group structure

Step 2 Layout the priorma

Step 3 Consider the adjustments

Step4i KS OF NNEAY3I FY2dzyd 27F GKS |#&sdt§ sRarey d theOnet\asdskts/ob ¢
the subsidiary are eliminated;

Step 5 balances and transactions between the holding and subsidiary are eliminated in full
Step 6 Calculate goodwill

Step 7 Calculate necontrolling interest (NCI) for subsidiary

Step 8 Combine the financial statements

> > >

> > >

34



3.2 Group structure
The simplest are those in which a parent company has odiseat interestin the shares of its subsidiary

companies. For example:

1000 80 730 90

S S S S

S Co is a wholly owned subsidiasf/P Co. 8Co, $Co and $Co are partly owned subsidiaries; a proportion of
the shares in these companies is held by outside investors.

Often a parent will have indirect holdings in its subsidiary companies. This can lead to more complex gro
structures.

SS
P Co owns 51% of the equity shares in S Co, which is therefore its subsidiary. S Co in itsstbdvowfithe
equity shares in SS Co. SS Co is therefore a subsidiary of S Co and consequently a subsidiary of P Co. SS Co
describe S Co as its parent (or holding) company and P Co as its ultimate parent company.

3.3 Cancellation and part cancellatio

The preparation of a consolidated statement of financial position, in a very simple form, consists of two
procedures.

(i) Take the individual accounts of the parent company and each subsidiary and cancel out items which appeal
an asset in one comparand a liability in another.

(i) Add together all the uncancelled assets and liabilities throughout the group.
Items requiring cancellation may include the following.

(a) The asset 'shares in subsidiary companies' which appears in the parent compamystsagill be
matched with the liability 'share capital' in the subsidiaries' accounts.

There may be intrgroup trading within the group; as receivable in account of one company and payable ir
the accounts of another company, but not at the same amouftsis is applicable to dividend (dividend
receivable andlividend payable), interest (interest receivable and interest payable), trade (trade payable
and trade receivablejgnd bill(bill receivable and bills payable)

(b) The parent company may have acquirgthres in the subsidiary at a price greater or less than their par
value. The asset will appear in the parent company's accounts at cost, while the liability will appear in tt
subsidiary's accounts at par value. This raises the issue of goodwill, whielaliswith later in this
chapter.
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(c) Even if the parent company acquired shares at par value, it may not have acquired all the shares of t
subsidiary (so the subsidiary may be only partly owned). This raises the issueatfmimiling interests,

(d) The inter-company trading balances may be out of step because of goods or cash in transit.
(e) One company may have issued loan stock of which a proportion only is taken up by the other company

Pre andpost-acquisitionprofits

When a subsidiary is acquired,wfll already have accumulated profits, these are known asaguisition
profits. These profits are not part of the group, and therefore are not shown in the consolidated reserves. £
the profits earned after the subsidiary was acquired will belonthéogroup, but only to the extent ahe share
ownership. These are known as post acquisition retained reserves (PARR).

Therefore the preacquisition profits are included in the goodwill calculation, and the shapostacquisition
profits isshown inthe consolidated reservesPostacquisitionprofits are easily established as profits at the
balance sheet less profits at date of acquisition.

Pre-acquisition reservesre all reservesvhether capital or revenue in nature, existing on the date of &itjan

of the interest of the parent company in the subsidiary company. If a subsidiary has already been trading befor
is acquired by a parent company, it will already have reserves (share premium account, capital redempti
reserve, revaluation resee, income statement etc) in its statement of financial position. The reserves which are
built up before the date of acquisition are known collectively as poguisition profits.

Postacquisition reservesn the other hand, refer tall reserveghat are generated after the acquisition date.
These are not capital investment (in fact, they represent a return on the investment in subsidiary).In this conte
post-acquisition profits include any increase in reserves owned by the share after the date dfid@auiThis
includesy 20 2dzad LINRPFAGA Ay (GKS adzwaAiARAFNARSAQ AyO2YS
NEGI fdz2 GA2Y NBASNIBS 060X PSO revaledld ¢ KIS dzaaNR RIALIGNERUREEN TNE
profits shouldbeh y Of dZRSR Ay GKS 3INRdzZLIQa NBaSNWSa Ay GKS 02

Non Controlling Interest

The Nonrcontrolling interest in a subsidiary consists of shareholders who are not part of the parent company ar
they are totally unaffected bgny distinction between preand post acquisition profits. In other words, the Non
O2yNREfAY3 AYGSNBad oAy || adzwaARAFNEQA 2NRAYI NE
GKS FLILINBLINRFGS LISNOSyid 3S 2F GKS &adzwoaAiARAFNEBRQA yS

Goodwill

When a premium is paid above the fair value of the net assets acquired over a subsidiary, it results in goodw
IFRS 3 business combinations states the positive purchased goodwill must be capitalised upon consolidation
reviewed for inpaired at least annually under IAS 36 impairment of assets. The impairment goes through th
consolidated income statement.

Negative goodwill is investigated and is taken to the consolidated income statement immediately as a crec
Negative goodwillis t 42 {1y 2¢y | a aol NBFAY LIJz2NOKFasSé o

The new revised IFRS 3 method of calculating goodwill now gives the parent company a choice betwee
methods of calculating goodwill and dealing with NCI:
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() b/ LQ& &KL NBthigiFtheol inethod (als® éndwas thepartial goodwill). Here the goodwill
is calculated in the traditional way. The NCI are basically ignored in the goodwill calculation and just tt
LI NByiQa akKINB Ad aKz2gyo

(i) Fair valueg this is the new method (also known as thel goodwill). R 1 K G KS LI NBy iQ
goodwill is established and shown in the consolidated financial statements.

lllustration 1
Extracts from the Statement of Financial Position of Holiva Plc and Long Gear Plc as at 31/12/2010
are as follows:

Holiva Plc  Long Gear Plc
NOQnnn NQnnn

Share Capital
Ordinary share al1.00 eachL80,000 60,000
Accumulated Reserves48,00024,000

228,00084,000
The entire share capital of Long Gear Plc was acquired when the accumulated reserMd8 waklion. Casof
acquisition wagN88 million.

Required: Calculate the goodwill

SOLUTION
Net Assets NQnnn
Ordinary Share Capital 50,000
Pre-Acquisition Reserves 18,000
68,000
Cost 88,000
Goodwill 20,000
lllustration 2

On 1 Janary 20X0 Rose plc acquired 100% of the 10MD@ommon shares in Tulip plc f&id.50 per share in
cash and gained control. The fair value of the net assets of Tulip plc at that date was the same as the book val
The statements of financial position e date of acquisition were as follows:

Rose plc Tulip plc
N N

ASSETS
Noncurrent assets 20,00( 11,00(
Investment in Tulip 15,00( T
Net current assets 8,0C 3,00(
Net assets 43,00( 14,00(
Share capal 16,00( 10,00(¢
Retained earnings 27,00( 4,00(

43,0000 14,00(

Required: Prepare the group accounts immediately after the acquisition.
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SOLUTION

Rose plc  Tulip plc Group
N N N
ASSETS
Non-current assets 20,00( 11,00(¢ 31,00(
Goodwill T T 1,00
Investment in Tulip 15,00( T T
Net current assets 8,000 3,00( 11,000
Net assets 43,00( 14,00( 43,00(
Share capital 16,00( 10,00(¢ 16,00(
Retained earnings 27,00( 4,00 27,00(
43,00( 14,00( 43,00(
Note 1
Net Assets Acquired 14,000
Cost of Acquisition (10,000x1.50) 15,000
Goodwill 1,000
Note 2 N
Non-current assets other than goodwill (20,000 + 11,000) 31,000
Goodwill (as calculated in Note 1) 1,000
Net current assets (8,000 + 3,000) 11,000

43,000

Note 3. Calculate the consolidated share capital and reserves for the gr

accounts:
N
Share capital (The parent company only) 16,000
Retained earnings (The parent compay only) 27,000
43,000
Note that:

In Note 1 the investment in the subsidiadp Znnnv KFa o6SSy aSd 2FF | 3L A
GKS &dzmaAiARAINEQA & RKANB0) add thdsdl darficelldd yntompaByabalakkzes do not,
therefore, appear in the consolidated accounts.

In Note 2 the total of the net assets in the group account is the same as the net assets in the individt
a0l aSYSyld 2F FAYIYOALT LIaAldAzy odzi GKS ¢ Ogfthe hat LI
assets of Tulip plc &14,000plusthe previously unrecorde#il,000 goodwiill.

In Note 3 the consolidated statement of financial position only includes the share capital and retained earnin
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calculation of goodwill.

3.4 Consolidation Schedule
The adjustments are often set out in a schedule format as follows:

Rose plc Tulip plc Adjustments Grouf
N N N
ASSETS
Noncurrent assets 20,000 11,000 31,00(¢
Goodwill T T 1,000 1,00C
Investment in Tulip 15,000 T (10,000) T
(4,000)
(1,000)
Net current assets 8,000 3,000 11,00(
Net assets 43,000 14,000 43,00(
Share capital 6,000 10,000 (10,000) 16,00(
Retained emings 27,000 4,000 (4,000) 27,00(
43,000 14,000 43,00(

Supported by the same notes (Notes3) shown above.

Note

i. Only the assets and liabilities of each entity are aggregated.
The share capital and retained earnings are not aggregated. Thecdtal and retained earnings of the
subsidiary do not appear on the consolidated statement of financial position.

3.5Non-controllinginterests

It was mentioned earlier that the total assets and liabilities of subsidiary companies are included in tt
consolidated statement of financial position, even in the case of subsidiaries which are only partly owned.
proportion of the net assets of such subsidiarigs factbelongs to investors from outside the groupof-
controllinginterests.

IFRS 3 alles two alternative ways of calculating neontrolling interest in the group statement of financial
position. Noncontrolling interest can be valued at:

(@) Its proportionate share of the fair value of the subsidiary's net assets; or
(o)  Full (or fair) value (umlly based on the market value of the shares held by thegmwnirolling interest).

The exam question will tell you which method to use. If you are required to use the 'full (or fair) value' metho
then you will be given the share price, told what tteerfvalue of the norcontrolling interest is or given the
goodwill attributable to the norcontrolling interest.

Illustration 3
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Abba Plc. acquired 75% of the shares in Bello PI&G8)000 on 1 January 2011 when, Bello Plc.
had retained earnings @15,000.

The market price of Bello f Glau@sibefore the date of acquisition wss.60.
Abba Plc. values necontrolling interest at fair value. Goodwill is not impaired.

The statement of financial position of Bello Plc. at 31 December 2011 isaagsfol

NOnnn
Property, Plant & Equipment 50
Current Assets 35
85
Ordinary share capital @i1.00 each 50
Retained earnings 25
Current liabilities 10
85
Calculate the amount of neoontrolling interest.
SOLUTION
Non-controlling Interes{NCI) fair value 25%
(50,000 shares#1.60) 20,000
25% &25,000¢ N15,000) 2,500
22,500
lllustration 4

P Co has owned 75% of the share capital of S Co since the date of S Co's incorporatic
latest statement of financial position are given below.
P CO STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSI

N N

Assets
Non-current assets
Propety, plant and equipment 50,000
30,000M1 ordinary shares i6 Cat cost 30,000

80,000
Current assets 45,000
Total assets 125,000
Equity and liabilities
Equity
80,000M1 ordinary shares 80,000
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Retained earnings 25,000

Current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

S CGTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITI

N

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current assets
Total assets

N
Equity and liabilities
Equity
40,000N1 ordinary shares 40,000
Retained earnings 10,000

50,000

Current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

RequiredPrepare the consolidated statement of financial position.

Solution

105000
20,000
125,000

35,000
35,000
70,000

All of S Co'siet assets are consolidated despite the fact that the company is only 75% owned. The amount of ne

assets attributable to nowontrolling interests is calculated as follows.

Non-controlling share of share capital (25940,000) 10,000 Norcontrolling share of retained

earnings (25% N10,000)_2,500 12,500

Of S Co's share capital®40,000,M10,000 is included in the figure for n@ontrolling interest, whiléN30,000 is

cancelled with P Co's asset 'investmengia’
The consolidated statememif financial position can now be prepared.

P GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
N N

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 85,000
Current assets

80,000
Total assets 165,000
Equity and liabilities
Equity attributable tcowners of the parent
Share capital 80,000
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Retained earningsl(25,000 + (75%MN10,000))

Non-controlling interest

Current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

lllustration 5. Preand PostAcquisition Profits
The statement of financial position of Peter Itd. and Paul Itd as at 31dec 2015 were as follows:

Peter Itd Silas Itd
NOnnn NOnnn
Non Current Assets 40,000 32,000
Investment at cost 76,000 -
Current assets 60,000 48,000
176,000 80,000
Share capital
Ordinary shares d¥l1.00 per share 120,000 40,000
Accumulated reserves 32,000 16,000
152,000 56,000
Current liability 24,000 24,000
176,000 80,000

The entire share capital of Paul Itd was acquindekn the accumulated reserves wids2million.

You are required to show the consolidated reserve of the grolglddec2015.

Solution
Consolidated schedule

Equity of Paul Itd. Total Pre-acquisition Postacquisition
100%
NQAnnn NOQnnn NQnnn
Ordinary share 40,000 40,000
Capital
Accumulated 16,000 12,000
Reserves 1,000
56,000 52,000
Cost of investment (76,000)
Goodwill 24,000
Accumulated
reserves of peter 32,000
Consolidated 36,000
Reserves
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3.6 Preference Share

Preference shares ar®n-equity shares. The parent company may own all or part of the total preference shares
issued by the subsidiary. There may be goodwill associated with the preference shares, which is just the
difference between the value of thgreference shares and the price paid.

If the preference shares are not 100% owned by the parent company, there will be NCI. The preference share
owned by the parent company will be cancelled upon consolidation, and the remaining preference shdres will
shown under NCI ason-equity NCI.

It is important to note that the ownership in preference shares does not determine the group structure; this is
only with ordinary equity shares (which give voting rights). Preference shares do not give

3.6 Formsof consideration

The consideration paid by the parent for the shares in the subsidiary can take different forms and this will affec
the calculation of goodwill. Examples of various forms are given below:

Contingent consideration
IFRS 3 requires the@disition-date fair valueof contingent consideration to be recognised as part of the
consideration for thédcquireeQ

The acquirer may be required to pay contingent consideration in the form of equity or of a debt instrument or
cash. A debt instrumenth®uld be presented as under IAS 32. Contingent consideration can also be an asset, if
the consideration has already been transferred and the acquirer has the right to return of some of it, if certain
considerations are met.

Note: The previous version diRS 3 only required contingent consideration to be recognised if it was probable
that it would become payable. IFRS 3 revised dispenses with this requirenadintontingent consideration is
now recognised. It is possible that the fair value of the caygirt consideration may change after the acquisition
date. If this is due to additional information obtained that affects the position at acquisition date goodwill shoulc
be remeasured. If the change is due to events after the acquisition date (such ighex karnings target has
been met, so more is payable) it should be accounted for under IAS 39 if the consideration is in the form of
financial instrument (such as loan notes) or under IAS 37 as an increase in a provision if it is cash. Any eq
instrument is not remeasured.

3.7 Deferred consideration
An agreement may be made that part of the consideration for the combination will be paid at a future date. This
consideration will therefore be discounted to its present value using the acquirinty'sridst of capital.

The parent acquired 75% of the subsidiary's 8@trehares on 1 Jan 2016. It p&8.50 per share and agreed to
pay a furthe®N108m on 1 Jan 2018.

The parent company's cost of capital is 8%.

In the financial statements for the yetr 31 December 2016 the cost of the combination will be as follows:

80m sharesx 75%xN3.50
Deferred consideration: 100
N108mx 1/1.08 310
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Total consideration
At 31 December 20XMé cost of the combination will be unchanged B8M will be charged to finance costs,
being the unwinding of the discount on the deferred consideration.

Share exchange
The parent has acquired 12,080 shares in the subsidiary by issuing 5 of its &liirshares for every 4 shares in
the subsidiary. The market value of the parent company's shad. is

Cost of the combination:

N
12,000x 5/4 xN6 90,000
Note that this is credited to the share capital and share premium of the parent companyoassfoll
DR CR
Investment in subsidiar90,000
Share capitaif12,000x 5/4) 15,000
Share premiumM12,000x 5/4 x 5) 75,000

3.8 Fair value adjustment calculations

Until now we have calculated goodwill as the difference between the considera@msfarred and the book
value of net assets acquired by the group. If this calculation is to comply with the definition above we mu:
ensure that the book value of the subsidiary's net assets is the same as their fair value.

There are two possible ways athieving this.

(@) The subsidiary company might incorporate any necessary revaluations in its own books of account.
this case, we can proceed directly to the consolidation, taking asset values and reserves figures straif
from the subsidiary company'sagement of financial position.

(b) The revaluations may be made as a consolidation adjustment without being incorporated in the
subsidiary company's books. In this case, we must make the necessary adjustments to the subsidiary's
statement of financial positioas a working. Only then can we proceed to the consolidation.

Note. Remember that when depreciating assets are revalued there may be a corresponding alteration in the
amount of depreciation charged and accumulated.

lllustration 6

P Co acquired 75% ofdlordinary shares of S Co on 1 September 2015. At that date the fair value of S €0's non
current assets walsi23,000 greater than their net book value, and the balance of retained earningsi21a800.

The statements of financial position of both comparae81 August 2016 are given below. S Co has not
incorporated any revaluation in its books of account. Montrolling interest is valued at full fair value which

was deemed to b&l18,000 at the acquisition date.

P CO STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITICN ABATST 2016 N N
Assets
Noncurrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 63,000
Investment in S Coat cost 51,000

114,00(
Current assets 82,00(
Total assets 196,00(
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Equity and liabilities
Equity
Ordinary shares dfl1 each 80,000
Retained earnings 96,000
176,00(

Current liabilities 20,000
Total equity and liabilities 196,00(
S CGTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 AUGUST 2016
Assetdl
Property, plant and equipment 28,000
Current assets 43,000
Total assets 71,000

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Ordinary shares dfl1 each

Retained earnings 41,000
Current liabilities 10,000
Total equity and liabilities 71,000

If S Cdhad revalued its nowurrent assets at 1 September 2085, addition ofN3,000 would have been made to
the depreciation charged for 2015/16.

Required
Prepare P Co's consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 August 2016.

Solution
P CO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AJ03& /
N N
Norncurrent assets
Property, plant and equipmer¥(63,000 + 48,000)* 111,000
Goodwill (W1) 5,000
116,00
Current assets 125,000
241,000
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Ordinary shares of $1 each 80,000
Retained eatings (W2) 108,750
188,750
Noncontrolling interest (W3) 22,250
211,000
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Current liabilities 30,000

241,000
* (28,000 + 23,004Q 3,000)
1 Goodwill
Group NCI
N N
Consideration transferred/fair value of NCI 51,000 18,000
Net assets acquired as represented by
Ordinary share capital 20,000
Retained earnings 21,000
Fair value adjustment 23,000
64,000
Group/NClI share (48,000
(16,000
Goodwill 3,000 2,000
108,750

Adjustments should be made for these items of differences, as follows:

(a) If the goods or cash are in transit between the parent company and the subsidiary, the adjusting entry shot
be made in the balance sheet of the parent compamy matter the direction of the transfer.

(b) If the items are in transit between fellow subsidiaries, the adjusting entry should be made in the books of tt
company to which the items are in transit; that is, recipient company.

lllustration 7

At the yearend, the current accounts in the books of Hoo plc and Sho plc show the following balances; Hoo plc
being the parent company.

Book of Hoo plcAccount with Sho plc N68,000

Book of Sho plcAccount with Hoo plc N59,000

The differences due to good#n transit from Sho plc to ¢b plc.

Explain the accounting treatment of the goods in transit.

Suggested Solution

Step 1: Adjustment for items in transit N N
Dr Stock in transit 9,000
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Cr Sho current account (irobl SFP) 9,000

Step 2: cancel #current accounts which are now in agreement

Step 3: include the stock in transit as part of the current assets in the consolidated statement of financi
position.

Unrealised Profit on Stock

Where sales have been made between two companies within tbamgrthere may be an element pfofit that

has not been realed by the group if the goods have not then been sold on to a third party before the year
endFrom a group poinof view, this profit is unrealed, it will only become realized once the goods aold to
third parties. In many instances, you will be expected to calculate the profits made by using margins-apsaark
Where a subsidiary with a nesontrolling interest sells goods to a parent company at a rugxkthe non
controlling interest musbe charged with their share of any provision for unrealized profit.

lllustration 8
Goods were invoiced by parent to subsidiary company at cost plus-upad€ 25%. At the end of the year,
included in the stock of the subsidiary was this irdempany sas ofN24,000,000 at invoiced price.

Calculate the unreaksl profit on stock.

Suggested Solution

Price structure:

Cost 100%

Mark up 25%

Invoiced price 125%

Unrealized profit =25xN24,000,000
125

3.9Inter-Company Sales of Fad Assets

Fixed assets are transferred from one group entity to another, adjustments may be required so that any profit
loss arising on the transfer is eliminated and the depreciation charge is adjusted so that it is based on the cost
the asset to he group or its valuation (if a valuation policy is adopted).

The overcharge of depreation arising from the unreaksl profit must be removed by applying the rate of
depreciation on the unrealized profit.

Illustration 9
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KeffiOlu plc, sold a plant thi a net book value di6,000,000 to Abuja plc f@49,000,000. The policy of the group

is to charge depreciation on plant at 10% on cost per annum.

Required: Calculate the amount to be included in the fixed asset account and depreciation account anlkeshow
journal entries.

Suggested Solution N

Unrealised profitN(9,000,000; 6,000,000) 3,000,000

Less: ovegcharged depreciation (10%) 300,000
2,700,000

lllustration 10

{KAGIYRItf OQA LJdzZNDOKF a SR e n  Ywherd KagtgndidmddlaNBa Ay Y
credit balance of190million in retained earnings. The fair value of the 4gontrolling interest

at the date of acquisition wasi330million. At the date of acquisition, the freehold land of

Karatandi Plc was valued B.40million h excess of its carrying value. The revaluation has not

been recorded in the accounts of Karatandi.

The financial statements comprising Statement of Financial Position of Shitanda Plc and Karatandi
Plc as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:
Shitanda Pldaratandi Plc
ANm ANm Nm Nm
Non-Current Assets

Land and building 630 556
Machinery and equipment 570 440
Investment in Karatandi Plc. 1,320 -
2,520 996
Current Assets
Inventories 714 504
Trade receivables 1,050 252
Cash/bank 316 2,080 60 816
4,600 1,812
Ordinary Shares &1 each 3,000 1,200
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Retained Earnings 1,160 424
Shareholders fund 4,160 1,624

Current Liabilities

Trade payables 440 188
4.600 1.812

Kamtandi Plc owes Shitanda RIBOmillion for goods purchased during theyear.
Inventory of Karatandi Plc includes goods bought from Shitanda Plc at the price that
includes a profit to Shitanda Plc#&24million.

The management of Shitanda Plc wants tiheficial statements to be consolidated using the acquisition
method and wishes to know whether there is goodwill on acquisition of Karatandi Plc and the amount

involved.
You are required to:

Prepare the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 3% Biecember 2012.

Solution

Shitanda Plc
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2012

NOaAf tNQaAf
Non Current Assets

Goodwill (working 1) 120
Land & building (630 + 556 + 140) 1,326
Machinery& Equipment (570 + 440) 1,010
2,456
Current Assets
Inventory (714 +504 24) 1,194
Trade receivabled,050 + 252; 50) 1,252
Cash/Bank (316 + 60) 376 2,822
5,278
Ordinary shares dfl1 each 3,000
Retained earnings (Working 3) 1,323.2
Non-controlling Int. (Working 4) 376.8
4,700

Current Liabilities
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Trade Payables (440 + 1880) 578

Workings:
1. Calculation of goodwill:
NQOaAff NQaAft
Fair value of consideration 1,320
Plus fair vale of NCI at acquisition 330

Less net acquisitiogfair value of
Assets acquired & liability:

Share capital 1,200

Retained Earning 190

Fair value adjat acquigiion 140 1,530
Goodwill 120

2. Group structure

960 million x 100 1,200 80%
million

3. Retained earnings:

Shitanda Karatand

A million A million
As pe question 1,160 424
Adjustment (unrealised profit) (24)
Pre-acquisition retained earnings (190
234
Group share of posacquisition retained
earnings:
(80% x 234) 187.2
1,323.2
4. Noncontrolling interest: N million
Fair value of NCI at acquisition 330

t f dzi b/ L Q&acduikiioN 2 F LJ2ad
Retainedearnings (20% x 234) 46.8

Consolidation Schedule
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Shitanda in Post¢
Karatandi NCI Acq
80% (W3N 40%
Karatandi Plc NQa Qa NQO a NQa
Ordinary share capital 1,200 960 240
Revaluation Res. (W1) 140 112 28
Retained earnings 424 152 84.8 187
Net assets acquired 1,224
Cost of acquisition (1,320)
Goodwill (@artial value) (96)
Goodwill attribute to NCI (W5) (29 24
Goodwill (fair value) (120
Unrealised profit on inventory _ (24)
NCI (fair value) 376.8
Retained earnings of Shitanda Plc 1,160
Consolidéed retained earnings 1,323

Dividends payable by the subsidiary

Dividends paid by the subsidiary will be received by their shareholders, which mean the parent compaog-and
controllinginterest (NCI).

At the year end, the subsidiary may haveposed dividends but the financial statements may not have been
adjusted to reflect this. Always read the question carefully and establish whether the financial statement
NEFf SO0 GKS RAOGARSYRA LINRBLRASRO L ¥. Rekh&nber Bi2lef RS B0
only dividends declared by the balance sheet date can be accrued.

The parent company will also need to account for their share of the dividends payable by the subsidiary. Ag
read the question and establish whether the paile®@ad AYRAGARdzZ f FAYIFIYOAlLT &
receivable.

At the yearend any intercompany dividends payable and receivable will be cancelled upon consolidation
Remember the consolidated statement of financial position must only showitiiebiwhich are owed to third

LJ NI A Sao {2 GKS 2yfeé RAOARSYRa LIl e&lofS Ay (GKS (
payable to the NCI from the subsidiary shares.

The treatment is the same for preference share dividends and istene debentures and loan stock.

40 CONCLUSION

Take the individual accounts of the parent company and each subsidiary and cancel out items which appear ac
asset in one company and a liability in another. All the uncancelled assets and liabifibeghtbut the group

form part of consolidated statement of financial position and only show liabilities which are owed to third
parties.
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50 SUMMARY
The basic procedure for consolidation is:

A Aggregate the assets and liabilities in the statement of firnpbsitioni.e. 100% P + 100% S
irrespective of how much P actually owns.

This shows the amount of net assetmtrolled by the group.

Share capital is that of the parent only.

Balay OS 2 F 4 dzo & A RondolNiEted &afteNSareHliNgaSy datgrbup items).
Calculatetheno®2 Y G NRBf f Ay3d AydSNBad aKFINB 2F (GKS adzma

> > > e

6.0 TUTORMARKED ASSIGNMENT

1. | adzdaARAI NB QA -luddSRa strplus Sl the dats NIvas Biduired by the parent
company. What will be the effect of this surplus on gequisition profits and posacquisition profits of
the subsidiary?

2. On 2 January, 2011 Paddy Plc acquired 80% of the voting shares in Giddy Limited for
NA8million.

3. The following information is relent:

Paddy Plc Giddy Ltd
N' million N' million
Non-Current Assets 192 54
Current Assets 108 36
Investment in Giddy Ltd _48 =
Total Assets 348 an
Non-Current Liabilities 102 42
Current Liabilities 72 18
Ordinary Share Capital 120 18
Retained Earnings 54 2
Total Equity & Liabilities 348 90

CHANJ @FfdzS 2F DARRE [AYAUSRQa ySi ARSYGATAL of

The noncontrolling interest is measured aiit LINR L2 NI A2yl 0SS &aKIFINBE 2F D
net assets. Paddy Plc accounts for its investment in Giddy Limited at cost in its separate
financial statements.

You are required to: |
t NBLI NB t I RR8QA /2ya2ft ARFGSR {GLdSYSYyd 2F CAYL y«
December2011.

7.0 REFERENCES/FURTHER READINGS
Adebayo, P.A.(2011). Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards for Students and
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UNIT FOURCONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
CONTENTS

1.0 Introduction
2.0  Objectives

3.0 Main Content
3.1 Consolidation Procedas
3.2 Format of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
3.3 Consolidation Adjustment
3.4 Non-Controlling Interest
3.5 Acquisition of a Subsidiary during the Year
4.0 Conclusion
5.0 Summary
6.0 Tutor-Marked Assignment
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

The consolidated income statement shows all the revenue and expenses of the parent and subsidiaries duri
the accounting period. The workings on the consolidated income statement are very similar to consolidate
statement of financial positian

2.0 OBJECTIVES

At the end of this unit, you should be able to:
A Explain the procedures involved in the consolidation of income statement of a parent company and i
subsidiaries.
A Eliminate intercompany sales and unrealized profits on consolidation
A Adjust for the effect of intecompany dividends and interest on loan and account for-comtrolling
interest.

3.0 MAIN CONTENT

3.1 Consolidation Procedures

Consolidated profit and loss account is prepared by adding together the results of trading in thefytba
parent company and its subsidiaries after making adjustments that are necessary to exclug@mgamy items.
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3.2 Formats of the consolidated income statement (revised IAS 1)

FORMAT:
Consolidated profit and loss account foetiiear ended 31 December, 2007
Turnover X

Cost of sales X)
Gross profit X
Distribution cost X)
Administration costs /and any impairment loss X)
Profit from main business

Other operating income

Other interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges

Profit on ordinary activities before tax X
Taxation

Profit on ordinary activities after tax

Non-controlling interest

Profit attributable to group members X
Extra ordinary profit / (loss)

Profit/ (LossYor the year

X X X
X

B>

X IX

The revised IAS 1 allows 2 fortedo be adopted showing all income and expenses.
ALy | aixy3atsS adriaSySyid OIFftyYSRYa2NIGSYSyid 2F O2Y
ALy G662 &aSLINIGS &adFiSYSyiaa OFfttSR aAayO02YS aidl i
The incone statement will show the reaksl profit and loss for the period. Other comprehensive income is
income and expenses that are not rectgpal in the realized profit and loss but would normally appear in the
NEASNBSad ¢KS&S g2dzZ R y2¢ | LIISIN 2y GKS FIL0O0S 27
20KSNJ O2YLINBKSyaA@dS AyO2YS¢ o
Examples of other comprehensive income include:

A Rewaluation gains (IAS 16 and IAS 38)
A Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (IAS 21)

A Gains or losses on4measuring available for sale financial assets (IAS 39)
A Actuarial gains or losses on defined pension schemes (IAS 19)

A Gains / bsses on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge (IAS 39)
Basically all the above items would normally have appeared in the statement of changes in equity before IA
was revised in 2007. They will now be shown on the face of the comprehensive intaiements as either part

1 or 2 formats detailed above.

The above shows that all the nawner changes in equity are presented in the comprehensive income
statements (part 1 or part 2 formats).
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3.3 Consolidation adjustments
1 Turnover to total comprehesive income

The statement of comprehensive income (income statement) is added together 100% line by line fro
turnover to total comprehensive income. If the subsidiary was acquired part way through the accountin
year, the items are proated.

2 Inter-company sales

Likethe consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated income statement should deal with the
results of the group as those of a single entity. When one company in a group sells goods to another an identi
amount is addedd the sales revenue of the first company and to the cost of sales of the second. Yet as far as tl
entity's dealings with outsiders are concerned no sale has taken place. The consolidated figures for sales reve
and cost of sales should represesaiesto, purchasedrom andoutsiders An adjustment is therefore necessary

to reduce the sales revenue and cost of sales figures by the value cgotna sales during the year.

lllustration 1
Purple Co acquired 70% of the voting share capital of SilvenQ@dctober 2011.

The following extracts are from the individual income statements of the two companies for the year
ended 30 September 2012:

Purple Co Silver Co

N N
Revenue 79,300 29,900
Cost of sales (54,990) (17,940)
Gross Profit 24,310 11,960

Purple Co had made sales to Silver Co during the yed5,600. Purple Co had originally purchased the goods
at a cost odN4,000. Half of these items remained in inventory at the year end.

What should be the consolidated revenue for the year ende&&ptember 2012?

Therefore, the consolidated revenue is calculatedN¥9,300 #429,900¢ N5000 =N104,200
The consolidated cost of sales figure is calculated as:
N54,990 #N17,940 #N500¢ N5,000 =N68,430

Rules for removing Unrealized Profit
a. If the saks were made by the parent company, there would be no adjustment to-aomirolling
interest;
b. If the unrealigd profit originally arose in the subsidiary (that is, the sale is from the subsidiary to the
parent company) the nowgontrolling interest shoulde adjused for its share in the unreaéid profits;
c. Notwithstanding ths second rule, all the unreadid profit should be eliminated from cost of sales to
determine the correct amount of gross profit earned by the group as if they are trading as @& singl
entity.
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Transfer of Fixed Assets between Group Companies
(@) If the fixed assets are transferred at a value other than the net book value, the profit or loss arising ¢
the transfer is eliminated.

(b) The depreciation charge based on the cost of the asst#taaroup will be used to reduce the amount of
profit or loss to be eliminated.

Intra-Group Interest on Loan
If the parent company owns a loan stock in the subsidiary, it will receive interest from such subsidiary. Therefol

part of the total interes paid or payable by the subsidiary will be treated as investment income in the paren
O2YLI yeQa 0221 ®

On consolidation, both entries should be eliminated. Only the interest payable or receivable from parties outsi
the group should be consolidated.

Investment income

The consolidated income statement must only show investment income from other investments and not frol
subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures. This is because the actual returns from the investment companies
being replaced with indidual items.

Intra-Group Interest on Loan

If the parent company owns a loan stock in the subsidiary, it will receive interest from such subsidiary. Therefc
part of the total interest paid or payable by the subsidiary will be treated as investmenmidn the parent
O2YLIl yeQa 06221 @

On consolidation, both entries should be eliminated. Only the interest payable or receivable from parties outsi
the group should be consolidated.

Dividend on Preference Shares in the Subsidiary and {&amtrolling Intaest

The noncontrolling interest in the profit and loss account will be calculated in two parts, viz: Share of the notr
controlling interest in the preference dividend; plus Share of the -comtrolling interest in the profits
attributable to ordinary shagholders.

3.4 Norrcontrolling interest (NCI)

The noncontrolling interest is deducted from profit after tax to arrive at the profits attributable to group
members and only the postcquisition retained profit of the subsidiary brought forward will besalidated.

The dividends paid and proposed will only be of the parent company which is shown in the consolidate
statement of changes in equity under the reserves column.

¢tKS O2yaz2fARIFGSR NBASNWSa 02daAKI TervdslplushRare dffpdst ¢
acquisition retained reserves (PARR) of subsidiary bought forward.
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lllustration 2

P Co acquired 75% of the ordinary shares of S Co on that company's incorporation in 20X3. The summar
income statements and movement on a@ed earnings of the two companies for the year ending 31 December
20X6 are set out below.

P Co S Co
N N
Sales revenue 75000 38.000
20,000
LessCost of sales 30,000 18,000
Gross profit 45,000
Administrative expenses (14,000 8,000
Profit before tax 31,000 10,000
Income tax expense (10,000 2,000
21,000 8,000
Profit for the year 8.000
Note: Movement on retained earnings
Retained ea?nings brought forward 87,000 17,000
Profit for the year 21,000 8,000
Retain@ earnings carried forward 108,000 25,000

Required

Prepare the consolidated income statement and extract from the statement of changes in equity showin
retained earnings and necontrolling interest.

Solution
P CO ONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBE

N

Sales revenue (75 + 38) 113,00
Cost of sales (30 + 20) 50,00C
Gross profit 63,00C
Administrative expenses (14 + 8) 22,00C
Profit before tax 41,00C

Income tax expensé€l2,000

Profit for the year 29,000

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent 27,000

Non-controlling interest &8,000x 25%y,000
29,000
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (EXTRACT)

Retained Non-controlling Total
Earnings Interest Equity
N N N
Balance at 1 January 20X6 99,750 4,250 104,000
Total comprehensive income for the year 27,000 2,000 29,000
Balance at 31 December 20X6 126,750 6,250 133,000

Notice how the norcontrolling interest is dealt with.

(a) Down to the line 'profit for the year' the whole §f / 23bIf3 & included without reference to group share
or non-controlling share. Aone-line adjustment is then inserted to deduct then-controlling share of S
| 2 dpfofd.

(b) The noncontrolling share4,250) of § 2 defaied earnings brought forward (17,08025%) is excluded
from group retained earnings. This means that the eaktfiorward figure ofN126,750 is the figure which
would appear in the statement of financial position for group retained earnings.

3.5 Acquisition of a Subsidiary during the Year

The figure for retained earnings carried forward must be the same as theefigr retained earnings in the
consolidated statement of financial position. We have seen in previous units that retained earnings in th
consolidated statement of financial position comprise:

(@) The whole of the parent company's retained earnings

(o) A proportion of the subsidiary company's retained earnings. The proportion is the group's share -of pos
acquisition retained earnings in the subsidiary. From the total retained earnings of the subsidiary we mu
therefore exclude both thenon-controlling shareof total retained earnings and the group's share of -pre
acquisition retained earnings.

A similar procedure is necessary in the consolidated income statement if it is to link up with the consolidate
statement of financial position. Previous examples hakewsy how the norcontrolling share of profits is
excluded in the income statement. Their share of profits for the year is deducted from profit after tax, while the
figure for profits brought forward in the consolidation schedule includes only the groupjsogion of the
subsidiary's profits.

In the same way, when considering examples which includepgeisition profits in a subsidiary, the figure for
profits brought forward should include only the group's share of the jaasjuisition retained profitsif the
subsidiary is acquired during the accounting year, it is therefore necessary to apportion its profit for the yee
between preacquisition and posacquisition elements. The part year method is used.

With the partyear method, the entire income dment of the subsidiary is split between pagquisition and
post-acquisition proportions. Only the posacquisition figures are included in the consolidated income
statement.

Illustration 3

The summarized Profit and Loss account of ODEJAY Plc anbsidissy COMFORT Ltd for the year
ended 31 March 2011 are as stated below:

ODEJAYPLC COMFORT LTD

NYn g NYn 4
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Turnover 968,500 524,600
Cost of Sales (486,000 (253,400
Trading Profit 482,500 271,200
Debenture interest recead 26,000 -
Extra ordinary income 42,600 18,000
Dividend received from COMFORT Ltd 18,000

569,100 289,200
S5ANBOG2NEQ wSYdzySNI A2y (56,000) 15,600)
Audit fees (28,000) (10,000)
Depreciation (52,600) (16,800)
Sundry Administrati¥ Expenses (124,420 (49,680
Profit before tax 308,080 197,120
Taxation (90,400 (58,700)
Appropriations:
General Reserve (40,000) (12,000)
Profit after tax (65,000 (30,000
Retained profit for the year 112,680 96,420
Retained pofit b/f 596,440 305,180
Retained profit c/f 709,120 401,600

Additional information (All figures are ¥ n n n 0

1. ODEJAY Plc acquired its 70% interest in COMFORT Ltd on 1 July 2010.

2. During the year ended 31 March 2011, ODEJAY PIc invoicedwortdsN200,000 to COMFORT Ltd. The
goods were invoiced at cost plus 25%. A quarter of the goods had been sold by year end.

3. The extra ordinary income earned by COMFORT Ltd is in respect of a
transaction carried out in December 2010.

4, ODEJAY Plc$accounted for the interim dividend received from
COMFORT Ltd.

Required:

Prepare the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account of ODEJAY PIc for the year ended 31 March 2011 using th
year method.
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ODEJAY Plc

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account of QDY Plc for the year ended 31 March 2011

NO A NN NOA NN
Turnover 1,361,750
Cost of sales (675,880
Trading profit 685,870
Debenture interest received 26,000
711,870
5ANBOG2NNa wSYdzy SNI (A 2y|67,700
Audit fees 35,500
Depreciation 65,200
Sundry Admin expenses 161,680 (330,080
Profit before tax 381,790
Taxation (134,425
Profit after tax 247,365
Non-Controlling interest 30% (27,093
220,270
Extraordinary Income 55,200
Profit for the year 275470
Appropriation:
General Reserve 46,300
Interim dividend 65,000 (111,309
Retained profit for the year 164,170
Retained profit b/f 596,440
N760,610
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Consolidation Odejay Plc Comfort Ltd | Adjustm Group
Schedule ent

NQAnnn NQnnn NOnnnNQnnn
Turnover 968,500 393,450 (200) 1,361,750
Cost of sales leg (468,030) (190,050) 200 675,880
UPS
Trading Profit 482,470 203,400 - 685,870
Debenture 26,000 - - 26,000
interest received

508,470 203,400 - 711,870
Directors (56,000) (11700) - (67,700)
Remuneration
Audit fees (28,000) (7,500) - (35,500)
Depreciation (52,600) (12,600) - (65,200)
Sundry (124,420 (37,260 - (161,680)
Administrative
expenses
Profit before the| 247,452 134,340 381,790
tax
Taxation (90,400) (44,025) - (134,425)
Profit after Tax 157,050 90,315 247,365
Non  controlling| - (27,095) - (27,095)
interest 30%
(WK3)

157,050 63,220 - 220,270
Intercompany 18,000 (18,000) - -
dividend
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Group profit 175,050 45,220 - 220270
Extra Ordinary _42,600 12,600 - 52,200
Income (Wk 4)
Profit for the year | 217,650 57,820 - 275,470
Appropriation:
General Reserv( (40,000) (6,300) - (46,300)
(WK 5)
Interim dividend | (65,000 - - (65,000
Retained profit for] 112,650 51,520 - 164,170
the year
Retained profit| 596,440 0 - 596,440
before

709,090 51,520 - 760,610

2“‘“’*“‘”“&3 _N30,000

Wk2) Unrealised profit (UPS) %x

Wk3) NorControlling interest =2, 20315

00N 1 N27,095(Approx.)

Wk4) Extraordinary income %x@z N12,600

70 1z.000 9

WK5) General Reserve o0 x;z N6,300

40  CONCLUSION

The principle for consolidation of profit and loss account is the sameofisatidated balance sheet. That is, the
results of all the group companies should be presented in one profit and loss account.

50 SUMMARY
This unit explained the procedures involved in the consolidation of the profit and loss account of a pare
company and its subsidiaries, demonstrates how to elimin&iger-company sales and unreadid profit on

consolidation and also how to account for roontrolling interest.

In the next unit, you will learn about the principles governing the accounts of assd@ampanies.
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6.0 TUTORMARKED ASSIGNMENT
1. TobiasPIlc purchased 70% of the issued share capital of Brandon Ltd. and 40% of the issued share capite
Emma Ltd. on 1 May 2010. Details of the purchase consideration at that date are as follows:

Brandon Ltd.: a share exchange of two shares in Tobias Plc for every three shares in Brandon Ltd. plus an iss
the shareholders of Brandon Ltd. of 7% loan stock redeemable at par on 30 April 2014, on the&¥d<€i6 fan

note for every 500 shares heild Brandon Ltd.

Emma Ltd.: a share exchange of one share in Tobias Plc for every five shares in EmmaNit¢agluper share.

The market value of a share in Tobias Plc at 1 May 201&%psr share.

The draft Statements of Comprehensive Incdimethe three companies for the year ended 31

December 2010 are as follows:

Tobias

Plc Brandon Ltd. Emma Ltd.

Nnnno NnnnQa Nnnno
Revenue 42,000 30,000 25,000
Cost of sales (10,000) (14,000) (14,000)
Gross profit 32,000 16,000 11,000
Operaing expenses (14,000) (8,500) (7,270)
Operating profit 18,000 7,500 3,730
Finance costs (4,000) - -
Profit on ordinary activities 14,000 7,500 3,730
Taxation (3,200) (3,000) (1,400)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 10,800 4,500 2,330

The following information is relevant:

1. The fair value of the land and buildings of Brandon Ltd. at the date of acquisition showed th

following:
Book Value Fair Value
NnnnQa NnnnQa
Land 8,000 9,000
Building 4,000 5,000

The fair valuedhave not been reflected in the financial statements. The increase in the fair value woulc
create additional depreciation df100, 000 in the poshcquisition period, in the consolidated financial
statements to 31 December 2010.
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2. Details of the capél and reserves at 1 January 2010 are as follows:

Tobias Plc Brandon Ltd. Emma Ltd.
NnnnQa NnnnQa NhnnQa
EquityN1 20,000 15,000 10,000
Share premium 10,000 5,000 2,000
Retained earnings 28,000 9,000 6,000
3. In the postacquisition period sales byfiias Plc to Brandon Ltd. amounted®2 million. Tobias Plc made
a profit 0fN400,000 on this sale. Half of these goods were still NI Y R2 y [ ( R& &1 Deogrgbéry (i

2010.

4, On 31 December 2010, Tobias .Rind Brandon Ltd. paid dividends &§6,000000 and 2,400,000
respectively. Neither company has accounted for dividends paid or dividends received.

5. Tobias PlIQa L}t AO& A &conirdlingdritefesizét faii ¥albie af the/date of acquisition. At the
date of acquisition, the goodwill aibbutable to the norcontrolling interest wa$d4,500,000.

6.  All profits and losses are deemed to accrue evenly throughout the year.
REQUIRED:
(@) Calculate the goodwill arising on the acquisitions of both companies.
(b) Prepare a consolidated statement odbmprehensive income for the Tobias group for the year ended 31
December 2010.
(c) Calculate the consolidated retained profits that will be carried forward at 31 December 2010.
2. The income statement of Abuja Ltd and Lagos Ltd for the year ended Segt&Dp2004 disclosed

Abuja Ltd  Lagos Ltd
NOnnn NOnnn

Turnover 240,000 120,000
Cost of sales (170,800) (92,800)
Gross profit 69,20027,200
Distribution costs (16 400) (5,600)
Admin. Expenses (20,800) (12,400)
Operating Profit 32,000 9,200

Income from shares in

Group companies 3,000 -

Income from other fixed

Asset investment 1,200 1,400

Interest Receivable 1,400

Interest Payable - (1,200)

Profit on ordinary activities before ta7,600 9,400
Tax on profit @ ordinary activities (11,200) (2,800)

Profit on ordinary activity after tax 26,400 6,600
Dividend proposed (12,000) (4,000)
Retainedprofit for the year 14,400 2600
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Retained profit b/fwd 12,000 4,800

Retainedprofit ¢/ fwd26,400 7,400

Additionalinformation

i. On fOctober 2000, Abuja Ltd acquired ex dividend 30,000 ordinary shares 1préfienceshares and
N4,000 1212 Debenture in Lagos Ltd. At that date the income statement of Lagoshioided a credit
balance ofN2,000.

ii. The issued sre capital of Lagos Ltd is 20,000 5% preference share and 4f¥di@@ry sharesof N1 each and it
had N9,60012®86 debenture outstanding on September 30, 2004.

iii. During the year Abuja Ltd sold goods to S lid 8d0,00Gt a grossnarginof 20%. Noneisincluded in
Lagos Ltd stock as at September 10, 2004,

All the figures in notes (i(iii) are in thousand.

You are required to prepare the Consolidated Income statement for the year endeSegiember, 2004.
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UNIT FIVE: ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
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1.0 INTRODUCTION
Accounting for investments in associates is governed by the provisions of CAMA 2004 and the requirements
28.

2.0 Objecti\(e
A Define an associate.
Explain the principles for the use of equity accounting.
Prepare a consolidated statement of financial position to include a single subsidiary and &
associate.
A Prepare a consolidated income statement to include a single subsidiary and an associate.

>

3.1 Definitions

Associate: The Act describes an associate as a related company.

Schedule 2, part V, paragraph 68 of the Act describes a related company as anybody corporate in which
investor (company) holds, on a long term basis, the equity voting righthiégptirpose of securing a contribution
G2 GKS Ay@gSadiz2Nna 26y FOGABAGASE o0& SESNODA&AS 27F |

The Act further states that in a related company, the investor is deemed to:

A Hold a qualifying capital interest in the body porate.

A Exercise material influence in matter relating to dividends, commercial and financial policy of the boc
corporate.

A Hold 20% or more of all the relevant shares held in that body corporate

A Hold the interest on a long term basis.

3.2  Significan Influence

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policies of the investee but nc
control or joint control over those policies. A holding of 20% or more of the voting power is presumed to amoul
to significant ifluence. A voting of less than 20% will not give significant influence, unless it can be cleatr
demonstrated that such an influence exists.
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3.2.1 Evidence of Significant Influence

Significant influence is usually evidenced in one or more of the followays.

(a) Representations on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the investee;

(b) Participation in policy making processes, including dividend decisions;

(c) Material transactions between the investor and the investee;

(d) Interchange of managerigkersonnel;

(e) Provision of essential technical information.

Whether or not a significant influence exists also depends on the distribution of shareholdings. For instar
where the distribution is highly dispersed, a holding of less than 20% may givécaigniffluence whereas a
majority holding by one investor may prevent the other from exercising significant influence even if it holds mo
than 20% equity.

2.0 OBJECTIVES

At the end of this unit, you should be able to:
A Explain the basic principles aptilosophy of accounting for associated company;
A Distinguish and apply the equity and proportionate consolidation methods of accounting;
A Prepare financial statements for associated companies.

3.0 MAIN CONTENT

3.1 Associated Companies Methods of Accounting Associates

Associate An entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over whi
investor has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in .
venture.

Significant influences the power to partigate in the financial and operating policy decisic
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

Equity method A method of accounting whereby the investment is initially recorded at
and adjusted thereafter for the posicquisition change in the investor's share of net asset
the investee. The profit or loss of the investor includes the investor's share of the profit ¢
of the investee.

Consolidation procedures

A Investments in Associates to be recorded in B8y equity method

A Investment to be initially recorded as cost, identifying goodwill / capital reserve arising at the time c
acquisition.

A JFTNNEBEAY3I |Y2dzyd 2F Ay@SadySyid Aa FRe2dzadiSR GKS
of net assts of the investee.

A LygSai2Nna akKkFNBE 2F NBadzZ Ga 2F 2LISNIGA2ya 2F A

A Goodwill/capital reserve arising on the acquisition of an associate included in the carrying amount
investment in the assodi@ but should be disclosed separately.

A The investment in the associate is disclosed separately as-auroent asset.

A Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between investor (or its consolidate
subsidiaries) and the associate should §¢ A YA Yyl 6 SR (2 (GKS SEGSyd 273
associate.

A Unrealised losses should not be eliminated if and to the extent the cost of the transferred asset cannot |
recovered.

A Carrying amount of investment in an associate should be reduceddagnise a permanent decline in
the value of investment. Such recognition should be determined and made for each and every individt
investment.
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A Equity method is not applied when investment is acquired and held for subsequent disposal in ne
future; or there are severe longd SN NBAGNAOGA2Yy & GKIFG aA3ayAFAOL
funds to its investors.

A Transactions between the Investor and the Assoefitece an associate is not consolidated, these inter
company transactions will hndoe cancelled out.

A Loan between associate and invesitre loan should be disclosed separately in the balance sheet as
investment in the associate. Loans to and from the associated company should not be netted off.

A Receivables and payables arising betwéke associate and thénvestorThe receivable and payables
should not be netted off. Rather they should be included under respective current asset or liabilities. Su
receivables and payables should be disclosed separately, if material.

lllustration 1

Johnsonpaiimi H YAfft A2y F2NI I omx: Ay@SadyYSyd Ay ¢NBSYQa
¢CNBSYQa LINRPTFAG FFFGSNI GFE T2 WSG®E Ore R IMdich 2918, Sieemohmd
N300,000 goods in its inventory which it had bought from JohnsoMarch 2015. These had been sold by
Johnson at a markp on cost of 20%. Treem has not paid any dividends.

On the assumption that Treem is an associate of Johnson, what would be the carrying amount of the investm
in Treem in the consolidated statent of financial position of Johnson as at 31 March 20157

NOnnn
Investment at cost 1,200
Share of postcq profit 150 (750 x 8/12 x 30%)
URP in inventory (15) (300 x 20/120 x 309
CCCCCQ

1,335
lllustration 2
On 31/12/2008, AbWPlc. acquired 406 of the 2,000,000 ordinary share capitalMif each of BarlleRIc. for
N1,700,000 when the reserves of the company stoo8h2200,000. On the same date, ABlc.acquired 60% of
the ordinary share capital of Ddlc.when the reserve of DaRlc.wasN 2,000,000.

The profit and loss accounts of the three companies for the year ended 31 December 2008 were as follows:

AbuPIc. DanPlc. BarllettPlc.

NWYn nn ANWYn nn NWnnn
Profit before tax 10,400 5,400 4,000
Company income tax (4,200) (1,400) (1,400)
Profit after tax 6,200 4,000 2,600
Extraordinary loss after tax (1,600)
Proposed dividend (2,000) (800) 200
Retained profit for the year 4,200 3,200 800
Retained profit b/f 3,000 2,400 2,000
Retained profit c/f 7,200 5,600 2,800

Requred: prepare the profit and loss account of ABlUc. and its subsidiary including the group share of
associated company.
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Suggested Solution

Abu group consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31/12/08

NN non NWYnn
Turnover XX
Group prdit before tax (P+S) - 15,800
Group share of associate prokitt,000 x 40% 1,600
Profit before tax 17,400
Taxation: group (P+S) 5,600 -
Associate 1,400+40%) 560 6,160
Profit after tax - 11,240
Non-controlling interestN 4,000+40% - (1,600)
Net profit for the period - 9,640
Extra ordinary loshl 1,600x40% - (640)
Net profit for the period - 9,000
Dividend proposed - 000
Retained profit for the year - 7,000
Retained profit b/f (w2) - 3,560
Retained profit c/d - 10,560
Movement on reserves
Retained profit b/f 3,560
Retained profit for the year 17,000
Retained profit c/f 10,560

Statement of reserves for the year ended 31 December 2008

(Disclosing associate reserve separately)

Parent

Associate Group

NYOANYND NWA NN

Brought forward (w2) 3,240 320 3,560
Retained for the year (w3) 6,680 320 7,000
9,920 640 10,560
\Workings
(a) Goodwill in associate NWYnnn
Cost of shares acquired 1,700
Share of net assets 4082,000+1,200) 1,280
Goodwill 420
(b) Retained profits brought forward
GroupN3,000 + 6098N2,4002,000) 3,240
Associate 4098,000-1,200) 320
3,560

(c) Profit for the year
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Retained profitN4,200+ 60943,200 6,120
Add dividend receivable

From Barllett 60% N800 480

From Dan 40% 200 80
6,680

AssociateN800x 40% | 320

Tutorial notes
€) The associate profit before tax is not aggregated with the group profit. It is disclosed separately. Ti
associate tax is also disclosed separately from thegtax.

(b) Extra ordinary items (losses in this case) are shown below profit after tax and minority interest. The she
of associates gains or losses should be disclosed separately.
Though not compulsory, it helps to approach this question by preparingimgpschedule first.

AbuPlc. DanPlc. Consolidated BarllettPlc.
NYnnn NWYnnn NWY a1 nn NWYnnn

Profit before tax 10,400 5,400 15,800 4,000
Associated profit 40% 1,600 1,600
Profit before tax 10,400 5,400 17,400
Taxation (4,200) (1,400) (5,600)
Associate tax - - (560) 560
Profit after tax 6,200 4,000 11,240 1,040
Non contr. Interest - (1,600) (1,600)
Extra ordinary loss (640) 640
Profit for the period 6,200 2,400 9,000 400
Inter-company dividend
Group 60% 480 (480 - -
Associate 40% 80 (80)
Proposed dividend (2,000) - (2,000) -
Retained profit for the year | 4,760 1,920 7,000 320
Retained profit b/f 3,000 240 3,560 320
Retained profit c/f 7,760 2,160 10,560 640

The profit b/fidN3,000,000

3.2Upstream' and 'downstream’ transactions

'‘Upstream’ transactions are, for example, sales of assets from an associate to the investor. 'Downstrea
transactions are, for example, sales of assets from the investor to an associate.

Profits and losses residg from 'upstream’' and 'downstream’ transactions between an investor (including its
consolidated subsidiaries) and an associate are eliminated to the extent of the investor's interest in th
associate. This is very similar to the procedure for elimindtitrg-group transactions between a parent and a
subsidiary. The important thing to remember is tloaly the group's share is eliminated
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lllustration 3

A Co, a parent with subsidiaries, holds 25% of the equity shares in B Co. During the year, ke<satea of
N1,000,000 to B Co at cost plus a 25% markAt the yeatend, B Co has all these goods still in inventories.

Solution

A Co has made an unrealised profitN#f00,000 (1,000,008 25/125) on its sales to the associate. The group's
share (25%of this must be eliminated:

DEBITCost of sales (consolidated income statement) N50,000

CREDITnvestment in associate (consolidated statement of financial positg)000

Because the sale was made to the associate, the group's share of thed unsehtory forms part of the
investment in the associate at the yeand. If the associate had made the sale to the parent, the adjustment
would have been:

DEBITCost of sales (consolidated income statement) N50,000

CREDITnventories (consolidatedtatement of financial position) N50,000

3.3 Associate's losses

When the equity method is being used and the investor's share of losses of the associate equals or exceed:
interest in the associate, the investor should discoméirincluding its share of further losses. The investment is
reported at nil value. The interest in the associate is normally the carrying amount of the investment in thi
associate, but it also includes any other lergm interests, for example, long terneceivables or loans.

After the investor's interest is reduced to nil, additional losses should only be recognised where the investor h
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate (for example, if it has guaranteed amoun
owed to tird parties by the associate).

3.4 Impairment losses

IAS 39 sets out a list of indications that a financial asset (including an associate) may have become impaired.
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IABip@irment of assetor ead associate individually.

In the case of an associate, any impairment loss will be deducted from the carrying value in the statement
financial position.

The working would be as follows.

N
Cost of investment X
Share of postacquisition retined earnings X
X
Impairment loss [0
Investment in associate X
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Illustration 4

Below are the statements of financial position of three companies as at 31 December 2010.

H Ltd S Ltd A Ltd
Non-current assets NOO0O N0OOO NOO0O
Property, plant angéquipment 1,120 980 840
Investments
672,000 shares in S Ltd 644 - -
168,000 shares in A Ltd 224 - -
1,988 980 840
Current Assets
Inventory 380 640 190
Receivables 190 310 100
Bank 35 58 46
605 1,008 336
Total assets 2,593 1,988 1,176
Equity and liabilities
Equity
N1 Ordinary shares 1,120 840 560
Retained earnings 1,232 602 448
2,352 1,442 1,008
Current liabilities
Trade payables 150 480 136
Taxation 91 66 32
241 546 168
Total equity and liabilities 2,593 1,98 1,176

You are also given the following information:

1. H Ltd acquired its shares in S Ltd on 1 January 2010 when S Ltd had retained RISS¢300K
2. H Ltd acquired its shares in A Ltd on 1 January 2010 when A Ltd had retained earihg3,@90

3. An impairment test at the year end shows that goodwill for S Ltd remains unimpaired but the investment
in A Ltd has impaired #y2,800.

4. The H Group values the na@ontrolling interest using the fair value method. The fair value on 1 January
2010 waN160,000.

Required:

Prepare the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010.

Suggestedsolution:
W1 Shareholdings
S Ltd A Ltd
Group 80% 30%
Noncontrolling interest 20% -
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W2

Net asset of S Ltd

At date of At the
acquistion reporting date
N00O NO00O
Share capital 840 840
Retained earnings (56) 602
784 1,442
W3  Calculation ofoodwill
NO00O
Cost of investment 644
Fair value of NCI 160
804
Less: 100% net assets at acquisition (784)
Goodwill 20
W4 Non-controlling interest
NO00O0
Fair value of NCI 160
20% postacquisition profit [20% x (56 + 602)] 131.6
291.6
W5 Group retained earnings
NO00O0
H Ltd 1,232
S Ltd [80% x (56 + 602)] 526.4
A Ltd [30% x (448140)] 92.4
Less: Impairment of associate (2.8)
1,848
W6 Investment in associate
NO00O0
Cost of investment 224
Postacquisitiorprofits (W5) 92.4
Less: Impairment (2.8)
313.6
Suggested Solution
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010
Non-current assets NOO0O ANO0O
Goodwill (W3) 20
Property, plant and equipment (1,120 + 980) 2,100
Investment in associate (W6) 313.6
2,433.6

Current assets
Inventory (380 + 640)

1,020
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Receivables (190 + 310) 500
Cash (35 + 58) 93 1,613
Total assets 4,046.6

Equity and liabilities

Equity

N1 ordinary shares 1,120

Retained earnings (W5) 1,848

2,968

Noncontrolling interest (W4) 291.6
3,259.6

Current liabilities

Trade payables (150 + 480) 630

Taxation (91 + 66) 157 787

Total equity and liabilitie 4,046.6

4.0 Conclusion

Associate¢ An entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over which an investor he
significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

Equity method¢ A method of acconting whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post- Olj dzA aA GA 2y OKFy3dS Ay (KS Ay@Sadz2NDa akl
0KS Ay@Saia2Nl AyOf dzRSa (KSofithgidBsked. 2 NDa aKFNBE 2F (KS

5.0 Summary

A Investments in Associates to be recorded in CFS using equity method

A Investment to be initially recorded as cost, identifying goodwill / capital reserve arising at the time ¢
acquisition.

A Carrying amount of investment is adjuRe G KSNB I FGSNJ F2NJ §KS LRadg O
of net assets of the investee.

A LYygSaid2Nna akKINBS 2F NBadzZ Ga 2F 2LISNIGA2ya 2F A

A Goodwill/capital reserve arising on the acquisitioham associate included in the carrying amount of

investment in the associate but should be disclosed separately.
A The investment in the associate is disclosed separately as-auroent asset.

6.0 Tutor Marked Assessment

1. Below are the income statemenk$ltd, SLtd and ALtdfor the year ended 31 December 2010.

H Ltd S Ltd A Ltd

NOOO NOOO NOOO
Revenue 8,000 4,500 3,000
Operating expenses (4,750) (2,700) (2,050)
Profit from operations 3,250 1,800 950
Finance costs (750) (100) (50)
Profit before tax 2,500 1,700 900
Tax (700) (500) (300)
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Profit for the year 1,800 1,200 600

You are also given the following information:

1. H Ltdacquired 80% of S several years ago.

2. HLtd acquired 30% of the equity share capital dftdon 1 January 2009.

3. Duringthe year, H.td sold goods to A fol1 million at a markup of 25%. At the yeaend, ALtdstill held
one quarter of these goods in inventory.

4. At 31 December 2010, it was determined that the investment in the associate was impaiks PO,

of whichN20,000 related to the current year.

Required:
Prepare the consolidated income statement for the group for the year ended 31 December 2010.

2.You are required to prepare the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of fine

position dOlu Plc. and its subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2013.
Statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2013

Olu Plc. SuleLtd Oye Ltd

N N N
Ordinary shares @1 each 200,000 40,000 10,000
General reserve 60,000
Revenue reserve 37,000 27,000 13,000
297,000 67,000 23,000
Payables 20,000 32,000 6,000
Company tax 9,000 11,000 7,000
Proposed dividends 10,000 4,000
336,000 110,000 40,000
Property, plant and equipment 273,000 74,000 11,000
30,000 shares in Sule Ltd 35,000
4,000 shares in Oye Ltd 7,000
Current assets 21,000 36,000 29,000

236,000 110,000 40,000

Income statement of the year ended 31 December 2013
Olu Plc. SulelLtd Oye Ltd

N N N
Turnover 200,000 156,000 84,000
Operating profit, after charging 26,00 30,000 20,000
Directors6é6 emo 9,000 2,000 3,000
Depreciation 2,000 11,000 1,200
Audi torés r emu 1,000 1,500 500
Dividends from Sule Ltd 6,000
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Dividends from Oye Ltd 4,000
36,000 30,000 20,000
Company tax 9,000 11,000 7,000
27,000 19,000 13,000
Dividend paid - 8,000 6,000
Proposed dividend 10,000 - 4,000
17,000 11,000 3,000
Bal b/ ffrom previous years 20,000 16,000 10,000

37,000 27,000 13,000
You are given the following additional information:
1. Olu Plc purchasd its investments two year ago when the relevant balances on the revenue res
were Sule LtdN12,000 and Oye Lt&#8,000.
2. The companies do not trade with one another.
3. None of the directors of Olu Plc is the director of Sule Ltd or Oye Itd

7.0 Reference/Futher Reading
IAS 28Adebayo, P.A.(2011). Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards for Students and

Professionals, Abuja: Rainbow Graphic Printers and Publishers

Bello, S. @& Barnabas, S. A2017)Advanced Financial Accounting, Bida, 9ICE LINK P roduction

Federal Government of Nigeria (2004) Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFR 2004

Hennie V. G. (2010nternational Financial Reporting Standards: A practical G&fied. International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development and the WoBlank, Washington D C

LYGSNylragaAzytrt 1 002dzydAy3a {dFyRIFINRa .2FNRXZ LYyG§SNyl!
IFRSs, Londdnvestment in Associates
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1.0 Introduction
A vertical group arises where a subsidiary of the parent entity holds shiaeg$urther entity such that
control is achieved. The parent entity therefore controls both the subsidiary entity and, in turn, it
subsidiary (often referred to as a sshbsidiary entity).

2.0  Objectives

A Define Vertical Group.
A Explain the principles faletermining effective interest.
A Prepare a consolidated financial statement of financiatsuibsidiary.

A Main Content
3.1 Effective Interest

Situation 1: Situation 2:
H H
90% 70%
\4 \ 4
S S
80% 60%
\ 4 A\ 4
S S

In situation 1, H has arffective interest of only 72% (90%:80%)in S. NeverthelessS is a subsubsidiary of H
because H has a controlling interest3nand S has a controlling interest i& As H has an effective interest$
of 72%, it follows that the nooontrollinginterest inS is 28%. This can be analysed as follows:
%
Owned by outside shareholders in T 20
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Owned by outside shareholders in H [(100%©%)x 80%] 8
Effective NClI i% 28
In situation 2, H has a@ffective interestof just 42% (70% 60%)in S. NeverthelessS is a subsubsidiary of H
because H has a controlling interest3rand S, has a controlling interest i, As H has an effective interest$h
of 42%, it follows that the nogontrolling interest irSis 58%. This can be analyseda®ws:
%

Owned by outside shareholders in T 40
Owned by outside shareholders in H [(100%©%)x 60%] 18
Effective NCI i 58

3.2  Group reserve
Only the group or effective percentage of each of the reserves of thesgbbidiary are included tiin group
reserves. Often the only reserve will be retained earnings, but there could be others, such as revaluation resen

Date of acquisition
The date of acquisition of each subsidiary is the date on which H gains con®phliéady heldS when H
acquireds, treatS and$S as being acquired otihe same day.
Consider the following situations to determine when the swibsidiary companys, becomes a member
of the H group:

(@) H acquired control 0§ on 1 January 2004 subsequently acquiredontrol of another entity,S,
on 1 July 2006.

In this situation,S does not come under the control of H uriilacquire shares i8¢ i.e. on 1 July
2006.

(b) H acquired control o§ on 1 July 20065 had already acquired control of another entig, on 1
January 2004.

Similarly, H cannot gain control funtil S acquires shares i on 1 July 2006

Illustration 1

Full goodwill method
The draft statements of financial position of D, C and J, as at 31 December 2012

follows:
D C J D C J
Sundry assets 280 180 130 Equity capital 200 100 50
Retained
earnings 100 60 30
Shares ir
subsidiary 159 g Liabilities 100 100 50

400 260 130 400 260 130

You ascertain the following:
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(@) D acquired 75,0081 shares in C on 1 Janu&@12 when the retained earnings o
amounted toN40,000. At that date, the fair value attributable to the roontrolling
interest in C was valued &i38,000.

(b)  C acquired 40,0081 shares in J on 30 June 2012 when the retained earning
amounted b N25,000; they had beeN20,000 on the date of @ acquisition of C.
that date, the fair value of the neoontrolling interest in J (both direct and indire
based on effective shareholdings, was valuediat,000.

(c)  Goodwill has suffered no impaient.
Required:

Produce the consolidated statement of financial position of the D group at 31 Dec
2012. It is group policy to use the full goodwill method.

Solution:
W1 Group structure
D
75%acquired 1 Jan 2012
A 4
C
80%acquired 30 June 2012
A 4
J
C J
Group interest 75% 60% (75%x 80%)
NCI 25% 40% (25%x 80% + 20%)
100% 100%
W2 Net assets of subsidiaries at acquisition date
C J
At acod At acod
N N
Equity capital 100,000 50,000
Reserves 40,000 25,000
140,000 75,000

W3 Goodwill

A A separate calculation is required tetermine goodwill for each subsidiary.

A For the subsubsidiary, goodwill is calculated from the perspectivethaf ultimate
parent entity (D) rather than the immediate parent (C). Therefore, the effective
of J is only @ share othe amount that C pal for J, i.eN80,000< 75% =N60,000.

C J
NOO0O N00O
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Cost of investment 120 60

Fair value of NCI 38 31
158 91
Fair value of net assets (W2) (140) (75)
18 16
W4 Group retained earnings
D C J
NOOO NOOO NOOO
Per question 100 60 30
Less: Praqy. retained earnings (40) (25)
20 5
Share of C (75%20) 15
Share of J (60%5) 3
118

Note that again, only the group or effective interest of 60% is taken of the-
acquisition retained earnings of J.
W5 Noncontrolling interest

C J
N0[0]0) N00O
NCI FV at acquisition 38 31
NCI share of posicq. retained earnings (25%
20,000 (W4)) / (40% 5,000 (W4)) 5 2
Less: NCI share of costiovestmentin J (25%
80,000) (20) -
23 33

Consolidated statement of financial position as$ 81 December 2012

NO00O0
Goodwill (18,000 + 16,000) 34
Sundry assets (280,000 + 180,000 + 130,000) 590
Total assets 624
Equity and liabilities
Equity capital 200
Retained earnings (W4) 118

318
Non-controlling interest (W5) 56
Total equty 374
Liabilities (100,000 + 100,000 + 50,000) 250
Total equity and liabilities 624
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illustration 2

lllustration 2 i Proportion of net assets method
The draft statements of financial position of D, C and J, as at 31 December 2012

follows:
D C J D C J
Sundry assets 180 80 80 Equity capital 200 100 50
Shares ir Retained
subsidiary 120 80 earnings 100 60 30
300 160 80 300 160 80

You ascertain the following:

(@) C acquired 40,0081 shares in J on 1 January 2012 when #tained earnings of
amounted to $25,000.

(b) D acquired 75,0081 shares in C on 30 June 2012 when the retained earning
amounted toN40,000 and those of J amounted30,000.

It is group policy to value the nesontrolling interest using the proption of net asset|

method.

Required:

Produce the consolidated statement of financial position of the D group at 31 Dec

2012. It is group policy to use the full goodwill method.

Solution:

W1 Group structure

D
75%acquired 30 June 2012
A 4
C
80%acquired 1 Jan 2012
A 4
J
C J
Grow interest 75% 60% (75%x 80%)
NCI 25% 40% (25%x 80%)
100% 100%

W2 Net assets of subsidiaries at acquisition date
C J
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Equity capital
Reserves
W3 Goodwill
Cost of investment (75% 80,000)
Fair value of NCI
(25%x 140,000 (W2)) / (40% 80,000 (W2))
Fair value of net assets (W2)
Goodwill
W4 Group retained earnings
D
NO00O
Per question 100
Less: Preacq. retained earnings
Share of C (75%20) 15
Share of J (60%0) 0
115

W5 Noncontrolling interest

NCI FV at acquisition
(25%x 140,000) / (40%% 80,000)

Share of posacq. retained earmgs (25% x

20,000) / [40%« (80,000¢ 80,000)]

Less: NCI share of costinfestmentin J (25%x

80,000)

At acqd At acqd
N N
100,000 50,000
40,000 30,000
140,000 80,000
C J
NOO0O NOO0O
120 60
35 32
155 92
(140) (80)
15 12
C J
NO0O NO0O
60 30
(40) (30)
20 0
C J
NO0O NOOO
35 32
5 0
(20) -
20 32

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012

Goodwill (15,000 + 12,000) (W3)
Sundry asset (180,000 + 80,000 + 80,000)
Total assets

Equity and liabilities

NOOO
27

340
367
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Equity capital 200
Retained earnings (W4) 115
315
Non-controlling interest (W5) 52
Total equity 367

40 CONCLUSION
The principle for consolidation of multiple Issidiary and vertical group is same for consolidated that were
discussed in previous units.

50 SUMMARY
This unit explained the procedures involved in the consolidation multiple subsidiaries arslilssidiaries. It
demonstrates how to arrive at effectivantrol for sub subsidiaries

6.0 Tutor-Marked Assignment
On 1 May 2009, David Limited acquired investments as follows:

80% equity interest in Daniel Limited at a cos&&f0.8 million

50% of Daniel Limited 8% Loan Notes at par

On 1 May 2009, DanieLimited acquired 60% equity shares in Rosemary Limited at a cost of
N60million

The following information was also provided:
i. Equity & liabilities

David Ltd. Daniel Ltd. Rosemary Ltd.
NoOOMDOOMNMOOOO

Equity share a1 each 30,000 9,000 12,000
Retained Earnings 111,00@4,000 60,000
8% loan notes 12,000 6,000 -

ii. Daniel Limited Land had a fair value 8.2 million in excess of its carrying valuds plant had a fair
value ofMN4.8 million in excess of its carrying value at the date of acquisition. Thacprésition profit
amounted té421 million.

Required:

(@) Discuss how the investment purchased by David Ltd. on 1 May 2009 will be treate@ongolidated
Financial Statement.

(b) Cal cul ate the net Goodwi I | t hat should be re
Goodwill is impaired byN1.2 million.

7.0

References/FurtheReading _ _ _ _
Adebayo, P.A.(2011). Financial dwating and Reporting Standards for

Students and
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

Interpretation and financial analysis includes analysis of the profitability of a company, the risk of the compar
and the sources and uses of funds for the company. Profitability analysigiK S S @ f dzt GA2y 2
2y Ay@SadySyiao LG F¥20dzaSa 2y | O2YLIlyeéQa azdz2NDS.
the impact of various drivers of profitability. Profitability analysis includes evaluation of two sowfce
LINEFAGIOAEAGRY YIFINBAYA YR (dz2NYy2 SN wial Fylfea
its commitments. Risk analysis involves assessing the solvency and liquidity of a company along with its earr
variability. Ananalysis of sources and uses of funds is the evaluation of how a company is obtaining a
RSLX 28Ay3 FdzyRa®d CKA& lylFrfeara LINPGARSAE Ayairdakia

2.0 OBJECTIVES
At the end of this unit, you should be able to:

A Gompute and interpret ratios;
A Discuss the implication of ratios
A Carry out intrafirm and interfirm analysis

3.0 MAIN CONTENT
3.1 Financial analysis tools

Financial analysis tools include the following:
a. Comparative financial statements
i. Year-to-year change analysis
ii. Indexnumber trend analysis
b. Commonsize financial statements
c. Ratio analysis
d. Cash flow analysis

Comparative analysis

Comparative analysis focuses on exceptions and variations and helps the analyst to formulate judgme
about data ttat may be interpreted in various ways. In short, the usefulness of comparative analysis is tt
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notion that a number is more meaningfully interpreted when it is evaluated relgtite a comparable
guantity.

Comparison can be made against (1) past expegie(®) external data industry or economywide, or (3)
accepted guidelines such as standards, budgets, or forecasts.

A comparison, to be meaningful and fair, must be made between data, which are prepared on a similar ba
If data are not directly compar#d, the analyst should make appropriate adjustments before undertaking any
comparative analysis. One also must remember that the past is not always an unqualified guide to the futur

Past trend often is a good predictor of the futufeall relevant vadbles remain constant or nearly constant.

In practice, however, this is seldom the case. Consequently, the analyst should use the results of tre
analysis and adjust them in the light of other available information, including the expected state of th
economy and industry. Trend analysis will, in most cases, reveal the direction of change in operati
performance along with the velocity and the magnitude of change.

Indicators complement one another. Indeed, one indicator in the absence of the otheiinsitefll value. To
illustrate, an increase t& 4,000 of receivables from base year receivable @D0 indicates a 3,900 9&(
4,000N100)/N 100] increase. However, the huge percent change in this case is mislegdieg the
relatively small base year aunt. This simple case demonstrates that both indicators need to be considerec
simultaneously. That is, reference to the absolute dollar amounts must be made to retain the prope
perspective when a significant change in percent is revealed.

Several answerare possible. Since division by zero is not mathematically defined, it is impossible to g
changes in percent when there is no figure for the base year. Also, if there is a negative figure in the base \
and a positive figure in another year, or vicersa, a mere mathematical computation of percent change is
nonsensical.

Index-number trend analysis

In indexnumber trend analysis, all figures are expressed with reference to a base year figure. Since the b
year serves as the frame of reference, itlesirable to choose a year that is "typical” for the business. If the
earliest year in the series anabg is not typical, then a subsequent (more typical) year should be chosen a
the base year.

By utilisng index numbers, the analyst can measure changgr time. Such analysis enables the analyst to
assess management's policies and, when examined in the light of the economic and industry environment
the periods covered, the ability of the company to effectively confront challenges and opportunities
Moreover, trend analysis of indenumbers enables the analyst to uncover important relations among various
components of financial statements. This helps in the evaluation of the relative change in these componer
For example, changes in sales and accoreteivable are logically correlated and can be expected to display
a natural relation when examining trends.

Commonsize financial statements

Commonsize financial statements enable comparisons of changes in the elements that make up financ
statements.The figures in each line item of financial statements are divided by a reasonablgatggietal

and then expressed in percentag€he total of these elements will add to 100%. For example, the balance
sheet items are usually expressed as a percentagetalf assets and the income statement items are usually
expressed as a percentage of total revenues. This makes it easier for the analyst to identify internal structt
changes in companies that are reflected in financial statements.

The analysis of comon-size financial statements focuses on major aspects of the internal structure of
company operations such as:
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Capital structure and sources of financing

Distribution of assets or make up of investing activities

Composition of important segments of finaakposition such as current assets
Relative magnitude of various expenses in relation to sale

T 3> I

Moreover, useful information can be obtained by a comparison of comsims statements of a company
across years. The advantage of this temporal analysis is @eee evident in comparisons between two
companies of different sizes. Since analyses can be made on a uniform basis, this tool greatly facilite
such comparisons.

3.2 Ratio analysis

A ratio expresses a mathematical relation between two quantibiesariables To be meaningful (useful in
analysis), a ratio of financial numbers must capture an important economic relation. Certain items in financ
statements have no logal relation to each other anitherefore, would not be amenable to ratio analysis.

Also, some type of benchmark or norm must exist for interpretation of the ratio. One can draw minimg
inference from being told that the return on assets for a certain firm is .02. However, if the analyst is told th:
GKS O2YLJ} yeQa NRB arzhi indisfry dveiafieSisi .88, thedratisPbbecomes more useful for
interpretation purposes.

Since not all relations have meaning and not all ratios are useful for all analytical purposes, the analyst m
be careful in selecting ratios that are useful fbe particular task at hand. Unfortunately, ratios are too often
misunderstood and their significance overrated. Ratios can provide an analyst with clues and symptoms
underlying conditions. Ratios also can highlight areas that require further inggstigand inquiry. Still,
ratios, like all other analysis tools, cannot predict the future. Moreover, the usefulness of insights obtaine
from ratios depends on their skillful interpretation by the analyst.

3.2.1 Profitability Ratios

Profitability ratiosallow a more specific analysis of profit margin, e.g. expressing individual expenses as
proportion of sales or cost of sales. These ratios will identify any irregularities or changes in specific expen
from year to year.

Profitability may be expressdd relation to capital employed (profit as a percentage of assets used to earn that
it) or in relation to sales (gross or net profit as a percentage of sales).

Common profitability ratios are:
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Ratio

Calculation

Discussion

Gross Margin

(Saleg; COGS) /d@es

This captures the relationship between s:
and manufacturing (or merchandising) co
(Also, called the gross profit margin.)

Return on Sales

Net Income / Sales

Measures the relationship of the bottom li
to sales and thus captures sales to fotasts
of sales. (Also called the net profit margin)

Return on Assets

Net Income / Average Total Asst

aSlhadiNBa UGKS TFANNQa
to generate earnings. Alternatively stated
captures earnings to all providers of capital

Pretax Return on Assets

Earnings Before Interest & Taxe
Average Total Assets

Measures earnings from operations on
pretax and prenterest expense basis.

Return on Total Equity

Net Income / Average Tot
{6201 K2f RSNBRQ ¢

Measures earnings to owners agasured b
net assets.

Dividend Payout

Common Dividends / Net Incomg¢

Measures the percent of earnings paid ou
common stockholders.

Asset turnover Sales/Capital Employed This ratio is express in times; a low rate
shows that the company is not gendiray
sufficient volume of business for the size
of the assets invested

lllustration 1

The figures below relate to Omonso Ltd
Extract of Income statemenbf the year ended 31 December 2015

Gross profit 3,985,000
Net Profit 1,275,000
Turnover 13,715,000

Extract of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2015

{ KINBK2f RSNAQ Cdzy R6,675000
Total Assets

10,000,000

Required: Using the above figures, calculate each the following ratios
i) Net profit on TotaAssets
i) Gross Profit to sale
iif) Suggested Solution

i) Net profit on Total Assets =
ii) Gross Profit to sale
i) Net Profit to Sales =
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3.2.2 Liquidity Ratios

Common liquidity ratios are:
Ratio Calculation Discussion
Current Current Assets / Current Liabilities | Standard ratio to evaluate working capital.
Quick (Acid Test) (Cash + Marketable Securities + [ This ratio eliminates inventory and oth
Receivables) / Current Liabilities |current assets from the denominator, focusi
2y aySIFNI OFakKé |yR N
Cash (Cash + Marketable Securities) Only cash and cash equivalents considerad

Current Liabilities

payment of current liabilities.

Operating Cash Flow

Cash Flows from Operations
Current Liabilities

Evaluates castelated performance (a
measured from the Statement of Cash Flo
relative to current liabilities.

When interpreting liquidity ratiosyou should bear the following points in mind.

1. Companies and trades vary in their working capital requirements. A retail company does not have to inve

capital in stocks and debtors, in the way that a manufacturing company probably does.

bts as they fall due.

is to begin shortly afterwards.

no liquidity problem as such exists.

2.
meeting its de
3.
4.
Illustration 2

You are evaluating the performance of Donald Corporation. From the Statement of Financial Position you find
balances: Cash and marketable securitid$480,000, Accounts receivabledi 200,000, Inventory &2,100,000, Act

The current ratiomight be anything from about 1.4:1 up to may be 3:1, depending on the trade. The liquic
ratio is, however, expected to have a value not less than 1:1, otherwise the company could have difficulty

An unnecessarily higratio may indicate that the company is nasing its resources efficientlgr the
company has built up its current assets at the balance sheet date for a major project, or seasonal sales, wi

Many blue chip companies Iseon bank overdraft as a permanent source of finance, although often times
stated as part of their current liabilities. This may well give rise to very low current and liquid ratios, althoug

wagesand taxes 500,000, Accounts payableN800,000, and Notes payableéN§00,000.

Required:
A

_ 4D

Calculate Donald Corporation Current ratio, Quick ratio, and Cash ratio.

0,000 + 31,200,000 + 2,100,000
=1.9474:1

Current ratio

500,000 + #200.000 + 400,000

Quick ratio (acidest ratio) =

200,000 + 21,200,000 + 2#2,100,000-N2, 100,000

500,000 +#200,000 + 200,000

400,000 =0.21053:1

Cash ratio =

500,000 + 2200000 + 2400000
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=0.84211:1



3.2.3 Management Efficiency/Assets Utikidion/Activity Ratios
These ratios measure the skills with which management looks after the assets, under its control,
especially inventory, receivable, édithe use of cash to pay its creditors the following ratios are
relevant and frequently expressed in terms of days.

Common activity ratios are:

Ratio Ratio Discussion
Inventory Turnover COGS / Avera¢ Measures inventory management. Inventor
Inventory should be turned over rapidly, rather tha

accumulating in warehouses.
Sales/Inventory,

COGS/Closing Inventor

Receivables Turnover |Sales / Average Accour Measures the effectiveness of credit policies a
Receivables needed level of receivables investmefur sales.
(Also called the collection period).

Payables Turnover Sales / Average Accourl Payables represent a financing source
Payables operations.

Working Capital Sales / Average Workil Measures how much working (operating) ¢abis

Turnover Capital needed for sales.

Fixed Asset Turnover |Sales / Average Fix{Measures the efficiency of net fixed ass
Assets (property, plant & equipment after accumulate
depreciation) investments.

Total Asset Turnover |Sales / Average TofRepresentghe overall (comprehensive) efficiend
Assets of assets to sales.

Illustration 3

Pepper Ltd. reported sales for 2015823 million. Pepper liste® 5.6 million of inventory on its Statement of
Financial position. Calculate, using a 365 day year, how mayg/ did inventory stay on the premises? How
many times per year did inventory turnover?

5123aQ alfSa Ay —AysBSepaicaNe

. ¥IZ3m
Inventory turnover ratio 3 ——  =4.1071 days

Illustration 4

Edmond Ltd. endedtheyeNJ Hnmp SAGK Fy | @SNI IS O2fft SOGA2Yy LISN
wereN33 million. What is the yeagnd 2015 balance in accounts receivable for Edmond?

SOLUTION:

Let Account receivable be represented by A,
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ACCOUNT RECEIVAELE X 365
Credit fales

Average collection period (ACP) = 32 days

Average collection periofACP) =

Credit sales=N33 million
Account receivable (i.e. A) =?
Substituting the figures in to the above formula, then we will have:

32 =A X 365
33,000,000

Cross Multiply:

32 XN33,000,@0 = 365A
N1,056,000,000 = 365A
Divide both side by 365:

A1,056,000,006- 365A
365 365

N2,893,151 = A

Therefore, Account Receivable for 2018&893,151

3.2.4 Investment/ Market ratios

Investment ratios such as earnings per share (ERBE/@arnings ratio (PE ratio), dividend cover and
dividend yield.

Summary of Market Ratios are:
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Book Value Per Sha

¢c2GFtf {G201K2ft RSN
Shares Outstanding

Equity or net assets, as measured o
the balance sheet

Earnings based
Growth Models

P kKE / @g), where E=earning
k=dividend payout rate, r=discount rai
& g=earnings growth rate

Valuation models that discount
earnings and dividends by a discoun
rate adjusted for future earnings
growth

Market-to-book

(Stock Price x Numberof Shares
hdziadGt yRAY 3O K
Equity

Measure of accountingased equity

Price Earnings Rat
(PE)

Stock Price / EPS

Measure of market premium paid for
earnings and future expectations

Price Earning
Growth Ratio (PEG)

PE / Earnings GrowtRate

PE compared to earnings growth
rates, a measure of PE
GNBI a2yl of SySaa¢

Salesto-market

Sales / (Stock Price x Number of Sh

A sales activity ratio based on marke

Value Outstanding) price
Dividend Yield Dividends Per Share / Stock Price Direct @&@sh return on stock
investment
lllustration 5
You are considering an investment in BeBreakfasf 4G R® 5dzNAy 3 GKS 1 ad &SI NJ

listed addition to retained earnings & 4.8 million and common stock dividendsN2.2 million.The yearend

{GraSySyi
o2YYZ2Y

aizol

2T CAYIFYOAIf t24

2dzialir yRAY IO

earnings per share and PE ratio.

. 4
Earnings per share=

Sm.+ #22m

#10m

=N0.70

Priceearnings (PE) rat%?% =12.86 times

3.2.5 Gearingleverage ratios are:

DS NAy3

Aa

iKS GSN¥Y dzasSR

interest securities, such as debentures.

Summary of Gearing

Ratios are:
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Ratio Calculation Discussion

Debt to Equity Total Liabilites / Totg Direct comparison of debt to equ
{ G201 K2t RS N& Q|stakeholders and the most common meas
of capitalstructure.

Debt Ratio Total Liabilities / Total Assets| A broader definition, stating debt as a perc
of assets.

Interest Coverage (Time (Net Income + Interest Expen This is a direct measure of the NJ Q a
Interest Earned) + Tax Expense) / Inter¢ meet interest payments, indicating t
Expense protection provided from current operations

Longterm Debt to Equity| Longterm Liabilities / Totg A longterm perspective of debt and equ
{ G201 K2t RS N& Q|positions of stakeholders

Debt to Market Equity | Total Liabilities at Book Valu¢ Market valuation may represent a bett
Total Equity at Market Value | measure of equity than book value. M
firms have a market premium relative to bg
value.

lllustration 6

You are considering a stogkvestment in one of two firms (Lots of Debt, Inc. and Lots of Equity, Inc.), both of
which operate in the same industry. Lots of Debt, Inc. financdd2ifsmillion in assets withi24 million in debt

and N1 million in equity. Lots of Equity, Inc. finandess$25 million in assets withll million in debt andN24
million in equity. Calculate the debt ratio, equity multiplier, and dabequity ratio for the two firms.

Lots of Debt Lots of Equity
Debt ratio = =96.00% T 4.00%
225m H25m
Equity multiplier ratio =55 - 05 times 2251 ~1.042 times
HH1lm H24m
. . Hlam . H1m .
Debtto-equity ratio T 24 times am .042 times

3.3 Factors to consider when carrying ofirm comparison
External factors
There are a number of external factors that need to be understood. These include:
A Ratios need to be interpreted bearing in mind the political context within which a business has

been operating as, for example, whenvgonments adopt protectionist measures that can impact
2y I O2YLI yeQa alftSao
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A Ratios need to be interpreted bearing in mind the economic context within which a business has
been operating by considering any changes that have occurred in the accountiad thext could
impact on assets or transactions of an entity.

Internal factors
There are internal factors to consider:

A Ratios need to be interpreted in conjunction with reading the narrative and notes in the annual
reports.

A Whether confident that thefinancial statements give a true and fair view: Have liabilities been
omitted, e.g. use of off balance sheet finance, is there risk of fraudulent misrepresentation? Is
there risk of window dressing?

>

Ratios might be distorted because they are based oiodernd figures:

>\

Factors that could invalidate intaompany comparisons, such as:

>\

Use of different measurement bases with nomrrent assets reported at historical cost or
revaluation and revaluations carried out at different dates;

>\

Use of differentommercial practices, e.g. factoring trade receivables so that cash is increased

>\

Applying different accounting policies: e.g. adopting different depreciation methods such as
straightline and reducing balance.

A Having different definitions for ratios.g.: the numerator for ROCE could be operating profit,
profit before interest and tax, profit before interest, profit after tax, etc.; the denominator for
ROCE could be total assets, total assets less intangibles, net assets, average total assets, etc.;

A The use of norms can be misleading, e.g.: a current ratio of 2:1 might be totally inappropriate for
some company

3.4 Intra- Firm Comparison

LG Aa y2NX¥If LINFOGAOS T2NJ GKS TFAYIFIYyOALf RANBOGZ2N
identify, nvestigate significant changes and make a report to the board. In approaching this there could be
some preconceived ideas as to the reason based on local knowledge of the company. For students and
those taking examinations, the task may be to consider veuegstions to ask in the absence of this local
company knowledge. For example, consider the scenario where the inventory turnover rate has increased
significantly. This should give rise to questions such as:

A Has the sales increased significantly? Ifiscthis from a oneff contract or is it likely to be a
permanent increase? If a permanent increase, is there any risk of overtrading where there is
insufficient capital to maintain inventory at a level which does not affect liquidity or a risk of stock
outs?

A Has the inventory level fallen? If so, is this because there is a restriction of credit and if so, why has
that occurred? Have there been significant wsitewns? If due to obsolescence, what is the
possible effect on the reported inventory? Is thengpany experiencing liquidity problems and
reducing inventory levels? Has there been a change in staff resulting in improved inventory
control?
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3.5 Interfirm comparisons and industry averages)

Financial ratios provide management with the means togjio® any significant changes arising during the
financial year. They are also a convenient way of assessing the current financial health and performance of
a company relative to similar companies in the same industrial sector. This enables a compajudtete
directly against its competitors, rather than merely against its own previous performance. Provided that
each company uses exactly the same bases in calculating ratiosfiimecomparisons provide an
objective means of evaluation. Every compasisubject to identical economic and market conditions in
GKS 3IAGBSY NBOASSG LISNA2RI Fff2gAy3 | YdzOK G NHzSNJ O2
several years. Intefirm comparisons are ideal for identifying the strengths and weakree$@& company
relative to its immediate competitors and the industrial sector. These comparisons can be analysed by both
internal users (management can take the necessary actions to maintain strengths and rectify weaknesses)
and external users (lendersredlitors, investors, etc.). There are numerous sources of -firter
information, but the organisations providing it can be divided into those which gather their data from
external published accounts and those which collect the data directly from the y@oheompanies on a
strictly confidential basis.

lllustration 7

Nonat Co is a manufacturer of domestic appliances. Its chairman is pleased with the results for the year
ended 31 December 2015 as they show a continuing improvement over recent past peréeman

| 26 SOSNE GKS FAYylIyOS RANBOG2NI aleéa GKIG  o0SGdSN
made by a comparison to other companies in the same sector. The finance director has obtained some
ratios forb 2 y I (i busirfess Saitor, based on a yead of 31 December 2015, which are:

Return on capital employed (ROCE) 18-5%
Net asset (total assets less current liabilities) turnovil-8 times
Gross profit margin 21%
Operating profit margin 10-3%
Current ratio 1.6:1
Gearing (debt/equity) 36%

The summarised financial statements of Nonat Co are:
Statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015

NOnnn
Revenue 62,500
Cost of sales (51,800)

(SN G G G ¢
Gross profit 10,700
Operating costs (5,800)
Finance costs (1,800)

(SN G G G ¢
Profit before tax 3,100
Income tax expense (1,000)

(SN G G G ¢
Profit for the year 2,100

(GG G G ¢
Statement of financial position as at 31 December 201.

NOn nn NOnnn

Assets
Non-current assets
Property 8,100
Owned pant 12,600
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Leased plant 12,200

CCCcgqgc
32,900

Current assets 16,400
CCCcCqgc

Total assets 49,300
CCCCqgcC

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity shares dfl1 each 9,000

Property revaluation surplus 4,000

Retained earmgs 10,600
CCCcCqgc
23,600

Non-current liabilities

10% loan notes 10,000

Finance lease obligations 6,400 16,400

CCCCcCCg

Current liabilities

Finance lease obligations 2,100

Other current liabilities 7,200 9,300

CCCCCCQ ¢ G ¢Cccq

Total equity and liabilities 49,300

CCCcCqcC
Required:

(a) Prepare for Nonat Co the equivalent ratios to those of its sector.
Note: The finance lease obligations should be treated as debt in the ROCE and gearing calculations.

(b) Analyse thdinancial performance and position of Nonat Co for the year to 31 December 2015 in
comparison to the sector averages.

Suggested Solution

(@) Equivalent ratios for Nonat Co
Nonat Co Sector

Average
Return on capital employed ((3,100 +0Q%(23,600 + 16,400 + 2,100
100) 11-6% 18-5%
Net asset turnover (62,500/40,000) 1-6times 1-8times
Gross profit margin (10,700/62,500 x 100) 17-1% 21%
Operating profit margin (4,900/62,500 x 100) 7-8% 10-3%
Current ratio (16,400:9,300) 1.8:1 1.6:1
Gearing (debt/equity) ((16,400 + 2,100)/23,600)  78% 36%

Analysis of comparative financial performance and position

Financial performance
As measured by the return on capital employed (ROCR)y | (i overall profigability does not compare
well with its competitors, underperforming the sector average profitability by over 37% ((18-5%
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11-6%)18-5%). The component parts of overall profitability are asset turnover and profit margins and, on
both of these, Nonat Co considerably underperforms fector average. The underperformance is worse

for profit margins than for asset utilisation and indeed it is the gross margin which is the main cause of the
unfavourable comparison. This may be due to a deliberate policy of ypriteng competitors (tancrease

sales) or it may be due to inefficient manufacturibg2 y I (i coht@dldibferating expenses, as shown

by the difference between gross and operating profit margins, is relatively good (at 9-3% of revenue
compared to 10-7% for the sector) whicbnfirms that it is gross profit margin which is the problem area,
assuming there are no differences in cost classification.

Nonat Co, is generating approximately 11% ((X-8-6)/1-8) less revenue from its assets compared to the
sector average which gaalready noted) is also contributing to overall lower profitability (ROCE). Apart
from the obvious implication that Non@n may be a less efficient manufacturer, there could also be a
number of other reasons for the lower asset utilisation. No@athasrevalued its property, whereas it is

not known if its competitors have (without the revaluatitn2 y I (i ROGEdvOud be 12-9% ignoring
additional depreciation). Some &f 2 y | (i plan2miave been recently acquired and therefore may
notbeuptoful LINRPRdAzOGAZ2Y OF LI OAGET YSIyAy3a GKS Odz2NNBy i
year in respect of production from this plant. The leasing of plant is usually more expensive than outright
purchase (although the finance costs would not affectCED Of course other competitors may also
experience some of these issues, the effects of which would be included in the sector average figures.

Financial position

The current ratio shows that the liquidity of Non@o.is within expected norms and corapes well with its
competitors. There may be an argument to exclude the current finance lease liability from the current ratio
which would then put it at 2-3:1 (16,400:7,200) which is perhaps a little higher than expected norms
(usually an upper limit of)2b 2 y I (i geardghliite high at more than double that of its competitors.

This obviously increases finance costs and with an interest cover of only 2-7 times (4,900/1,800), any
downturn in profit may place Nondato.in a difficult position. That $a&, a finance cost of 10% on the loan

notes (plus the finance costs of the lease obligations) is a lower percentage than the ROCE so shareholders
are getting a (slight) benefit from the debt, but this is at considerable risk.

It is tempting to say thatfiNonat Co.had not leased some of its plarnts gearing would be more in line

with the sector average, but this begs the question of how else would it have financed the plant. Issuing a
further loan note would leave Non&o.in a similar debt positionsanow; only a cash injection from a new
share issue would reduce the gearing. Another possibility is that Klamebuld structure its plant leases

such that they qualified as operating rather than finance leases. Indeed, it may be that Clomditeady

has some operating leased plant, but this cannot be determined from the information provided.

Conclusion

Nonat Co.is considerably underperforming its sector averages and the finance director is correct to say
that a comparison with its competitors is etter indication ofb 2 y' I (i cufrénp@rformance than
looking at the past trend of its own performance, subject to the definitions and accounting policies used by
other companies in the sector.

The analysis indicates Non@b.may need to look at itpricing policy or manufacturing efficiency and also
needs to investigate a strategy of reducing its gearing.

40 CONCLUSION

We could calculate hundreds of ratios from a set of financial statements; the expertise lies in knowing
which ratios provide releant information. For example, an investor would be interested in the availability

of profits to pay dividends, whereas a credit controller of a supplier would be more interested in a
Odzat2YSNR& FoAfAdGe G2 LI @& I yR tiod ThzieRtive Sefubesydéighii NI U
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50 SUMMARY

A Ratios are one means of analyg financial statements.

A Ratios can be grouped into categories such as Profitabiliuidity (short term
financial stability), Efficiency, Gearing (Long term financial stability) hand Investor
ratios.

A Different users of financial statements are interested in different ratios.

A Horizontal of intracompany analysis involves comparing tha&rent year with the
previous year(s) and noting any significant changes.

A Intercompanyt Y I f @aAa Ay@2f @gSa O2YLI NRAy3I +y SyidiieQa
of comparable standard

A Ratios are only as good as the underlying information and this musgftiver be considered as to
its reliability and the degree to which it may have been manipulated.

6.0 TUTORMARKED ASSIGNMENT

Progress Ltd. sells jewelry through stores in retail shopping centers throughout Ghana. In the last three
years, it has experiendedeclining turnover and profitability and Management is wondering if this is
related to the industry as a whole. It has engaged a consultant who produced average ratios of many
businesses. Below are the ratios that have been provided by the consuttathd jewelry business
sector based on year end of 3December 2012.

Return on Capital employed 16.8%
Net assets to Turnover 1.4 times
Gross profit margin 35%
Operating profit margin 12%
Current ratio 1.25:1
Average Ingntory turnover rate 3 times
Trade payables payment period 64 days
Debt to equity 38%

The Financial Statements of Progress Ltd. For the year endddegember 2012 are:
INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

N N
000 000

Revenue 168,000
Opening inventory 24,900
Purchases 131,700

156,600
Closing inventory 30,600 126,000
Gross profit 42,000
Operating costs (29,400)
Finance costs (2,400)
Profit before tax 10,200
Income tax 3.000
Profit for the year 7,200

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2012

99 S



N N
Norcurrent assets:
Property and shop fittings 76,800
Deferred develomnent expenditure 15,000
91,800
Current assets:
Inventories 30,600
Bank 3,000 33,600
125,400
Equity and liabilities:
Sated Capital 45,000
Capital surplus (Revaluations Surplus) 9,000
Income surplus 25,800
79,800
Non-current liabilities :
20% Loan notes 24,000
Current liabilities:
Trade payables 16,200
Current tax payable 5,400 21,600
Equity & liabilities 125,400
0] Stated Capital is made up of 45,000 @&ty Shares of no par value issued at a consideration of

GH¢1000 per share.
(i) The deferred development expenditure is in respect of an investment in a process to manufacture
artificial precious gem for future sale by Progress Ltd in the fietaélry marke.

Required:

€)) Prepare for Progress Ltd. equivalent ratios that have been provided by the consultant.

(b) t'aasSaa GKS TFAYFYyOAlFf YR 2LISNIGAY3 LISNF2NXIyO
benchmarks.

8.0 Further Reading
Aborede, R (2006) Pratical Approach to Advanced Financial Accounthfl, EETODA Ventures Ltd,

Lagos, Nigeria.
ICAN Study Pack (2009) P.Enéncial Accountingllagos: V I. Publishers, Nigeria

t - dzZf =S D® 6 mdy Book KedgihgrSANdounButtedvibith®. \eXPablishers, Great Britain.
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1.0 INTRODUCTION
Thei SN GodzaAySaa O2YoAylGA2yé Aa dzaSR (2 RSAONAOG
owned and operated as separate entities come together to become a single entity under the same

ownership. Theimplication of this is that the separate businessdsdigitontinue their ownership and
come under a single ownership.Busss combination can take mafgyrms:

(&  Amalgamation
(b) Merger

(c) Absorption

(d)  Acquisition

(e)  Takeover

U] Reconstruction

2.0 Objectives

p>

Understand meaning of Amalgamation, Absorption and External

Reconstuction.

Understand the reasons for business combination.

Understand the accounting treatment of business combination

Understand the distinction between Amalgamation, Absorption and External Reconstruction.
Understand forms of Amalgamation

v v

3.0 Main Content
3.1 Forms of business combination
Amalgamation

Amalgamation signifies the transfer of all or some part of assets and liabilities of one or more than one
existing company or two or more companies to a new company. It is the blending of two or more existing
companies into one undertaking; the shareholder of each blending companies becoming substantially the
shareholders of the company which will carry on blended undertaking. There may be amalgamation by
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transfer of one or more undertaking to a new companyt@nsfer of one or more undertaking to an
existing company.

Merger

A merger refers to a combination of two or more companies, usually of not greatly disparate size, into one
company. A merger involves the mutual decision of two companies to combineemminie one entity; it

Oty 06S aSSy la I RSOAaA2y YIRS o0& (g2 WwWSljdzadtaQo
combine together and form a new entity. It is a marriage between two companies of roughly same size. It
is thus a combination ofato or more companies in which one company survives on its own name and the
other ceases to exist as legal entity.

Absorption

The process in which one company acquires the business of another company is known as Absorption. In
this process, a smaller exisj company is overpowered by an existing larger company. No new company is
established in absorption. There are two companies involved in this process, i.e. the company who takes
over the business of the other company is known as Absorbing Company, acmhtpany whose business

is taken over is known as Absorbed Company

Acquisition

Acquisition refers to the acquiring of ownership right in the property and asset without any combination of
companies. Thus in acquisition two or more companies may remaipémdient, separate legal entity, but
there may be change in control of companies. Acquisition results when one company purchase the
controlling interest in the share capital of another existing company.

Takeover

There is no tangible difference between acquisitionand atakeover both words can be used
interchangeab} - the only difference is that each word carries a slightly different connotation.
Typically, takeover is used to referencénastile takeovewhere the company being acquired is
resising. In contrast, acquisition is frequently used to describe more friendly acquisitions

External Reconstruction

CKS GSNY¥ WOEGSNYIE wSO2yadNHOGA2yQ YSIHya G(KS 6AYyR
a new one after a rearrangement & G & T A Yy (3 -t LRaAGA2y® ¢KdzaX G
wSO2yaiNHzOGA2Yy QY 2y Ss3 Ayﬁxya dzLJ 2F +y SEA&GAYy 3 (

financial position. Such arrangement shall be approved by its shareholders and creditbishall be
sanctioned by the court. The accounting treatment is similar to that of absorption.

3.2 Reasons/benefits of business combination include:

(@)  The desire to gain larger share of the market.

(b)  The desire to attain synergy.

(c) The desire to establishsalid capital base.

(d)  To provide efficient customer service.

(e) To acquire a base adequately for raw material sourcing in the case of a manufacturing

firm.
0] To be able to challenge a major competition.
(9) In order to meet legal and statutory requirement.
When bugnesses amalgamate, two major accounting problems arise, viz:
(0 Those concerned with closing the books of the discontinuing businesses which are

being wound up;

3.3 Closing the Books of the Discontinuing Companies
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To close the books of the discontinuingrmgaanies, the following ledger accounts are necessary;
(@) Realization account.
(b) New company account.
(c) Sundry members account.
(d) Each liability account, for example creditors, liquidation expenses payable/creditors for
dissolution expenses, loan or debenture acount.
(e) Bank account.
() Components of purchase consideration, for example ordinary shares issued, preference
shares issued, debenture stock issued and cash paid.

Realisation Account

This is the account in which the profit or loss on the digsan of a company is determined. It is
usually prepared in a columnar form. The number of columns will depend on the number of companies
amalgamating.

New Company Account

This is the account where the purchase consideration and related transaetiertseated. The purchase
consideration, when agreed, is debited to this account (remembertti@credit entry goes to reakgion
account) while transactions relating to the purchase consideration are credited to the account when
settlement of the agre@ purchase consideration is made. The account can therefore be regarded as a
GastTLIyOAy3Iéeg | O02dzy i @

Purchase Consideration
This is the aggregate amount, which the new company is to pay the owners (that is the stakeholders) of
the discontinuing businesand creditors. The components of the purchase consideration in amalgamation
of companies may comprise of some or all of the following:

(i) Ordinary shares issued by the new company.

(ii) Preference shares issued by the new company.

(iif) Debenture stock issued by the neampany.

(iv) Cash given by the new company.

(v) Liabilities of the old companies taken over by the new company.

Where liabilities are taken over, they form part of the purchase consideration. Such liabilities are debited

to the liabilities account and creditel2t G KS ySg O2YLI yeQa | 002dzyid/ 2°
consideration account

On settlement of the purchase consideration as agreed, the account of each of the components of the
LIJZNOKF aS O2yaARSNI GA2Yy A& RS0AGSR gKAES GKS ySg O
On distribution to the owners of discontinuing businesses, the sundry members account is debited and the
account of each of the components of the purchase consideration is credited.
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3.4 Accounting Entries for Closing Discontinuing Businesses
The accounting entries necessary to close the book of discontinuing businesses being liquidated
are summarized below.
S/No. Events Account to be Debited Account to be Credited

1. Book value of the assetaken over by theRealisation Account Individual Asset Account
company at the date afessation.

2. Liabilities taken over by the new company |Individual Liability Account New Company Account
the date of cessation, (if part of purchag
consideration).

3. Agreed purchase consideration bSgs /2YLI yeQa ! O Realisation Account

(Includindiabilities taken over).

4. Realisation expenses Realisation Account Realisation expenses
payable/creditors for payable account/
realisation expenses. creditors account for

realisation expenses.

5. Portion of the realisation expenses paid by [Liquidation expenses Bank Account
existing company being discontinued.

6. Portion of the realisation Included in the purchase Realisation Account
expenses to be paid by the consideration recordd in

new company. (3) above. OR New
[/ 2YLI yeaqQa | 002 dzy

7. Discount received frontreditors. Creditors account Realisation Account

8. Profit on realisation (this is Realisation account Sundry shareholders and

to be derived) debenture holers account

9. Loss on realisation Sundry shareholders and Realisation Account

(this is to be derived) debenture holders account
10. Transfer of balances Share capital reserves and Sundry shareholders and
on share capital, lebenturesaccount. debenture holders account
reserves and debdares Accounts.

11. Settlement of the agreed Bank and/or shares and/or bS¢ /2YLI yeQa ! 002dzyi

purchase consideration by lebentures in new
the new company. company account.

12. Settlement of liabities Creditors account Bank account
not taken over by the new company.

13. Distribution of balances. Sundry shareholders and Bank and/or shares and/

debenture holders account or debentures in the
New company account.

14. IArrears of prefeence Preference dividends in Sundry members Preference Shares account
dividend includedin the balance sheet as liabilprrears.

15. Cumulative preference Retained profit or any Sundry members
dividend in arrears but not other revenue reseve preference account.

included in the balance sheet and not topccount.
forfeited.

16. Arrears of debenture interest Retained profit or any Debenture Stock Account
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(if any). bther revenue account.

17.

Ordinary share dividend Proposed dividend account Sundry members shares

included in the balance sheet. account.

3.6 Accounting Entries in the Books of the New Company

The accounting entries in the books of the new company can be divided into two:
(a) The amalgamation journal
(b) The statement of financial Position after amalgamation.

Amalgamation Journal

This is a composite journal which is prepared to reflect the assets and liabilities taken over as well as
goodwill or capital reserve on amalgamation.

On the debit side of the joudal are all tangible assets taken over at revaluation value or taken over value.
However, if the takeover values are not given, it is assumed that the assets are taken over at book values.
The takeover value will only be used when such assets are not esvdfuevalued, the revaluation value

will be used instead of the takeover value.

On the credit side of the journal are all the components of purchase consideration (including liabilities
taken over) as contained on the credit side of the new companyustda the books of the discontinuing
businesses.

The difference between the debit side and the credit side of the joumepresents goodwill or capital
reserve. If the balancing figure on the journal is an asset (i.e. debit balance) it is referregoiodasll. If it
is a claim over the assets (i.e. credit balance) it is referred to as capital reserve.

Illustration 1

Luck & Co. has been making losses over the last few years. Its statement of financial
position at 31 December, 2013 showed the following
Luck & Co. Statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2013

N N
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 80,000
Current assets:
Inventory 20,000
Receivables 40,000 60,000
140,000
Equity and Liabilities:
Ordinary capital 100,000
Retained earnings (140,000)
Secured loan stock 100,000
Payables 80,000
140,000
On liquidation, the assets would realise the following:
N N
Property, plant and equipment 30,000
Inventory 12,000
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Receivables

w
o
o
o
o

If the company continues to trade for the next four years, profit after char§iz@,000 per annum
as depreciation on the property, plant and equipment would be as follows:

N
2014 4,000
2015 20,000
2016 26,000
2017 28,000
18,000

Assume that there would be no surplus cash to settle the payables and dtwuk holders until
after four years when inventory and receivables could be realised at their book values.
Required:

(@) advise the management of Luck and Co on theasitiavailable to them and
(b) redraft the statement of financial position of Luck and Co after the exercise.
Solution
(@)  Options available to the management of Luck & Co:

Option 1

If liquidation takes place now, the amount that will be available to ttamlstock holders is
N78,000, leaving them with a deficiency#22,000. In this case, there would be nothing
for the creditors and shareholders.

Option 2

If trading continues for the next four years and the estimated results are achieved, the
available ash would be as follows:

N
Profit 78,000
Depreciation 80,000
Inventory 20,000
Receivables 40,000
218,000

With this option, loan stockholders and creditors would be paid in #100,000 and
NB0,000 respectively, leavidg38,000 avdable for the shareholders.

However, the loan stockholders probably have the right to appoint a receiver and would insist on
some compensation for not enforcing their right.

In addition, the creditors might also expect compensation for having to waitolur years before
receiving payment.

Option 3

106 S



The loan stockholders and creditors may be persuaded to waive the amounts owed to
them in exchange for ordinary shares to enable them have full participation in the future
profit of the company. Terms aluch an exchange might be as follows:

0] 75,000 units ofN1 ordinary shares to the loan stockholders (3Mif ordinary
shares for everjd4 of loan stock)

(i) 40,000 units ofN1 ordinary shares to the creditors (1 8ifl ordinary shares for
everyN2 due)

(iif)  25,000units ofN1 ordinary shareholders (1 &l ordinary shares for every 4 of the
existingN1 ordinary share.

(b) LUCK&CO

Redrafted Statement of Financial position after the exercise.

N
Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment 80,000
Inventory 20,000
Receivables 40,000
140,000
Equity 140,000

4.0 Conclusion

Amalgamation and Absorption signify the merging of two of more companies either for eliminating
competition among them or for growing in size to reap the economics of 4sage production or for
controlling the market.

5.0 Summary

Businesscombination describean arrangement where two or more businesses owned .
operated as separate entities come together to become a single entity under the
ownership.

Amalgamation, meger, absorption, acquisition, takeover and reconstruction are diffe
forms of business takeover.

6.0 Tutor-Marked Assessment
Small Company Limited and Big Company Limited have decided to combine
business operations to become Large Company Liinite
The balances in the terminal balance sheets of the combining businesses ar

follows:
Small Co. Ltd. Big Co. Ltd.
NOY NOY
Fixed Assets 27.50 35.00
Goodwill 10.00 3.00
Other Assets _2.50 21.00
40.00 59.00

Large Company Limites io take over all the assets of the combining business
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by the issuance of its shares on the basis of 3 new shaid$.00 each for
existingM2.50 worth of Net Tangible Assets in each of the combining compar

A How many shares are due to the sharetek of Small Compar
Limited?

A What is the total number of shares issued by Large Company Lim

A What is the value of purchased goodwill from the transaction?

7.0 References/Further Readings

Jennings A. R. (199inancial AccountindP Publicédn, London
Lewis L. &Pendrill. 81981)Advanced Financial AccountirRjtman, London

Wood F. & Sangster A. (199Bhsiness Accounting 8", ed. United Kingdom, Financial Tir
Professional Ltd
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

The ideal goal that every company strives to achieve is a balanced capital structure. A balanced capital
structure is one in which théong term funds (share capital plus long term liabilities) adequately cover
investment in long term assets and leave a surplus which substantially covers current assets. A balanced
capital structure also implies that the gearing ratio should be optirdhen a company is faced by
problems arising from imbalance in capital structure, it may have to carry out a capital reconstruction to
redress the problem. Capital reconstruction refers to theorganization of capital and/or rarrangement

of the rights d& shareholders as between themselves in order to revive an ailing company or transfer its
operation to another company. Indicators of imbalance capgalcture include overcapitakdion,
overtrading, unhealthy working capital ratio, excessive amounesérve and capital not represented by
available assets. Reconstruction can takgof the three forms:

A Through alteration of capital
A Through reduction of capital
A Through scheme of external reconstruction (discussed under business combinations)

2.0 Obijectives
3.0 Main Content

3.1 Meaning of Reconstruction and Reorganization

Internal reconstruction means a recourse undertaken to make necessary changes in the capital structure of

a company without liquidating the existing company. In internal reconstroctieither the existing
company is liquidated, nor is a new company incorporated. It is a scheme in which efforts are made to balil
2dzi GKS O2YLJye FTNRY f2aaSa |yR Lidzi Ad Ay LINRTFA
debenture holders, credits etc. Under internal reconstruction, the accumulated trading losses and
fictitious assets are written off against the sacrifice made by these interest holders in the form of reduction

of paid up value of their interest.

3.2: Situations which call for imrnal reconstruction of a company
The following situations are generally responsible for the internal reconstruction of a company:
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(YWhen the capital structure of a company is complex and it is required to make it simple.

(i) When there are huge accumtaa losses and it is required to write off these losses to depict a better
position of the company.

(iif) When a part of the capital is not represented by available tangible assets.

(iv) When change is required in the face value of shares of the compdhgtgbey can become attractive

for future investors.

Internal reconstruction of a company can be carried out in the following different ways. These are as
under:

(A) Alteration of Share Capital; and

(B) Reduction in Share Capital

A capital reductionis 8 OKSYS I LILINR2 PSR o0& G(GKS O2dz2NII Ay @KAOK
paid up share capital is reduced.

3.3 Rule for Capital Reduction
The general rule, going by section 105 of CAMA, 1990, is that a company is not permitted to
reduce its share gital.

a. A company, however, may reduce its issued share capital on fulfillment of the following
conditions;
l. It must be authorised by its articles;
II. It must be by a special resolution passed at a general meeting;
lll.  The resolution must specify the amount ofitection; and
IV. The capital reduction must be approved by the court.

¢KS LJzN1J22aS 2F NBdANAY3I O2dzNI Qa | wihdalbtehést mapbe § 2
jeopardi®d should the company embark on the capital reduction scheme. They arefaherentitled to
object to the scheme. Specifically, Section 107(4) requires the company to apply to the court for an order
confirming the reduction, after passing a special resolution, while section 107(2) provides that every
creditor of the company whes entitled to any debt or claim admissible in proof against the company shall
be entitled to object to the scheme fif;
(a) The proposed reduction of share capital involves a diminution of liability in respect of unpaid share
capital; and
(b) It involves the paymet to a shareholder of any paid up share capital or any other form of
reduction.
Section 107(4) empowers the court to settle the list of creditors entitled to object to the scheme.

All these provisions are to ensure that the creditors are protected andaisuffer any loss as a
result of the capital reduction scheme unless they allow it by refusing to come forward and object
when their interest is not protected.

Capital reduction should not be construed to be the same as Capital Reconstruction. Théslatte
wider and embraces the former. A company in severe financial difficulties which needs to reach a
compromise with itcreditorsmay embark on capital reconstruction. Whereas, in capital reduction
scheme, only the existing shareholders (ordinary andfepemce) are involved, in capital
reconstruction external creditors are involved.

3.4 Steps in capital Reconstruction
Stepl. Total Amount LossAscertained:

At first, total amount of loss which is to be writtaif should be ascertained. This includes idd&lalance of

Profit and Loss Account, all fictitious assets, like Goodwill, Preliminary Expenses, Discount on issue of
shares and Debentures etc., any fall in the value of assets, any increase in liability or arrears of cumulative
preference dividend etdn short, only net assets are left.
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Step2. Writing-off the Lossso Ascertained:

After ascertaining the total loss, it becomes necessary to reduce the capitals contributed by the various
parties, viz equity shareholders, preference shamders, unsected creditors and creditors having a
floating charge. The above persons suffer the loss. Practically, equity shareholders are to suffer the
maximum amount of loss. They also agree to bear the loss to the maximum amount since they know very
well that, in reality, their capital does not exist at all. As a result, if the company goes into liquidation they
will get nothing. Therefore, for a better prospect, to get something in the form of dividend and bonus
shares in future they agree to share such losses.ifBbhe amount of loss is such that it is not covered by

the equity capital alone, in that case, preference shareholders are asked to suffer such loss. The loss may
also be borne by the unsecured creditors and creditors having a floating charge. Undecumostances
preferential creditors or secured creditors (up to the extent of realisable value of assets pledged) are asked
to make any sacrifice.

Step3. Compensatiorto be madeby the VariousParties:

Distribution of loss among the various parties dependsthe circumstances. If the loss is to be borne by

the equity shareholders alone understanding that the loss will ultimately by compensated by future
earnings, question of compensation does not arise. But if preference shareholders are asked to make any
sacrifice (i.e., if they are to share the amount of loss) they must be compensated by increasing their rate of
dividend in such a way that their total earning must not be affected by the reduction of the capital. The
same can be done by a company only whba trend of profit is not fluctuating. Of course, there is
another alternative which can be followed for this purpose. That is, a part of preference share capital may
be converted into equity share capital which gives them an opportunity of exercisiimg vights together

with the higher rate of dividend in this converted part in order to compensate their losses.

If debentureholders or creditors are asked to make any sacrifice they should also be compensated in the
same manner. They should be paid &sle for the balance or they should be given some sort of security for
the rest. Debenturéholders may be given a high rate of interest.

Arrear preference dividends are generally cancelled since it may create some difficulties if paid in cash. In
that casedeposit certificates may be issued as against compensation made to the preference shareholders.
This is preferable since (a) it will not affect the voting power, and (b) the certificates can be redeemed
when the opportunity will arise.

Step 4. Arrangemens for Working Capital:
Scheme of capital reduction will be successful only when there will be proper provision for working capital.

Thefollowing methodsmay be advocatedfor the purpose:

(i) to issue some shares;

(i) to request debenturénolders to extad their loans;

(iii) to reduce the share capital to partly paid amount so that the rest of the call (money) may be made
when needed; and

(iv) to invite any fresh loan (shergrm).

lllustration 1

Thefollowing is the abridgedStatementof FinancialPosition of Hind Ltd. asat 31.12.2014

Liabilities N Asset N

Paidup Capital Goodwillat Cost 30,000
10,000,6%CumulativePref. SharefMN10each100,000 Net TangiblesAssets 152,000
15,000EquityShareofN10each 150,000P&LAccoung8,000

250,000 250,000
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The Preference share dividend is in arrear for three years. The net tangible assets are estimated to be
worth M136,000 on the expectation that the annual profits will 8420,000. Draft a scheme of
reconstruction to be submitted to the Directors mentioning the important matters which would require
consideration and state the effect of such proposal on the two classes of shareholders. Redraft the Balance
Sheet.

Solution:
(a) Estimated total loss which is tee written-off may be computed as:
N
Goodwill 30,000
Profit & Loss Account 68,000
Net Tangible Assets (maybe reduced by 22,000
Loss to be writteroff 120,000

The company has been running at a loss and as such, has shown an accumulatéd&®;600 in the
asset side of theéStatement of Financial Positiaand at the same time the Goodwill Account which has
shown in the asset side has no value at all. A deductid¥28f000 is made by way of depreciation against
net tangible assets on the agnption that the same was overvalued, and, hence, net tangible assets are
shown at their real values.

(b) Since preference shareholders have priority as to the return of capital they are not made to suffer any
loss. As a result, the entire amount of las$o be borne by the equity shareholders. Of course, preference
shareholders may be asked to waive their arredividendamounting toN18, 000.

(N100,000 x 6/100 x 3) which is a loss on the part of them. But in view of the sacrifices made by them for
arrear dividend, rate of their dividend may be increased at 8% instead of 6% by way of compensation.

(c) From the above, it is quite clear that equity shareholders may be asked to suffer a#i£d @00 i.e.
each share will be valued &2 each, or, wilbe reduced by8 each.

(d) Value of each equity shareM10 each may be reduced to a shareMdf each N2 calledup. Therefore,
this will help the company to make a further callM2 per share resulting in a cash inflow 480,000
(15,000 xd2) and thesame may be used by way of working capital. At the same time, it will help to- write
off the loss.

(e) Expectediuture incomeon the basisof the aboveproposals:

N
Profit (after tax, may be assumed) 20,000
Less: Transfer to Reserve @ 25% (5,000)
15,000
Less: Preference Dividend @ 8% (8,000)
Profit available for equity shareholders 7,000

Rate of Dividen&———

30.000% 100=23.33%

If the above scheme is accepted, it will not only yield a return of 23.33% which is highlgcsatisbut
also the transfer which will be made out of profit to reserve fund @ 25% is very much desirable on the part

of the company.
TheStatementof FinancialPositionunder the circumstancewill be:

Liabilities N Assets N
10,000,6%Cum.Pef. Sharesof M10 each,fully paid1p0,000 Net TangibledAssets 130,00
15,000EquitySharesf M4 eachfully paid 60,000(1\‘ Bank _EOTOOO
160,00 160,000
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lllustration 2
Rich and Poor Construction Company Plc is in financial difficulty olfbwing is the Trial Balance of the
company as at 30 June, 2015.

DR CR
580,000
Lar.1d. 136,230
Building (Net)
Ordinary shares of 1 each
5% curmpreference shares at 1 each 500,000
350,000

8% Debenture (2020) 400,000
Equipment (Net) 53770
Goodwiill 200,000
Investment in shares (quoted) 135,000
Inventory and work in pogress 01,235

253,460
Debtors 199,105
Profit/Loss Account ’
Interest payable on debenture 64,000
Trade creditors 481,235
Loan from Directors 80,000
Bank draft 183,565

2,058800 2,058,800

Authorized capital is 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 1.00 each and 500,000 5% cumulative preference shares
of 1.00 each.
During the meeting ofhe shareholders and directors it was decided to carry out a scheme of internal
reconstruction.
The following scheme was agreed:
(a) Each ordinary share is to be reduced to a share of 25k.
(b) The existing 5% cumulative preference shares are to be exchanged foissigvof 175,000 8%
cum preference shares of 1.00 each and 700,000 ordinary shares of 25k each.
(c) Ordinary shareholders accepted a reduction in the nominal value of the shares of 1.00 for 25k, with
subscription to a new issue on the basis of 1 to 1 ateemf 30k per share.
(d) 30,000 of Directors loan is to be cancelled. The balance is to be settled by issue of 50,000 ordinary
shares of 25k each.
(e) Goodwill and loss in the profit and loss account are to be written off.
(H Investments in shares are to be sold anket price of 300,000.
(g) Bank overdraft to be repaid, 100,000 is to be paid to trade creditors and the balance payable
installment
20% of debtorareto be written off.
(h) Assets are revalued as follows:

Land 1,450,000
Building 400,000
Equipment 50,000

Inventoryand Workin-Progress 250,000
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Required:
Show the necessary journal entries to effect the reconstruction scheme.

Debit Credit
5ANBOG2NRa [21 Y 80,000
Capital reconstruction 30,000
Ord. Shares (50,000 @ 25k each 12,500
Share premium 37,500
Write2 FF YR A&aadzS 2F akKlNBa (2 i
Capital Construction 399,105
Goodwill 200,000
P&L Account 199,105
Goodwill and Loss written off
Bank 300,000
Investment 135,000
Capital reconstruction 165,000
Sale of investment at market price
Bank overdraft 183,565
Trade Creditors 100,000
Bank 283,565
Payment of overdraft and part payment of creditors
Capital reconstruction 50,629
Debtors
20% written off debtor account 50,629
Land 870,000
Building 263,770
Inventoryand WIP 251,235
Equipmen 3,770
Capital reconstruction 878,765
Revaluation of asset

4.0 Conclusion

A company in severe financial difficulties can carry out internal restructuring through share capital
alteration or capital reduction.

5.0 Summary

The stes to be taking for capital reconstruction are:
A TotalAmountLossAscertained:
A Writing-off the Lossso Ascertained:
A Compensatiorio be Madeby the VariousParties:
A Arrangementdor WorkingCapital:

6.0 Tutors Marked Assignment
What are the benefits of irnal reorgargation

7.0 Reference/ Further reading
CHOAYSKAYS | & 9@ 6HnnmE SOds®NEKEQD A YR 2N
Associates, Lagos

Federal Government of Nigeria (2004) Companies and Allied MattersMRc€20 LFR 2004

Igben, O.R. (2004financial Accounting Made Simple-TEDDA Ventures Limited
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UNIT FOUR: ACCOUNT FOR BAWKISH SPECIAL RELEVANT LEGISLATION)
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3.1 law and regulations of BanksMgeria
3.2 Specific Guidance

4.0 Conclusion

5.0 Summary

6.0 Tutor Marked Assignment

7.0 References/Further Reading

1.0 Introduction

Financial statements of banks are guided and regulated by legislation enacted and amended from time to
time. These laws and regiion explain when and how financials of banks should be report and presented.
Bank financial reports are regulated by standards issued by International accounting Standard board, with
IFRS 10; financial instrumedisclosure occupying a prominent place.

2.0 Objectives

At the end of this unit, you should be able to:
A Identify the relevant laws that regulate banking operation in Nigeria.
A Identify some specific provisions relating to account of banks.
A Describe financial statement of bank

3.0 Main Content

3.1 law and regulations of Banks iNigeria

The Laws regulating the establishment of banks in Nigeria include principally:
Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap. C. 20 LFN 2004; Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act, Cap.
B.3 LFN 2004; and Central BanKNiferia Cap C4 LFN 2004.

Companies and Allied Matters Act. (CAMA)
Banks operating in Nigeria are corporate bodies. They must firstly be incorporated as a company under
the CAMA by complying with the requirements in respect of registration of such a cympae
Sections 18, and 35 CAMA See also Section 2(1) BOFIA. Once a company is incorporated, it becomes a
body corporate by the name contained in the memorandum of association to carry out business. See
Sections 37 and 38 (1) CAMA.

Banks and other Finaral Institutions Act. (BOFIA)

The BOFIA was enacted in 1991 along with a new CBN law to ensure close monitoring and complete control
of the financial system in the country by the regulatory body. The BOFIA repealed the Banking Act 1969
and consequently ab repealed the Banking Amendment Acts 1970, 1972, 1975 and 1976.

BOFIA regulates banking and other financial institutions by prohibiting the carrying on of such businesses in
Nigeria without valid license owned by a company duly incorporated in Nidgerairsuance of prudence

and accountability, BOFIA makes it mandatory for a bank not later than four (4) months after the end of its
FY to:
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(i) Publish in a daily Newspaper printed in and circulating in Nigeria and approved by the CBN (BOFIA
Section 27

(i) Disclose in detail in such publication penalties paid as a result of contravention of any policy guidelines
which are in force during the FY in question and au@itoeport shall reflect such contravention (BOFIA
Section 27 (2)); and,

(i) Any bankvhich fails to comply with any of the requirements of Section 27 is in respect of each failures
guilty of an offence and liable on conviction to a findd&00,000 (BOFIA Section 27(5).

Central Bank of Nigeria Act 1958.

The Central Bank of Nigeria was ddished as a body corporate under S.1. CBN Act. The Act provides for
the powers of the Bank to print currency notes and coins and the monopoly of issuing them.The general
operation powers of the CBN are contained elaborately under Section 26 while thatiestit is
prohibited from undertaking are stipulated under S. 28. The CBN is entrusted with certain services which
it renders to the Federal. It is also mandated to act as banker to other banks in Nigeria and outside
Nigeria, very importantly, it has paer to make and alter rules and regulations for the good order and
management of its activities.

Nigeria Deposit Insurance Corporation Act Cap N102 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria (NDIC Act)

The Act grant complementary oversight responsibilities to NagBeposit Insurance Corporation (NDIC)
NDIC effectively took off in 1989 and was set up to provide deposit insurance and related services for
banks in order to promote confidence in the banking industry. The NDIC is empowered to examine the
books and afiirs of insured banks and other deposit taking financial institutions. Licensed banks are
mandated to pay 15/16 of 1 per cent of their total deposit liabilities as insurance premium to the NDIC. A
depositor's claim is limited to a maximumgb0, 000.00 irthe event of a bank failure.

Bills of Exchange Act. (BEA)

This Act deals with cheques, which is a bill of exchange that is commonly used by commercial banks,
6GoK2aS 0daAaAYySaa AySERARSGA (§ K51 K RS BOFEASEYReToD RS |j dzS
{SOGA2Y ToO . 9! a ! OKSljdzS A& | oAttt 2F SEOKIy3IS R
provisions of the BEA apply to a cheque. There are specific provisions in respect of cheques under the
BEA such as presentment of cheque for pagim®. 74, crossed cheques. S-848 In Addition, other

provisions of the BEA in respect of bills of exchange generally apply to cheques, so banks are bound by
them.

Other statutes regulate the activities and financial reporting of the Banking indinsiigeria are:
A Nigeria interbank settlement system guideline (NIBSS)
A Nigeria Automated Clearing system guideline (NACS)
A Security and Exchange Commission Guidelines (SEC)
A Circular issued from time to time by the Ministry of Finance
A International Accountig standards issued by International accounting Standard Board

3.2 Specific Guidance

Minimum Capital

The President shall on the advice of the Central bank of Nigeria (CBN) determine, from time to time, the
appropriate minimum paid up share capital of eawdtegory of banks subject to subsection (1) of this
AaSO0A2Yyd® ¢KS YAYAYdzY aKINBK2f RSNEQ FdzyR 2F ol ylAYy

(a) Universal banks be &5 billion

(b) Bureau de change be 8600 million
(© Micro finance banks be 820 million
(d) Mortgage institutions be aiN2 billion
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Cash Reserves, Special Deposits and specified Liquid Assets

The BOFIA requires every bank to maintain with the CBN, cash reserves and special deposit and hold
specified liquid assets or stabilization securities, as ttse ¢aay be, as prescribed by the Central Bank by
virtue of section 39 of central bank of Nigeria Act, 1991 (as amended) where both assets and liabilities are
due.

For the purpose of this section, specified liquid assets are:

(a) Currency notes and coin whielne legal tender in Nigeria;

(b) Balances at the bank;

(c) Net balances at any licensed bank and money at call in Nigeria;

(d) Treasury bills and treasury certificates issued by the Federal Government;

(e) Inland bills of exchange and promissory notesliscountableat the Central Bank; and

() Negotiable Certificate of depiispproved by the Central Bank

(g) Suchother negotiable instrumentmayfrom time to time be approved by the Central Bank.
Conditions for payment of dividend®o bank
shall pay dividend until:

(a) All its preliminary expenses, orgaregional expenses, share selling expenses, brokerageedos
incurred and other capitalésl expenses not represented by tangible assets have been waffen

(b) Adequate provision has been made for contingent losses on risksafiabilities, off balance sheet
commitment; and

(c) It has complied with capital ratio requirement specified by section 13(1) of the Act.

Reserve for Small Scale Industries
CBN monetary and credit policies require each bank to set aside 10 percenpudfits for the financing
and promotion of small scale industries in Nigeria.

Illustration 1

An extract from the books of EZINWA Commercial Bank Plc revealed the following as
at 31 December.

Nmillion
Issued Ordinary Share Capital 250,000
StatutoryReserves 189,000
Profit Before Taxation 102,000
Taxation 36,000
Profit After Taxation 66,000
Dividend paid 20,000

Calculate how much should be transferred to reserve in relation to small and medium
enterprises equity investment scheme. séiming the bank has only been in existence
for five years.

SMIEIS Reserve 5% of PAT

5x 66,000million
100
N3,300m

Prudential guidelines
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A credit facility is deemed to be performing if the payment of both principal and irttaresup to date in
accordance with the agreed repayment terms. The interest accrued on it should be recognised as income
in the financial statemenfor performing loan madgrovision of 1%.

Prudential guidelines issued by the CBN required banks to glassiperforming loans and advances, and
to provide for loan impairment as follows:

Substandard credi] Doubt credit facilities Lost credit facilities
facilities
Remark Facilities remair Facilities inactive fo[ Facilites inactive for
inactive for 90 days | 180-360 days over 360 days
Interest income Interest suspended | Interest suspended | Interest suspended
Principal amount 10% provision 50% provision 100% provision
lllustration 2
The following are extracted from the notes to the accounts of Moore ComiaddBank Plc
Loans and advances: N YA
Performing 400
Non-performing- Substandard 90
Doubtful 150
Lost 40

Calculate the amount of provision for bad debts.
Solution

PerformngqN400 @ 1% N4m

Substandard90m @ 10% N9m
DoubtfulN150 @ 50% N75m
LostN40m @ 100% NAOm

128m

PREPARATION OF PUBLISHED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR BANK

Banks and other financial institutions are also required comply with the accountir
requirements of Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act, 1991 (as amended), in pr
their financial statements.

Disclosure requirements

In addition to the disclosure requirements of IAS Nolrffprmation to be disclosedn
Financial Statement&anks should also disclose the following:

(@) Accounting policies in respect of identification and provision for losses of
performing loans, nature of offStatement of financial position engagements, such as le
of credis, bonds, guarantees, indemnities, acceptances, and trade related contingenci
as documentary crats and methods used to recogriincome thereon.

(b) Income statements, stating each principal revenue item:
() interest income, split between bankd nonbank sources
(i) interest expenses, split between bank and Amank  sources.
(iii) Credit related fee income and expenses.

A bank should not offset one item of revenue or expense by deducting it from anothe
of revenue or expense.

(©) Asses and liabilities in the Statement of financial positions to be grouped acct
to their nature and listed in the order of their liquidity and maturity. Assets should star
cash and shorterm funds while liabilities with loan stock.

(d) A maturity profile of risk assets and deposit liabilities classified into the follc
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categories:

Under 1 monthl - 3 months 3-6 months 6 - 12 months
Over 12 months

The above maturity profile should be based on the expected normal repayment peri
the asse$ and liabilities.

(e)

®
@

(h)
(i)

)

The amount of provision for loan losses, segregated between principal and in
Provision for losses of "eBtatement of financial position" engagements shoulc
shown separately as component of other liabilities.

An analgis of the movements in the various categories of loan loss provision shc
disclosed.

One item of asset or liability should not be offset by deducting another asset or |i
unless a legal right of 'seiff' exists.

An analysis of loans dradvances between "performing" and "nqerforming" loans.

The nature and amount of contingencies and commitments arising from the
Statement of financial position" engagements which the bank has undertake
analysis between the different cless of contingencies. "Off Statement of finar
position" engagements should not form part of Statement of financial position tota
The major items that make up its "other assets" and "other liabilities" in form of
to the accounts.

FORMAT OFHE REVENUE ACOUNT

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as at the year ended

Notes NWn nd¥ ¥4 n n

Gross Earnings XX
Continuing operations
Interest income 1 XX
Interest expense 1 (xx)
Net interest income XX
Feeand commission income 2 XX
Fee and commission expense (xx)
Net fee and commission income XX
Net trading income 3 XX
Other operating income 4 XX

XX
Underwriting profit XX
Operating income XX
Net impairment I&s on financial assets (xx)
Impairmentcharge on goodwill (xx)
Net operating income after net impairment loss on financial assets XX
Personnel expenses 6 XX
Operating lease expenses XX
Depreciation and amoration XX
Other operating expenses 7 XX
Total expenses (xx)
Share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investee XX
Profit before income tax XX
Income tax expense 8 (xx)
Profit from continuing operations XX
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations (net of tax) (xx)
Profit for the year XX

119



Other comprehensive income net of income tax:

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations XX
Fair value (loss)/gain on alable-for-sale investments recognised in equity Xxx
Fair value gains on property and equipment

Other comprehensive (loss)/gain for the year, net of tax XX
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of theBank
Non-controlling interest
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings pr share

Basic earnings per share (kobo) 9 XX
Earnings per share continuing operations
Basic earnings per share (kobo) 9 XX

XX

XX
XX
XX

XX
XX
XX

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at the year ended

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10 XX
Non-pledged trading assets 11 XX
Pledged assets 12 XX
Derivative financial instruments XX
Loans and advances to banks 13 XX

Loans and advances to customers XX
Insurance receivables 14 XX
Investments in equity accounted investe 15 XX
Investment in subsidiary 16 XX
Investment securities XX
Trading properties 17 XX
Investment properties 18 XX
Property and equipment 19 XX
Intangible assets XX
Deferred tax assets XX
Other assets 20 XX
Assets classified as heflor-sale XX
Total assets XX
Liabilities

Deposits from banks 21 XX
Deposits from customers 22 XX
Derivative financial instruments XX
Debt securities issued XX
Retirement benefit oligations XX
Current tax liabilities XX
Other liabilities 23 XX
Claims payable XX
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Liabilities on investment contracts XX

Liabilities on insurance contracts 24 XX
Interestbearing loans and borrowings 25 XX
Deferred taxihbilities XX
Contingent settlement provisions XX
Liabilities classified as heldr-sale XX
Total liabilities XX

Equity

Share capital and share premium 26 XX
Retained earnings XX
Other components of equity XX
Tatal equity attributable to owners of the Bank XX
Non-controlling interest XX
Total equity XX
Total liabilities and equity XX

Notes to the Account:

1. Net interest income

Interest income
i Cash and cash equivalents
il Loans and aghnces to banks and customers
0 Investment securities

Interest expense
U Deposit from banks
Deposit from customers
Securities dealing
Interestbearing loans and borrowings
Other borrowed funds
Other interest expense

[t et il et e

2. Fee and commission income

U Credt-related fees and commissions

i Commission on turnover and handling commission

U Other fees and commissions
Credit related fees and commissions relate to fees charged to corporate customer:
than fees included in determining the effective interestesirelating to loans and advan:
carried at amortised cost.

3. Net trading income

U Fixedincome securities

U Foreign exchange

0 Equity securities
Net trading income includes the gains and losses arising both on the purchase and
trading instrumens and from changes in fair value.

4. Other operating income
i Dividends on availablar-sale equity securities
i Gain on bargain purchase
i Gain on disposal of property and equipment
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Profit on sale of trading properties

Profit on sale of subsidiary

Renal income

Gain on disposal of equity investment

Bad debt recovered

Other income
et impairment loss on financial assets

Additional/(reversal) of collective impairment charges on loans and advanc

banks
U Additional/(reversal) of collective impanent charges on loans and advance:
customers
Write back of specific impairment charges on loans and advances to customer
Additional specific impairment charges on loans and advances to banks
Additional specific impairment charges on loans and adearto customers
Additional/(reversal) of impairment charge on availafde-sale
Additional/(reversals) impairment allowance on other assets
Reversal of impairment allowance on investment property
Diminutionof investment in subsidiaries
Impairmentcharge on insurance receivables

5.

o2 ccoc oo

oo oo oo

6. Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries
Increase in liability for defined benefit plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans
Termination benefits
Other staff costs
Increase/(decrease) in hidity for share appreciation rights
(a) Amount represents the net loss incurred by the Bank on the winding down of th
Investment Trust Scheme (SIT) during the year.
000 {01 FF YR SESOdziA®S RANBOG2NARQ O2
Employee costs, including those ofeeutive directors, during the year amounted to:
i Wages and salaries
U Pension costs
U Other retirement benefit cost

c:

(eI et il et i e ]

7. Other operating expenses
i Other premises and equipment costs
Professional fees
Insurance
Business travel expenses
AMCON surcharge krd NBLINBaASyGa GKS . FylQa
for the period ended
Loss of control of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal of investments
Deposit insurance premium
l dZRAG2NRa NBYdzySNI GA2y
General administrative expenses

e entiN enHiN e
(@l

(oI et il et e ]

8. Income tax expenseecognised in the profit or loss
Current tax expense:

0 Corporate Income Tax

U Education Tax
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U Deferred tax expense: (Origination)/reversal of temporary differences

9. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share andutild earnings shares are calculated by dividing the net |
attributable to equity holders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordir
shares in issue during the year, excluding the average number of ordinary shares pu
by the Bank andield as treasury shares.

10. Cash and cash equivalents

U Cash on hand and balances with banks

U Unrestricted balances with central banks

i Money market placements and other cash equivalents
() Included in cash and cash equivalents is an amount aEN¥X for prior year)
representing unclaimed dividend held in the account of the Registrar with the Bank. TF
corresponding liability is included in other liabilities.
(i) Included in cash in hand balances with other banks is an amount of NX (is Nerfor [
year) representing the Naira value of foreign currencies held on behalf of customers ta
letter of credit transactions. The corresponding liability is included in other liabilities.

11. Nonpledged trading assets
U Government bonds
0 Treasury bis
0 Equities

12. Pledged assets

Financial assets that may bepéedged or resold by counterparties:
0 Treasury bills
i Government bonds

13. Loans and advances to customers
i Loans to individuals
U Loans to corporate entities and other organisations

14. Insurance receivables
i Due from agents, brokers and reinsurers
U Allowance for doubtful receivables

15. Investments in equity accounted investee

Balance, beginning of year XX
Acquired through business combination XX
Reversal of share of impaient (xx)
Exchange difference XX
Disposal during the period (xx)
Balance end of period/year XX

16. Investment securities
U Availablefor-sale investment securities
U Government bonds
0 Treasury bills
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Eurobonds
Underwriting commitment
Equity securities with readily determinable fair values
Unquoted equity securities at cost
Others
Specific impairment for underwriting commitment

U Specific allowance for impairment on unquoted equity securities
Heldto-maturity investment securites

0 Treasury bills
Government bonds
AMCON bonds (see note below)
Corporate bonds
Eurobonds
Local contractors bonds
Other bonds

U Investment securities
AMCON consideration bonds represent consideration bonds issued by the
Management Corpration of Nigeria (AMCON) and fully guaranteed by the Fe
Government of Nigeria. The consideration bonds were issued in exchange fe
performing loans and the issued shares in Intercontinental Bank, as part of the acquis
Access Bank. Based the terms of the transactions, AMCON reserves the right to revie
valuation of the sale.

oo

[t et i e et e

17. Trading properties

¢CKA&d NBLINBaSyita GKS Oz2ad 2F NBFHE Sadlrd
designated for resale to customers.

18. Investment properties

These investment properties must be valued by reputable estate surveyors and valuer
the comparative method of valuation to arrive at the open market value.

Balance, beginning of year XX
Acquired through business combtitn XX
Additions during the year XX
Asset classified as heldr-sale XX

Loss of control (xx)
Transfer from property and equipment XX
Disposals during the year (xx)
Allowances for impairment (xx)
Balance end of year XX

19. Property plant and equipment

Cost

Balance at 1 January XX
Acquisitions XX
Disposals (xx)
Reversals XX
Write-off (xx)
Transfers to assets hefdr-sale (xx)
Transfer (to)/from other assets XX
Translation diffeence XX

Balance at 31 December XX
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20. Other assets
Restricted deposits with central banks (see note belaw)

Accounts receivable XX
Cash collateral receivable on letters of credit transactions xx
Prepayments XX
Subscription for imestment XX
Allowance for impairment on other assets XX
¢tKA& olFflFyOS Aa YIRS dzLJ 2F [/ SYyGNY¥f .y

deposits required by the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM). Restricted depo:
centralba/ 1 a FNB y20 | @ Af | otb-Gaydperalibndza S Ay

21. Deposits from banks
0 Money market deposits
U Other deposits from banks

22. Deposits from customers
0 Term deposits
i Demand deposits
U Saving deposits

23. Other liabilities

U Cashsettled sharebased payment liability

Creditors and accruals

Certified cheques

Deferred income

/| dZAG2YSNRQ RSLIR&aAG F2NJ F2NBA3IYy GNIR
Collections

Unclaimed dividend

Other current liabilities

This represents the Naira value of foreignremcies held on behalf of customers in variol
foreign accounts to cover letters of credit transactions. The corresponding balance is
included in cash and balances with banks.

[enti enc i et B et B e B et A et B

24. Liabilities on insurance contracts
U Life assurance contracts
U Nonlife insuance contracts

25. Interestbearing loans and borrowings

U European Investment Bank

African Development Bank

Nigeria Export Import Bank

Central Bank of Nigeria under the Commercial Agriculture Credit Scheme
Bank of Industrintervention Fund for SMEs

Bank of IndustryPower & Airline Intervention Fund (see note (d))

Other loans and borrowings

- ent i i e Y e B N e

26. Capital and reserves
a) Equity capital

(a) Authorised:

Ordinary shares:
Preference shares:

(b) Issued and fully patdip:
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[llustration

The followings the trial balances of Olowo bank Plc. for the year t&kember 204

NQY NQY
Share capital of N1.00 each 1,500
Statutory Reserve 1,380
General Reserve 1,410
Deposit: Fixed 8,460
: Demand 5,800
: Savings 6,050
Tavation 750
Money at call and short notice from other banks 3,820
Bills payable 2,400
Profit and loss account 730
Creditors 45
Unclaimed dividends 82
Income Interests on loans 8,820
Commissions, charges and fees 4,135
Foreign exchange traactions 585
Lease income 410
Others 238
Provision for bad and doubtful accts 598
Contingent liabilities and other obligations o
behalf of customers and customers liabilitie:
there of 6,750 6,750
Loan and advances 23,000
Interests paid tmther banks 250
On deposits by customers 530
Rent 410
Sundry expenses 180
Money on call short notice 3,800
Equipment on leases 2,500
Salaries 38
Investments 3,500
Freeholds property 4,600
Motor vehicles 700
Furniture and fittings 850
Cash in hand and with other banks 5,300
Bills discounte€lreasury 800
-Others 755 XXX
53,963 53,963

Additional Information

1.The analysis by performance of the loans and advance is as shown below:

NQY
Performing accourst 1,200 1¢
Substandard accounts 2,750 10¢
Doubtful accounts 18,120 50¢
Lost accounts 930 100¢

2.A general provision d¥8 million is to be made on all other risk assets.
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3. Taxation is at the rate of 35%
4. Provide for the following:
Proposed dividend at 10k per share
Statutory reserve in accordance with section 16 of BOFID
Bonus issue reserve 8600m
5. Provide for depreciation as follows:

Equipment on lease 10%
Freehold property 10%
Motor vehicle 20%
Furniture and fittings 10%

Required:Prepare the Income Statemefur the year ended 3December 204 and a
Statement of Financial position as at that date; show all workings:

Solution: OLOWO BANK PlIc

Income Statemenfor the year ended 31December 204

Notes NYnnn NQY
Gross income 1 14,188
Interest paid 2 780
Net income 13,408
Overhead 3 628
Depreciation 4 935
Provision for bad and doubtful accounts 5 9,687
Profit for the year 2,158
Taxation _755
Profit from continuing operations 1,403

OLOWO BANK PIStatement of financial position as at 8December 204

Notes b Q" b Q"
Assets
Cash and short term funds 5,300
Money call and short notice 3,800
Loans and advances 6 12,715
Investments 3,500
Bills discounted 7 1,555
Equipment on lease 8 2,250
Fixed assets 9 5,465
Total assets 34,585
Deposits liabilities 10 24,130
Others Liabilities 11 4,182
Total Liabilities 28,312
Equity and reserves
Share capital 1,500
Reserves 12 4,773
Total Liabilities and equity 34,585
Contingent liabilities obligation & customers liability thereof 6,750
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Workings

1. Gross Income

Interest on loans and advance
Commissions, charge fees etc
Foreign exchange income
Lease income

Others

2. Interest paid
To banks
To customers

3. Overhead

Rent

Sundry Expenses
Salaries

4. Depreciation

Equipment on lease: 10% of N500m
Freehold property: 10% of N4,600m
Motor vehicle: 20% of N700m
Furniture and fittings: 10% of N850m

5a. Provisions

Performirg account (1%)
Substandard account (10%)
Doubtful accounts (50%)
Lost account (100%)

Less provision brought forward
Other risk assets

5b. Movement in provision for be and doubtful account

Balance brought forward
Profit and loss account
Balance carried forward

6. Loans and advances

Balance brought forward

Provision for bad and doubtful acct
Balance carriedofward 10,277+8

7. Bills discounted
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NO Y
8,820
4,135

585
410
238

14,188

Principal Provision
NQY NQY
1,200 12
2,750 275
18,120 9,060
930 930
10,277

(598)

9,687

NQY
598
9,687
10,285

NQY
23,000

(10,285)
12,715
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Treasury 800

Others 755
1,555
8. Equipment on lease NQY
Cost 2,500
Less Depreciation (10%) 250
Net Book Value 2,250
9. Fixed Assets MNQY
Costg Freehold property 4,600
- Motor Vehicles 700
- Furniture and Fittings 850
6,150
Less Depreciation (w4) 935
Excluding depreciation on equipment on lease 250
685
5,465
10. Deposit: NQY
Fixed 8,460
Demand 5,800
Savings 6,050
Money at call and shortotice from other banks 3,820
24,130
11. Other Liabilities NQY
Taxation brought forward 750
Taxation for the year 755
Dividends for the year 150
Unclaimed dividends b / fwd 82
Bills payable 2,445
4,182

12. Reserves

Statutory  Profit or General Bonus Total

resave loss reserve issue
Balance b/f 1,380 730 1,410 3,520
For the year 421 332 500 1,253
Balance c/f 1,801 1,062 1,410 500 4,773

4.0 CONCLUSION

The conduct or operation of banking in Nigeria is regulated by BOFIBBINAct. These laws provide
operational standard to be conformdd by banks. They also provide the legal basis for their activities.
Consequently, every bank is mandated to operate within the ambit of the laws.

5.0 SUMMARY

The Banks and other Finandiastitutions Act regulates the activities of all banks apart from the
Central of Nigeria. The BOFIA regulates banking business and management of banks while the CBN Act
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establishes the CBN as the apex regulator of the bankingacior with functions angowers under
the Act. The Bills of Exchange Act deals with the negotiable instruments, which are used by banks in the
conduct of their business, especially cheques.

6.0 TUTOR MARKED ASSIGNMENT
What is the relevance of Bills of Exchange Act to the catnofubanking business in Nigeria?

1.0 REFERENCES/FURTHER READINGS
Adebayo, P.A2011). Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards for Students and

Professionals, Abuja: Rainbow Graphic Printers and Publishers
Bello, S. @& Barnabas, S. A2017)Advanced Financial Accounting, Bida, 9ICE LINK

Production

Bills of Exchange Act, Cap. B8, LFN 2004.
Federal Government of Nigeria (1982nks and Other Financial Institution Act
Federal Government of Nigeria (198@ntral bank of Nigeria Act
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UNIT FIVE: ACCOUNTING FOR INSURANCE BUSINESS (WITH SPECIAL RELEVANT LEGISLATION)
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

Insurance is apeciesof business that specifically deals with risk management. It is concerned with
appraising and controlling risk. It ia @ntricate legal, economic and social device for the handling of risks
to life and property. An insurance company differs in nafdrem other business concerns, it involves
the payment of periodic sums known as premiums to the insurer and by the exelegrge to cover
risks that may occur in the future.

Section 102 of the insurance Act, 2003 described insurance as a transaction in which the insurer (the
insurance company) for a certain consideration (premium) promises to reimburse (indemnify) thedinsur
or render services in the case of certain accidental losses suffered during the subsistence of the agreement.

Insurance business is classified into:

(a) General Insurance Business: This is also referred to d#ebosiness. It indemnifies the paofibolder
against losses, which may result from occurrence of events within specified periods covered by the
contracts.

(b) Life Assurance Businesthese companies sell life insurance, annuities and pengiooductsThe
benefits due to the policy holdebecome payable on the attainment of a stipulated age, at death or on the
occurrence of a specified event. It is a léegn insurance business.

(C) Rdnsurance:The term reinsurance is used to designate insurance that is purchased by an insurance
compary (insurer) from another insurance company -{ngurer) as a means of risk management to
transfer risk from the insurer to the smsurer. The rénsurer and the insurer enter into a reinsurance
agreement which stipulates the conditions upon which the #e@deNB NJ g2 dz R LI & (G KS A
reinsurance premium is paid by the insurer to the reinsurer.

2.0 OBJECTIVES

After studying this unit, you should be able to:
1. Discuss the regulatory environment of insurance business
2. Discuss the accounting standaidgnsurance industry
3. Identify the classes of insurance business.

131 S



4. Discuss the accounting policies peculiar to insurance companies.
5. Note the format of published financial statements of insurance companies.

3.0MAIN CONTENT

3.1 Regulation in Insurance Indtry
Insurance activity in Nigeria is regulated by two Acts and supervised by the National Insurance
Commission. The Insurance Act, No. 1 of 2003 governs the licensing and the operation of insurers,
reinsurers, intermediaries, and other providers of relasesatvices. The National Insurance Commission
Decree, No. 1 of 1997 established the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM) as the supervisory
institution with the power of inspection, remedial and enforcement actions, and composition of fines.
NAICOM is fued by industry levy and government grants, 50 percent of which is for operational
purposes, 30 percent for upgrading industry capacity and 20 percent for industry development and
compensation. Insurers must be established as limited liability companigsr uthe Companies and
Allied Matters Act, 1990 with the exception of the National Insurance Corporation of Nigeria (NICON)
and Nigeria Reinsurance Corporation.

The Governing Board of NAICOM comprises 11 individuals representing public interest andt releva

public and professional entities. Functions of NAICOM include licensing; approval of premium rates,
commission rates and policy terms and conditions; and protect policyholders and beneficiaries to
insurance contracts.

3.2 INSURANCE ACT, 2003
Relevant sctions of the statute are summarized below:

Minimum paid up capital (section 9(1))
The Act mandates every insurance business in Nigeria to maintain specified minimum paid up capital which
has been reviewed by NAICOM as follows:

(@ Nonf A S 02 Y WibnyUS$1A.14 milion). A

) AFS O2YLI yASAY H OAfEA2Y O6! {PMHDTC YAffA:
©/ 2YLIaAldS O02YLI yASay p OAfftA2Y O!{Pomdp Y
wSAyadz2NI yOS O02YLI yASay Mn O0AfEA2Y 0! { bco ®y

(e) Brokers are not required to have a minimum capital.

Statutory books and recal (Section 17 and 18)
Section 17(1), requires an insurer to keep and maintain at its principal office, the following records:

(a) The Memorandum and Articles of Association or other evidence of the Constitution of the insurer;

(b) A record containing the namemnd addresses of the owners of the insurance business, whether
known as, or called shareholders or otherwise.

(c) The minutes of any meeting of the owners and of the policy making executives (whether known as
or called the Board of directors);

(d) A register ofall policies, in which shall be entered, in respect of every policy issued, the names and
addresses of the polieyolders, the date when policy was effected and a record on any transfer,
assignment or any transfer, assignment or nomination of which teerer has notice.

(e) A registrar of claims, in which shall be entered, every claim made together with the date of
claim, the names and addresses of the claimant and the date on which the claim was settled, or in
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the case of claim which is repudiated, the gnds for the rejection or in the case of litigation, the
particulars of the litigants and the court in this matter.

(H A register of investments, showing those which are attributable to the insurance funds and those
which are not, and also any alterationthreir values, from time to time.

(9) A register of its assets.

(h) A register of rdnsurance ceded, showing separately those ceded in Nigeria and those ceded
outside Nigeria.

(i) A cash book.

() A current account book.

(K) A register of open policies, in respect ofiin@ insurance transactions, and management report by
external auditors.

Section 17(2), requires a life insurance business, to maintain and keep the following additional records:
(a) A register of assured, under group policies;
(b) A register of loans on polé&s;

(c) A register of cash surrendered values; and (d)A registrar of lapsed and expired policies.

Section 18(1), mandates a-igsurance business, to keep and maintain at its principal office, the following
records:

€) The Memorandum and Articles of Associatiar other evidence of the Constitution of the
reinsurer;

(b) Records containing the names and addresses of the owners of the reinsurer (whether
known as or called shareholders or otherwise);

(© Minutes of any meeting of the owners and of the policy makingcatves (whether
known as the board of directors or otherwise);

(d) A register of all treaties, in which shall be entered, in respect efyetreaty issued, the
name ofthe cedent, and the date when the date when the treaty was effected;

(e) A register of altlaims, in which shall be entered, every claim made together with the date
the claim is settled;

() A register of events, showing those which are attributable to the insurance funds and
those which are not and also any alteration in value from time togjm

(9) A register of assets;

(h) A register of business or retrocession, showing separately those ceded within ant outside
Nigeria;

0] A register of new and existing clients;

()] A cash book; and

(K) Domestic or management report prepared by the external auditors.

A ife reinsurance business, shall keep the following additional records:

(a) A register of assured, under group policies;
(b) A register of cancelled, leased and expired policies, and
(c) A register of clairs, showing the names of the cadteand when the claim is sitd.

Separation of Accounts and Insurance Funds (Section 19)

Section 19(1), requires every insurer, who carries on the two classes of insurance business, to enter all
receipts of each of those classes of insurance business, in a separate and discowmit.aS8eparate
insurance funds are also required for each class of insurance business and, in the case of life insurance
business, there should be:

(a) The individual life insurance business fund;
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(b) The group life insurance business and pension fund; gridealthinsurance
business.

Section 19(2), contains the following additional requirements:

(a) In the case of life insurance business, the life business funds, shall be a sum not less than the
mathematical reserve; and

(b) In the case of general insurance bugsgthe insurer is required to maintain provisions for
unexpired risk and provisions for outstanding claims, including in the case of the latter, provisions
estimated to provide for the expenses of adjustment or settlement of suck claims.

The insurance fod of each particular class, shall:
(a) Be absolutely the security of the policy holders of that class, as though it belongs to an insurer
carrying on other business than insurance business of that class;
(b) Not be liable for any contract of the insurer for whiit would not have been liable, had the
business of the insurer been only that of particular insurance class; and
(c) Not be applied directly or indirectly, for a purpose other than those of the class of business, to
which the fund is applicable.

Technicafeserves (Sections 2023)
Section 20(1), requires an insurer, in respect of its general business, to establish and maintain the following
provisions applicable in respect of each class of insurance business:

(a) Provisions for unexpired risks which shualcalculated on a time appointment basis of the risks
accepted in the year.

(b) Provisions for outstanding claims which shall be credited with an amount equal to the total
estimated amount of all outstanding claims with a further amount representing 10 peotdhe
estimated figure for outstanding claims in respect of claims incurred but not reported at the end of
the year under review and

Under section 21

(&) Aninsurer shall establish and maintain contingency reserves to cover fluctuations in securities and
variations in statistical estimates.

(b) The contingency reserves shall be credited with an amount not less than 3 percent of the total
premium or 20 percent of the net profit (whichever is greater) and the amount shall accumulate
until it reaches the amountf the minimum paid up capital or 50 percent of the net premium
(whichever is greater).

Section 22(1), requires an insurer maintain the following reserves in respect of its life insurance business.

(a) A general reserve fund which shall be credited wittaamount equal to the net liabilities on
policies in force at the time of the actuarial valuation and an additional 25 percent of net premium
for every year between valuation date; and

(b) A contingency reserve fund which shall be credited with an amount equapercent of the gross
premium or 10 percent of the profits (whichever is greater) and accumulated until it reaches the
amount of the minimum paid up capital.

A reinsurer shall establish a general reserve fund which shall be credited with an amount:
@ N2G tSaa GKFIY pn LISNOSyd 2F GKS NBAyadzZNBNRA
than the authorized capital of the insurer; and
(b) b2d fSaa wp LSNOSyd 2F GKS NBAYyAdzZNENRA 3INR:
or exceeds the authared capital of the reinsurer.
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Margin of safety (Section 24(1))

The Act further requires an insurer to maintain at all times, in respect of its general business, a margin of
solvency, being the excess of the value of its admissible assets in Nigerits dabilities in Nigeria,

consisting of:

(a) Provision for unexpired risks;
(b) Provisions for outstanding claims;
(c) Provision for claims incurred but not yet reported; and (d)Funds to meet other liabilities.

The margin of solvency shall not be less thapéfgent of the gross premium income less reinsurance
premium paid up capital, whichever is greater.

¢KS ! O RSFTAySa dalRYA&aAoftS FraaSdaé¢ a GK2aS
@) Cash and bank balances;
(b) Quoted investment at mrket value;
(© Unquoted stock at cost;
(d) Land and buildings;
(e) Furniture and fittings;
) Office equipment;
(9) Motor vehicles;
(h) Prepared expenses made to members of staff;
0] Amount due from retrocession; (j)Staff loans and advances; and (k)Claims receivable.

X«
(0p))
QX

Assds and investments (Section 25)

An insurer, shall at all times, in respect of the insurance transacted by it in Nigeria, invest and hold in
bAISNAI | adaSata SldAglrtSyda G2 y20 tSaa GKIy (GKS |
shownin the balance sheet and the revenue account of the insurer.

{dzo 2SO0 G2 GKS LINRP@A&AA2YyA 2F GKAA {SOGA2ys GKS LR
securities except;

(a) Shares of limited liability companies;

(b) Shares in other securitief a cooperative society registered under a law of relating to cooperative
societies;

(c) Loans to building societies approved by the Commission;

(d) Loans on real property, machinery and plant in Nigeria;

(e) Loans on life policies within their surrender values;

(f) Cash deposit in bills of exchange accepted by license bank; and (g)Such investments as may be
prescribed by the Commission.

No insurer, shall:
(a) In respect of its general insurance business, invest more than 25 percent of its assets in real
property; or
(b) In respect of its life insurance business, invest more than 35 percent of its assets as defined in
subjection (1), in real property.

3.3 Accounting standard in Insurance Industry

IFRS 4 Insurance contracts

The objective of IFRS 4 is to specify the finamefdrting for insurance contracts, by any insurer that

issues such contracts, until the IAS Board completes the second phase of its project on insurance contracts.
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In particular, IFRS 4 requires:
(i) certain improvements to accounting, by insurers,ifmurance contracts.
OAAD RAAOf2adzNB GKIFd ARSYGAFTASE o6FyR SELX I AYyAaL
from insurance contracts, and helps users understand the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash
flows from insurance contracts

(i) the income statement of the company, fund or other undertaking that issues the contract.
Currently applicable IFRS does not yet contain comprehensive accounting treatment of transactions that
are specific to insurance contracts. As a resufiiiance groups generally tend to apply the provisions as
set out under GAAP for insurance contracts, modified as appropriate to comply with the IFRS framework
and applicable standards.

(iv) SAS No 16; Nigeria GAAP, establishes financial accounting amghgeptandards for the
financial statements of nctife and life assurance undertakings.

3.4 Basis of Accounting

There are several bases of accounting for insurance transactions. However, three bases commonly adopted
are as follows:

Annual AccountingThis is used where it is possible to determine the underwriting result of an insurance
business written in an accounting period at the end of that period. The underwriting results that are
disclosed in the financial statements, under this basis, usuallyde the result of the current accounting
period and adjustments, if any, made to estimates used in determining results of the previous accounting
period.

(b) Deferred AnnualThis is adopted where it is not possible to determine the underwriting rexfudn
insurance business until the following accounting period.

(c) Fund AccountingFhis is adopted where it takes a long time to determine the underwriting result with a
reasonable degree of certainty. Under this basis, a fund is created for each uitohegrwyear. Premiums or

business written during the year and the related claims or expenses are posted to the fund. The fund for
each underwriting year will remain open until there is enough information to determine the underwriting
results No profitisecogniS R F2 NJ W2 LISy &@SIFNERQ odzi LINRPOAAAZY A&

Final Accounts

1. The Revenue Accounts
Fire accident Other Motor Marine Total
accident aviation

1. Premium receives X X X X XX
2. Reinsure premium X X X X XX
Gross Premium X X X X XX
3. Less commission paid X X X X XX
4. Net premium X X X X XX
5. Commission received X X X X XX
6. Total income X X X X XX
Less X X X X XX
7. Reinsurance X X X X XX
8. Increase (decrease) in X X X X XX

provision for unexpired sk
9. Net income X X X X XX
10. Expenses X X X X XX
11. Insurance claims X X X X XX
12. Reinsuranceclaims X X X X XX
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13. Increase (decreases) in X X X X XX
provision for outstanding

claims

14. Surrenders - - - X X
15. Reinsurancerecoveries (x) (x) (x) (x) (xx)
16. Underwriting expenses X X X X XX
Total expenses X X X X XX
17. Transferred to P&L X X X - XX
18. Transferred to life fund _: _: _: ; E(

2. Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

The net impotant financial statement of an insurer is the profit or loss account. The terms found on
the face of a usually Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income are listed and
discussed below.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended3BDecember 20xx Note bQnnn
Gross premium written XX

Gross premium revenue XX
Premium ceded tdketrocessionaire® (xX)
Net premium revenue XX
Insurance benefits

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses XX

Insurance clians and loss adjustment expenses

Recoverablérom tetrocessionaire® (xx)

Net insurance benefits and claims XX
Underwriting expenses XX

Insurance benefits and underwriting expenses XX
Underwriting profit XX
Net Investment/Inteest income XX
Net fair value gains on assets at fair value through profit or loss  xx

Other operating income XX
Depreciation and amortisation (xx)
Finance cost (xx)
Administration expenses (xx)
Impairmentof financial assets (xx)
Impairmentprovision on trade & Reinsurance Receivables (xx)
Profit before taxation XX

Income tax expense (xx)
Profit for the year XX
Attributable to:

Shareholders XX
Non-Controlling Interest XX
Total XX

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net gains on availabir-sale financial assets

Net unrealised gains/(losses) arising during the year XX
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax XX
Total Comprehensive Income for the year XX
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Attributable to:

Shareholders XX
Non-Controlling Interest XX
Total XX
Basic Earnings per share(kobo) XX
Diluted Earnings per share(kobo) XX
3. Statement of FinancidPosition

Assets bQnnn
Cash and cash equivalents XX
Financial assets

¢Financial asset designated as fair value XX
¢Loans and other receivables XX
c¢Availablefor-sale investments XX

¢Held to maturity investments XX

Reinsurace receivables XX
Retrocession assets XX
Deferred acquisition costs XX

Other assets XX
Investment properties XX
Intangible assets XX
Property, plant and equipment XX

Statutory deposits XX

Total assets XX
Liabilities and equity

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities XX
Reinsurance Receivable XX

Other liabilities/payables XX
Investment contract liabilities XX
Retirement benefit obligations XX

Current income tax XX
Deferred taxation XX

Total liabilities XX

Equity

Share capital XX

Share premium XX

Revaluation reserves XX
Contingency reserve XX
Retained earnings XX
Availablefor-sale reserve XX

Total equiy to shareholders of Group XX
Non-controlling interest XX

Total equity and liabilities XX
lllustration 1
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The figures set out below are extracted from the books of the Life assurance society Ltd and related to the
12 months ended 31 Desnber2013.

Share capital: Authorized and issued: N
200,000 Ordinary share of N4 each 800,000
200,000 10% preference share of N1 each 200,000

Premiums 680,000

Mortgages on property 1,200,000

Amount of life assurance fund 4,319,000

Jaims 436,000

Loans on policies with surrender values 207,000

Amount due from rensurance 70,000

Commissions 20,700

Outstanding premiums 80,800

Premium paid in advance 350

Management expenses 391,000

Surplus on sale of investment 25,000

Investmens 4,025,750

Interest, dividends and Rents 280,000

Taxation 105,000

Cash 120,000

The securities have been valued at cost. You are required to prepare the draft trial balance, the revenue
account and the Statement of Financial Position far tompany aat 31Deember 2013.

SOLUTION 1
LIFE ASSURANCE SOCIETY LTD
Draft Trial balance ad 81 Decenber 2013.
Share capital: DR CR
Ordinary share 800,000
Preference share 200,000
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Mortgages on property
Premiums

Amount of life assurance fan
Claims

Loans

Amount due from reinsurance
Commission

Outstanding premium
Premium paid in advance
Management expenses
Taxation

Surplus on sale of investments
Interest, dividend and Rent
Investments

Cash

120,000

436,000
207,000
70,000
20,700

80,800

39,100

105,000

4,025,750
120,000

6,304,350

Revenue Account for the year ended 31 Dember 2013

Premiums
Interest, dividend & Rent

Surplus on sale of investments

Claims

Commission

Mgt expenses

Taxation

436,000
20,700

39,100

140

680,000

4,319,000

350

25,000

280,000

XX X7

6,304,350

680,000

280,000

495,800
489,200

105,000



384,200

Add fund b/f 4,319,000
Insurance fund c/f 4,703,200
LIFE ASSURANCE SOCIETY LTD
Statement of Financial Position as atl3dember 2013.

Shae capital: authorized & issued: N

200000 ordinary share of N4 each 800,000

200000 10% pref. Share of N1 each 200,000

Life assurance fund 4,703,200
5,703,200

Current Liabilities:

Premium paid in advance 350

Total equity and Liabilities 5,703,550

Assets

Cash 120,000

Amountdue from reinsurance 70,000

Outstanding premium 80,800

Mortgage on property 1,200,000

Loan on policies 207,000

Investments 4,025,750

Total assets 5,703,550

4.0 CONCLUSION

The conduct or operation of insura@ business in Nigeria is regulated by insurance act 2003. The Act

provide operational standard to be conforméal by insurance companies.

5.0 SUMMARY

Insurance activity in Nigeria is regulated bylnsurance Act, No. 1 of 2003 and Insurance Confyeiss&n
No. 1 of 1997 .The Insurance Act, No. 1 of 2003 governs the licensing and the operation of insurers,
reinsurers, intermediaries, and other providers of related services. The National Insurance Commission
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Decree, No. 1 of 1997 established the Natiohaurance Commission (NAICOM) as the supervisory
institution with the power of inspection, remedial and enforcement actions, and composition of fines.

6.0 TUTOR MARKED ASSIGNMENT

Discuss the different method of accounting for insurance business.

7.0 REERENCES/FURTHER READINGS
Adebayo, P.A.(2011). Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards for Students and

Professionals, Abuja: Rainbow Graphic Printers and Publishers
Bello, S. @& Barnabas, S. A2017)Advanced Financial Accounting, Bida, 9ICE LI NK

Production
Federal Government of Nigeria (2003) InsuranceAct

International Accounting Standards Boatd%B Insurance ContractFRS 4
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

Bankruptcyis a legal status of a person ather entitythat cannot repay the debts it owes tweditors
Bankruptcy in Nigeria is governed by the Bankruptcy Act of 1979, now the Bankruptcy Act 1990. The
provision of the Act is only applicable to sole proprietors i.e. individuals and partnenshg The law of
bankruptcy does not apply to corporate bodies registered pursuant to the provisions of CAMA 1990.

2.0 Objectives
At the end of this study session, you should be able to:

Identify the objectives of bankruptcy laws

Explain the conditionsnder which petition can be filed against a debtor

Ascertain when can a debtor be said to have committed an act of bankruptcy

Identify the differences between the statement of affairs undemkruptcy and the statement of
financial position of an entity.

Identify the order in which liabilities of a bankrupt debtor would be settled

Ascertain liabilities that should be given preferential treatment under bankruptcy.

Prepare deficiency account

> >

> > I

3.0 MAIN CONTENT
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3.1 Definition of Bankruptcy:

A bankruptcy proceedqg is a proceeding by which the state takes possession of the property of a debtor by
an officer appointed for that purpose and such property is realized and the proceeds distributed, subject to
certain priorities ratably amongst persons to whom the debteves money or has incurred pecuniary
liabilities.

3.2 The conditions for filing bankruptcy petition against a debtor.
I. The amount of the debt must not be less than, N2,000.00
il. The amount must be a liquidated sum i.e. certain in money.
lii The détor must be a Nigerian resident or must have residedNigeria with the last
twelve months before the bankruptcyproceedings.

iv. The debtor must be doing business in Nigeria or must have carried on business in Nigeria
within the last twelve months befe the bankruptcy proceedings.

V. The debtor must be a partner of a Nigerian partnership or must have being a partner
within the last twelve months before the bankruptcy proceedings.

Vi. The debtor must have committed an act of bankruptcy.

Vi The petitim must be filed within three months after the commitment of an act of
bankruptcy.

3.3 Objectives of Bankruptcy Laws:

[ Fair treatment of all creditors

ii. Equitable distribution of the proceeds of the properties of thdebtor amongst  the
creditors whohave proof.

iii. A means of investigating the causes of the failure of the bankrupt debtor.

iv. To relief the bankrupt debtor of the burden of indebtedness.
V. Protect the creditors and the general public from reckless and fraudulent business
practitioners.
Vi. A means of peaceful resolution between the creditors and the bankrupt debtor.
3.4 Legal disabilities of a bankrupt
0] He cannot vote or be voted for;
(i) He cannot be appointed as a trustee;

(iii) He cannot join in the formation of a company or a partnership;

(iv) He cannot act as a director of a registered company or take part intt@nagement of such a
company; and

(V) He cannot be a Chairman or a member of any government parastatal.

(vii 1'S YdzaG o0SFNJ GKS GAGES a0l y{ NHzZLIi ¢ S6KSYSGOSNI KA 3

3.5 Duties ofrustees
The trustee may, with the permission of the committee of inspection, do all or any of the following:

(i) Carry on the business of the bankrupt so far as may be necessary for the beneficial winding up of
the business;

(i) Bring, institute or defend anwpction or other legal proceedings relating to the property of the
bankrupt;

(i) Employ a legal practitioner or other agent to take any proceedings or do any business, which may
be sanctioned by the Committee of Inspection.

(iv) Accept as consideration for the saleéany property of the bankrupt, a sum of money payable at a
future time, subject to such stipulations as to security and otherwise as the committee of
inspection may deemed fit;

(v) Mortgage or pledge any part of the property of the bankrupt for the purposeising money for
the payment of his debt,
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(vi) Refer any dispute to arbitration, or compromise any debts, claims and liabilities, whether present
or Future, certain or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, subsisting or supposed to subsist
between the bakrupt, and any other person who may have incurred any liabilities to the
bankrupt.

(vilMake such compromise or other arrangement as may be thought expedient with creditors or
persons claiming to be creditors in respect of any debts provable under the bankruptc

(viii)  Make such compromise or other arrangement as may be thought expedient with respect to
any claim arising out of or incidental to the property of the bankrupt, made or capable of jerry
made on the trustee on any person or by the trustee on any person.

(ix) Divde in its existing form amongst the creditors, according to its estimated value, any property,
which from its peculiar nature or other special circumstances cannot be readily or
advantageously sold.

(x) Appoint the bankrupt himself to superintend the managemef the property or to carry on the
trade of the bankrupt for the benefit of the creditors., and

(xi) Make such allowance from time to time, as he may think just to the bankrupt out of his property
for the support of the bankrupt and his family, or in consa®n of his services if he is
engaged in winding up of his estate.

3.6 What constitute an Act of Bankruptcy?

Where a creditor has obtained a final judgment against a debtor upbictwa Notice of Bankruptcg
servedon the debtor and the debtor failso pay the judgment debt or sum ordered to be paid in
accordance with the terms of the judgment, or fails to satisfy the court of having a counterclaim equal to or
exceed the amount of debt, within 14 days of the Notice of bankruptcy, the debtor wousdibeto have
committed an Act of Bankruptcy.

2 KSNB SESOdziazy KFa 06SSy tSOASR F3IFLAyad I RSoG2NT
been seized and sold or held by the court bailiff 2ardays Where a debtor files an application in a law
court declaiming his inability to pay his debt, he would be said to have committed an Act of Bankruptcy.

A receiving order will be issued by the court with which an official receiver will be appointed who takes
over the properties of the debtor on behalf the creditors.

3.7 First Meeting of the creditors:
i. To be convened and presided over by the official receiver.
il. They may resolve to:
A ascheme of arrangement or
A arrangement of composition
For the resolution to be effective;
A The majority of the crditor must agree
A The amount owed to the majority must not be less than two third (2/3) of the
total outstanding debts.
What is the significance of the first meeting of the creditors?

o Itis a meeting called and presided over by the official receiver wherelebtor under bankruptcy is
given the opportunity of making propositions to the creditors for their consideration. The creditors,
through a resolution can agree to a scheme of arrangement, where the debtor proposes to pay the
outstanding debt at an appnted date after which his properties will be reassigned to him. The
creditors, alternatively, can agree to a composition in which the debtor proposes paying certain
proportion of the debt in full settlement of the total amount due.

3.8 Adjudication order
An adjudication orderjt is an order issued by the court in which a debtor is pronounced and declared
bankrupt.
A debtor will be adjudged bankrupt under the following circumstances;
i. Where the creditors cannot meet
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ii. Where no resolution is passed
iii. Where the ebtors runs away
iv. Failure, to submit Statement of Affairs within the stipulated time.

Order of Settlement:
a) Secured creditors
b) Priority costs and charges:
9 Costs of securing the properties
1 Realization expenses
1 Remuneration of the official receiver
1 PetiioneNR&  S3IFt FTSSa
C) Priority Debts:
i. Preferential creditors
ii. Unsecured creditors
iii. Deferred creditors
A Spouse
A Partners in partnership
A Loan under a profit / loss sharing arrangement.
Preferential creditors:

i Amount owed to the state, not later than twelve monthsfbre the commencement of the
bankruptcy proceedings.

ii. Salaries owed to employees within the last four months to the bankruptcy proceedings
subject to a maximum amount of N300 per employees.

3.9 Meaning ofinsolvency

Insolvencyis the state of being wable to pay the money owed, by a person or company, on time; those in
a state of insolvency are said to msolvent There are two forms: cadtow insolvency and balanesheet
insolvency.

Cashflow insolvency

Thisis when a person or company has enouagsets to pay what is owed, but does not have the
appropriate form of payment. For example, a person may own a large house and a valuable car, but not
have enough liquid assets to pay a debt when it falls due.-@@ashinsolvency can usually be resolved b
negotiation. For example, the bill collector may wait until the car is sold and the debtor agrees to pay a
penalty.

Balancesheet insolvency

Thisis when a person or company does not have enough assets to pay all of their debts. The person or
company migt enter bankruptcy but not necessarily. Once a loss is accepted by all parties, negotiation is
often able to resolve the situation without bankruptcy.

A company that is balanegheetinsolvent may still have enough cash to pay its next bill on time. However,
most laws will not let the company pay that bill unless it will directly help all their creditors. For example,
an insolvent farmer may be allowed to hire people to help harvestdtop, becausaot harvesting and
selling the crop would be worse for his creditors.

3.10 Statement of Affairs
This is the statement of assets and liabilities of the debtor under bankruptcy. It is expected to be prepared
and submitted to the official reeiver within 14 days after the issuance of the receiving order by the court.
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Major differences between a statement of affairs under bankruptcy and a statement of financial position of
a going concern include the following:

i.) astatement of affairs includdné private assets and liabilities of the owner of the business

ii.) a statement of affairs is prepared for and on behalf of the creditors while statement of financial
position is prepared on behalf of the business

iii.) assets are arranged in order of liquidity irethtatement of affairs

iv.) assets are stated at their net realizable value in the statement of affairs but at cost or net book
value in the statement of financial position.

lllustration 1

On 1 January 2000, Yakowa commenced businessNgifR,000. For yea 2007 to 2011,
profits were N80,000,MN64,000,MN36,000,MN28,000 andN8,000 respectively. His average
annual drawing wasi44,000.

A receiving order was made against him on 31 December 2011, when his
position was as follows:

Nannn
Unsecured creditors 400
Mortgage Freehold Factory 80
Trade payables (partly secured) 240
(Security: Life Policy estimatedi80,000)
Amount payable in respect of salaries and wages (preferential) 9.6
Bills receivable, discounted and expected to rank 64
Freehdd factory (cost800,000) Estimated to realise 400
Trade receivables: Good 120
Doubtful (Estimated to reali$él2,000) 40
Bad 100
Furniture & Fittings (Estimated to realidé,000) 16
Plant and Machinery (Estimated to reaf&t®,000) 160
Trade inventories (Estimated to realid£11,000) 160
Cashin- hand 1.6
Required:
Prepare a Statement of Affairs and Deficiency Account in statutory form.
Solution
YAKOWA
Statement of Affairs as at 31 December 2011
Gross Amount Expecte Amount
Amount to rank expected to
realize
NOnnn |[NQnnn NOOO |NQAan NQnnn
400 Unsecured - 400 Debtors:
Trade Payables - Good 120
Fully secured - Doubtful 12
Trade Payables - Bad -
80 Mortgage 80 - Inventories 111

147 S



Less: Freehold - Cash 1.6
Factory 400 Plant & Mach 40
Surplus 320 Furniture & Fittings _ 7
Partly Secured 291.6
240 Trade Payables 240 Add: Surplus 320
Less: Life Policy | (80) Less: Pref. 611.6
Expected to 160 Creditors 9.6
Rank
64 Bills Receivable 64 602.0
Preferential Deficiency _22.0
96 Trade Payables 9.6
624.0 624.0
Deficiency Account
NQ n NQ n
Capital 672 | Drawing (44 x 5) 220
Profits 216 | Loss on freehold fact 400
Life policy 80 | Bills receivable 64
Balance as per LossonP &M 120
Statement of Affairs 22 | Bad Debtg 100
Loss in debtors
(40,000¢ 12,000) 28
Loss on furn. & fittings 9
Laoss on inventories _49
990 990

4.0 Conclusion

Bankruptcy laws relates to sole proprietorship and partnership. It is an arrangement where the court,
through the state, takes over the properties of a debtor, who has become incapable of paying his debt,
disposes of such properties and uses the proceeds to settle the creditors, in order of certain priorities.
Unlike liguidation laws, the liabilities of a debtor, under bankruptcy, extend beyond the business to cover
his private properties, excluding hisdgings, tools and properties held on trust.

5.0 Summary

In this course of analysis in this last study unit, we have discussed bankruptcy, and in the process, we have
espoused on: Meaning of Bankruptcy; Financial Distress and Bankruptcy; Financial ;Distdgency;
Bankruptcy; Factors That Can Lead to Bankruptcy in Banking Industry; Bankruptcy and Debt Restructuring;
Bankrupt Proceeding to Recover Debts; and Proceeding in Individual Bankruptcy to Recover Debts.

6.0 TUTORMMARKED ASSIGNEMENT
1. Bankuptcy law is NOT meant to ridicule the bankrupt. In the light of this statement, state TWO
purposes of bankruptcy law.

2. Anunderchargedankrupt may suffer from some legal disabilities. State THREE of them.

148 S



3. State any FOUR duties of trustees und@nksuptcy which could be carried out with the permission of
the Committee of Inspection.

7.0 References / Further Reading
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

There is no one way to establish what a business is worth. That isdmebasginess value means different
things to different people. Ausiness owner may believe that the business connection to the community it
serves is worth a lot. In addition, economic conditions affect what people believe a business is worth. For
instance when jobs are scarce, more business buyers enter the market and increased competition results
in higher business selling prices.

Business valuation is a complicated issue because there are many acceptable valuation methods. Rather
than using a "onsesizefits-all" valuation approach, buyers and sellers need to decide which method is right
for their business based on industry, size and the circumstances of the sale.

2.0 Objectives
After studying this unit, the student should be familiar with:
A Common reasons fovaluing business/ Shares
Various concepts of value
Factors to be consider in selecting valuation approach
How to value business and shares using various approaches

> > >

3.0 MAIN CONTENT
3.1 Definition and reasons for valuation
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Simply put, business valuatias a process and a set of procedures used to determine what a business is
worth. While this sounds easy enough, getting your business valuation done right takes preparation and
thought.

The following are most common reasons for valuing business/ Shares

A To establish a price for a new share issue

Valuing a business can also help motivate staff

Employee share option scheme

On the death of a shareholder

Regular valuations provide measurement criteria for management in order to help them evaluate how

the busness is performing

On events in respect of trusts which give rise to a tax charge

For capital gains tax purposes

When certain transactions in companies take place, for example, purchase of own shares by the
company.

' YRSNJ LINRP DA AA2Y a ofAGsotiatidd2 YLI ye Qa ! NI A Of
' YRSNJ aKFNBK2f RSNEQ 2NJ 2GKSNJ I ANBSYSyi
In disputes between shareholders

For financial settlements in divorce

In insolvency and/or bankruptcy matters.

> > > > P
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3.2 Concepts of Value
There are various concepts of value, depending on what valuerig d&cussed.

Book Value

The book value of an asset is the value of an asset as stated in the books of account. It is the cost less
depreciation to date. The book value of the firm is the aggregate book value of all the company s assets
less the total bok value of its liabilities

Market Value

The market value adn asset is just the price athich the asset will be bought and sold in the open market.
The market value of a security is the market price of the security.

Intrinsic (true) value

The intrirsic value of a security is what the value should he if appropriately valued based on the company s
fundamentals, that is; its turnover, earnings, assets, future prospects, management and so on.

Goingconcern value

This value is baskon the assumptiothat the firm will continue to operate into an indefinite future period
and generate positive future cash flows for its investors.

Breakup (Gone Concern)
This is the value of the firm where the assets (class of assets; are individually sold at tisgibleahlues.
This often happens when the firm is being liquidated and assets have to be realised in order to pay off the

liabilities of the firm and distribute the balance (if any) to the owners.

Fair Value
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in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Replacementost

Areplacementcost is the cost toeplacean asset of a company at the same or equalie

3.3 Factors to be consider in selectingiuation approach

Depends on the:

1. Nature of operations
2. Life cycle stage.

A Earliest stage: Assétased approach because the goitncern premise of value and/or the expected
future cash flows may be uncertain or difficult to predict.

A Development stage: tome/free cash flow method if the company is growing rapidly.

A Mature stage: Market approach.

3. The circumstances of a busine&o{ng Concern or Breakup value)

In Going Concern Valughe utility of the assets is to be considered for the purpose of arriginipe
value of the assets, but, Breakup valuethe realizable value of the assets is to be taken.

4, Valuation perspective
5. The reason for the valuation.

3.4 Valuation Approaches
The principal valuations approaches discuss in this study are: (a) Asset &pproach, and (b) Income
approach. Each of these principal valuation approaches includes different detailed methods of application.

3.4.1 Asset approach

The asset approach views the business as a sa$s#ftsand liabilitiesthat are used as building blocks to
construct the picture of business value.Assetbasedvaluationis a straightforward metbd in which the

value of the business is determined by the total value of the company's tangible and intangible assets. The
challenge with this method is that asdeaised valuations can owsimplify the process and neglect the
value of the company's eamgs potential. That is why asseased valuation is a common method for the

sale of defunct businesses and liquidations, but not as common for thriving companies.

The difficulty in an asset valuation method is establishing the asset values to use.Urkeafigched to an
individual asset may vary considerably depending on whether it is valued on a going concern orwpbreak
basis.
(@) Historic basiscdzy t A1 Sté& G2 3IAGBS I+ NBFHEAaGAO QI f dzS
depreciation and amortizatiopolicy.
(b) Replacement basisif the assets are to be used on an-going basis.
(©) Realisable basisif the assets are to be sold, or the business as a whole broken up. This
g2y Qi 0SS NBEtSOIyd AT | YAY2NK @8 wikcsntiin&iiK 2 f RSN
0KS o0dzaAySaaQa dzasS
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How it works

A Add up the value of all the assets such as cash, stock, plant and equipment and receivables
A Add up liabilities, such as any bank debts and payments due
A Subtract the liabilities from the assets to get thet assets value

Limitations
A Does not take into account the ability of those assets to generate wealth in the future
A Does not take into account goodwill
A For these reasons, assets valuation may understate the true value of the business

What about goodwil?

A Goodwill is the difference between the true value of a business and the value of its net assets.

A It can be crucial to the value of the retail and service based businesses.

A For example, if you value a hair salon, where service, location and reputatdmportant, the
value of any goodwill will have to added to the net assets to get a valuation.

A Goodwill may or may not be transferred if you buy a business, since it can come from physical
FSIFGdNBa tA1S €t20F0A2y3S 2 Nk rEfRIYn oLI8IatENBhPS Wwith F I O
customers or suppliers.

A If a business is underperforming and has no goodwill, then using net asset valuation could be an
accurate way to value it.

Illustration 1

Osezele wants to buy a dry cleaning business. Here igteacefrom the statement of financial position.

N N
Current assets
Cash 180,000
Debtors 570,000
Stock 210,000 960,000
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 320,000
Accumulated depreiation (30,000)
Building 1,750,0002,040,000
Total assets 3,000,000
Current Labilities
Creditors 60,000
Provision for Taxes 180,000240,000
Noncurrent liabilities
Loan 290,000
Mortgage 1,470,0001,760,000
Total liabilities 2,000,000

The business hdd3,000,000 of assets and N2,000,000 liabilities
The net assets value#l , 000,000

3.4.2 Income approach

Theincome approach relies upon the economic principle of expectation: the value of business is based on
the expected economic benefit and level of risk associated with the investment. Income based valuation
methods determindair market valueby dividing the benefit stream generated by the subject or Target
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Company multiplied by a discount or capitalization rate. The discount or capitalization rate converts the
stream of beneafs into present value

There are several different income methods, including capitalization of earnirggsloflows discounted
future cash flows OCF), and the excess earnings method (which is a hybrid of asset and income
approaches).

Although there are many ways tanplement the income approach, all methods under the income
approach are effectively based on discounting future amounts of cash flow to present value.

Under the DCF method the forecasted cash flow is discounted back to the valuation date, resulting in a
present value of the assetAdiscount rateor capitalization ratds used ¢ determine thepresent valueof

the expected return®f a business. The discount rate arapitalization rateare closely related to each
other, but distinguishable. Discount rate is used when there are multiple streams of income and
capitalization is used whendhe is a single stream of income.

The key steps in the DCF method are:

(a) choose the most appropriate type of cash flow for the nature of the subject asset and the assignment
(ie, gross or net, préax or posttax, total cash flows or cash flows to eguliiteal or nominal, etc),

(b) Determine the most appropriate explicit period, if any, over which the cash flow will be forecast,
(c) Prepare cash flow forecasts for that period,

(d) Determine whether a terminal value is appropriate for the sobpsset at the end of thexplicit
forecast period and then determine the appropriate terminal value for the natureof the asset,

(e) Determine the appropriate discount rate, and apply the discount rate to the forecasted future cash
flow, including tke terminal value, if any.

Discount Rate

The rate at which the forecast cash flow is discounted should reflect not only the time value of money, but
also the risks associated with the future operations of the asset or business.While there are many methods
for developing or determining the reasonableness of a discount rate, they commonly considefraeisk

rate plus some form of risk premium. N@xhaustive lists of common methods include:

(a) capital asset pricing model (CAPM),

(b) weighted average cbsf capital (WACC), (c) internal rate of return (IRR),
(d) weighted average return on assets (WARA), and

(e) buildup method (generally used only in the absence of market inputs).

3.4.3 Dividend Discount Model (DDM

In the dividend discount model (DDMdividends are the relevant cash flows. The rationale behind the
DDM is that the cash flows are the cash flows equity investors will receive in the future. Note, however,
that some firms do not pay dividends and other firms reinvest a substantial patiearnings back in the

firm. The argument for using the DDM is that sooner or later, all firms will pay dividends and reinvestment
in the firm will increase future dividends.

The DDM is a basic tool in valuing common stock. The DDM is based on thihaté#ze value of an
investment is the present value of future cash flows, where here the future cash flows are the dividends.

T
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The formula says that the value of common stock at time z€gpi§ equal to the discountegtream of
future dividends ) plus the expected pricd’) of the stock when sold at time period n. The discount rate

is the required return on common equity)( The formula assumes the stock will be heldrfperiods.

When to Use DDMs

DDMs are mosappropriate when:

1. The firm has a history of dividend payments. This provides an analyst with a history from which to
extrapolate future dividends. Otherwise, it is difficult to forecast when a-dgieidendpaying firm

will start paying dividends and how i they will eventually be.
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related to firm earnings if they are to be a good indicator of future firm and shareholder wealth.
3. The valuation perspective isd@hof a noncontrolling shareholder. If the perspective is that of a
controlling shareholder where firm cash flows can be controlled, a free cash flow model would be

more appropriate.

4. DDMs are usually most applicable to mature, profitable firms with eohisof stable dividend

payments.
Illustration 2
0 1 2 3
D N1.00 N1.05 N1.10
p N20.00

In this example, we assume that the investor will sell the stock in three years for N20. The dividend stream

for the first three years is shown ohd slide.

V,=N1.00+N1.05+N21.10
1.10 1.106 1.10°

Vo, =N17.63
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We discount the future cash flows at a required return on equity of 10 (percent).

The total future value in Year 3 is N21.10 (the dividend in Year 3 is N1.10 and the stock\#ie is

In practice, analysts will often forecast dividends for the nextByears. The length of the projected
LISNA2R gAff 2F0Sy RSLISYR 2y (GKS LISNOSAGSR LINBRAOU
The stock price in the last yeghere the third year) is referred to as the terminal share price.

Gordon Growth Model

_Do(i+g) D1

T g rg

To get an infinite stream of dividends to converge to a finite stock value at Time 0, we must assume that
the required return on common equity greater than the growth rate in dividends. To arrive at a simple
stock valuation formula, we must also assume that the growth rate in dividends is constant. The resulting
formula is the Gordon growth model.

Vo

The Gordon growth model formula says that thdueaof common stock at Time ®f is equal to the
dividend next period[};) divided by the required return on common equity ninus the constant growth
rate for dividendsd).

Notice that the dividend next periodX) is equal to the current dividen,) times (1 + Constant growth
rate in dividends).
The formula assumes the following:

1) thatr>gand

2) thatgis constant.

lllustration 3

The current dividend of Datacorp.is N2.50, the growth rate is 5% and the cost of capital is 10%.
a. What should the pee of this stock be using a constant DDM model?

Value = N2.50(1.05)/(-D5) = N52.50.

lllustration 4

Keffi Plc dividend next year is expected to be N5 with a growth rate of 3% and a cost of capital of 9%.
What should the current price of the stock banga constant DDM model?

Value = N5/(.0903) = N83.33

lllustration 5

Keffi Plc dividend next year is expected to be N5 with a growth rate of 3% and a cost of capital of 9%.
a. What should the current price of the stock be using a constant DDM model?

Vdue = N5/(.09.03) = N83.33

b. What would the price of the stock be 5 years from now?

To find the price 5 years from now, we need to find the dividend in thee@r. Thus, &= D(1 + gJ. Note
if given @, Ds= D1 + ¢). Oy=5(1.03)= N5.796, svalue = N5.796/(.0903) = N96.61.

Value preferred stock

Preferred stock usually pays a fixed dividend that does not grow. In this case, we can use the Gordon
growth model to value it, but with a growth rate equal to zero. Because the growth rate is(thero
dividend is constant), we divide by only the required return. For this reason, the required return is often
referred to as the capitalization rate (i.e., it capitalizes the dividend).
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The strengths of the Gordon growth model are the following:

A 1t is simple to understand and applicable to stable, mature firms that have constant growth in
dividends.

A It can be used to value an entire stock market using the data for the entire stock market.

A g, the growth rate in dividends, can be estimated ugjvg norinal GDP (gross domestic product)
growth, which is the sum of real GDP growth and Hegn inflation.

A The Gordon growth model can be applied to firms that both pay dividends and repurchase stock if
an analyst forecasts per share dividends that refleettumber of shares that will be repurchased
over time. Note, however, that firms do not commit to repurchase policies the way they do
dividend policies; forecasting repurchases is thus difficult.

The limitations of the Gordon growth model are the following

A The model cannot be reliably applied to firms without a dividend history because forecasting
future dividends becomes more difficult. Dividends should also have a consistent relationship with
GKS FTANNXQAa SIENYyAy3Iao

A The model assumes that the dividend grbwate is constant, so it cannot be applied to firms with
several different future growth rates in dividends. Recall also that the model assumes that the
required return on equityr{ is greater than the dividend growth rate.

A The estimated stock value isty sensitive to the ¢ g denominator. If the denominator changes by
just 1%, for example, estimated valuations will change by a large monetary value. For this reason,
an analyst should perform sensitivity analysis, where the stock is valued under wliffecpiired
returns and growth rates.

A Many, perhaps most, firms have nonconstant growth in future dividends, so the Gordon growth
model cannot be directly applied. For these firms, we will need to use multistage models, which
are discussed in the slides tollow.

3.4.4 Free cash flow (FCF)

Free cash flow is the cash flow left over after the firm fulfills certain obligations. When defined as free cash
flow to the firm (FCFF), it refers to the cash flow from operations minus that needed to purchase asset

YSSRSR (2 adadlriAy (GKS FTANYQa LINBRdAzOGA GBS OF LI OAGE D

The FCF measure gives investors an idea of a company's ability to pay down debt, increase savings and
increase shareholder value, and FCF is used for valuation purposes.

Free cash flow to the firm is ¢hcash available to all investors, both equity and debt holders.

oo
FCFF!1

Firm Valueﬁﬂmc Z :

1
Firm Valu
It

=1 SingleStage Free Cash Flow Models
. Fore s
Firm Value Tacc—g

Equity Value = Firm \{ee ¢ Debt Value
Equity Valuérf_L:r1
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Free cash flow models are most appropriate when

=

The firm does not have a history of dividend payments so DDMs are difficult to use.

2. ¢KS FTANY R2Sa LI & RADGARSYRAIZ 0 dziin thiskc&se, frde bdSh | &
flow may be better for valuation.

3. The firm has positive free cash flow. If a firm has negative cash flows for the foreseeable future
because of, for example, large capital expenditures, it can be difficult to forecast when cash flow
will become positive.

4. TKS FANXQa FTNBS OlFlakK Fi2g KlFLa | O2yaraidSyd NBf
good indicator of future firm and shareholder wealth.

5. The perspective is that of a controlling shareholder because a controllingfsblder can control

Fff GKS FTANNXQa OFakK Ff2¢6a o6y20 2dzaid GKS RADGARS

Calculation ofCash Flow fronCash Flow from Operations (CF&)d Net Income
Calculation of FCFF using CFO

Because FCFF is the cash flow allocated to all investors including digdxtshehe interest expense which
is cash available to debt holders must be added back. The amount of interest expense that is available is
the aftertax portion, which is shown as the interest expense multiplied-tgxIrate [Int x (dax rate)]. .

Thismakes the calculation of FCFF using CFO equal to:
FCFF = CFO + [Int xtdx rate)] ¢ FCInv

Where:

CFO = Cash Flow from Operations

Int = Interest Expense

FCinv = Fixed Capital Investment (total capital expenditures)

This formula is different for firm's thdollow IFRS. Firm's that follow IFRS would not add back interest
since it is recorded as part of financing activities. However, since IFRS allows dividends paid to be part of
CFO, the dividends paid would have to be added back.

Calculation OF FCCF ushdet Income

The calculation using Net Income is similar to the one using CFO except that it includes the items that
differentiate Net Income from CFO. To arrive at the right FCFF, working capital investments must be
subtracted and nortash charges must belded back to produce the following formula:

FCFF = NI + NCC + [Intxad rate)] ¢ FCInwg WCInv

Where:

NI = Net Income

NCC = Nowash Charges (depreciation and amortization)
Int = Interest Expense

FCinv = Fixed Capital Investment (total capital expareh)
WClInv = Working Capital Investments

Calculation OF FCCF using EBIT and EBITDA
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FCFF = EBIT (1 Tax rate) +{e@inw WCinv

FCFF = EBITDA (1 Tax rate) +¢D@ax rate) FCInyWClinv

lllustration 6

EBITDA N1,000
Depreciation expense $400
Interest expense $150
Tax rate 30%
Purchases of fixed assets $500
Change in working capital $50
Net borrowing $80
Common dividends $200

NI = (EBITDADep¢ Int) (1-Tax rate)
NI = ($10065400$150) (20.30) = $315

FCFF = NI+NCC +InfTé rate) FCInwWClinv
FCFF= $315+%400+$15@0(30)$500$50=$270

EBIT=EBITDADep = $1006 $600

FCFF = EBIT (1 Tax rate) +@e@inwg WCinv
FCFF = $600-(L30) +$40@ $500$50=$270
FCFF = NI+NCC +Inféix rate)g FCInwWClinv
FCFF= $1000-0.30)+$400(0.30)_56$50=$270
CFO = NI + DepW/cinv

CFO = $315 + 40850 = $665

FCFF = CFO + InfTi@x rate); FC Inv

FCFF = $ 665 + $ 1560(30)-$500 = $270

Illustration 7

Ekpoma Corporation is expected to have EBIT of N2.3M this year. Ekpoma Corporation B0 tiaex
bracket, will report N175,000 in depreciation, will make N175,000 in capital expenditures, and have no
change in net working capital this year. After the coming year, cash flows are expected to grow at 7% per
year. The appropriate market capitalin rate for unleveraged cash flow is 13% per year. What is
Ekpoma's corporation FCFF?
Solution

c/cc I' 9.L¢o6mM b ¢0 b RSLINBOAFGAZ2Y b OFLRAGIE SELSY
MTpZnnn b n ' mMIcManInnnkdodmo b daTO

3.4.5 Residual income (RI)
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model, the value of equity is the book value of common stock plus the present value of future residual
income. RI is sometimeslled; economic profit, abnormal earnings, or economic value added (EVA).

The appeal of residual income models stemmed from a shortcoming of traditional accounting models
which ignore a charge for the cost of equity capital.In the traditional income st net income
accounts for the cost of debt capital (in the interest expense) but does not account for the cost of equity
capital. Residual income accounts for the cost of both debt and equity capital.
The equity charge is also known as

1. the cost of eqity capital, and

2. the required return on equity.
Note that a firm could have positive net income but negative residual income.
lllustration 8
The following is extracted from the income statement and balance sheet of a firm for 2011. (Amounts in N
thousand3

Operating income (after tax) 17,507
Net financial expenses 3,060
Comprehensive income 14,447

The firm paid out all income in dividends at the end of the year and there were no share issues during
2011. The book value of common equity hetend of 2001 was N100,600. The cost of equity capital is
11%.

(@) Calculate residual income for 2011.

(b) The residual income for 2012 and all subsequent years is expected to be the same as in 2011.

Calculate the value of the equity at the enti2®11.

Solution

First calculate the book value at the beginning of 2011, then calculate residual earnings earned in 2011 on
this book value. Residual earnings equals comprehensive income minus a charge against the book value at
11%.

Book Value (2010) =Book Value (201X)Earnings (11) + Dividends (11)
=100,60Q; 14,447 + 14,447
= 100,600

Residual Earning2011) = 14,447 (0.11 x 100,600)

=3,381

Calculate the value of the equity using the residual earnings model.
Value = Book Value + Pras&alue of RE
As residual income is expected to be a perpetuity,

Value = 100,600 +3i81
0.11

= 131,336
Residual income models are most appropriate when
1. The firm does not have a history of substantial dividend payments so DDMs ardtdifficse.
2. The firm has negative free cash flow, which makes the application of free cash flow models
difficult.
3. The firm has accounting disclosures of high quality. This allows an analyst to rely on the reported
earnings and book value needed to calculte value with a residual income model.
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Illustration 9

A firm announces that it will invest N150 million in an asset that is expected to generate a 15% rate of

return on its beginningpf-period book value for the next five years. The required retamtlis type of
project is 12%; the firm depreciates the cost of assets strdigatover the life of the investment.

What is the value added to the firm from this investment?

Solution

First calculate the book value of the asset at the beginning of ezah Yhis is the original cost of the asset
less accumulated depreciation to that year. Then calculate earnings as a 15% return on book value.
Proceed to apply the residual earnings model to value the project.

Year 0 1 2 3 4 5
Depreciation 30 30 30 30 30
Book value 150 120 90 60 30 0
Earnings (15%) 22.5 18 13.5 9 4.5
RE (.12) 4.5 3.6 2.7 1.8 0.9
PV of RE (1.12 4.02 2.87 1.92 1.14 51
Total PV of RE 10.47

Value of Project 160.47

The investment added N10.47 million over the cost.

3.46 Price Earnings (P/E) ratio method

The P/E ratio is a valuation ratio of a company's curghiaire pricecompared to its peshare earnings. It is
the most commonY S| &dzZNS 2F K2g SELISYyarAgdS | aaz201 Aao
GSENYyAYy3Ia YdzE GALIX S¢d LG Aa OFfOdzAg FiSR &y

P/E = Market price per share / Earnings per share (EPS)

This is a common method of valuing a controlling interest in a companyiewthe owner can decide on
RAGARSYR YR NBUOSYGA2ya LRfAOD® ¢KS t k9 NIGAZ
This can then be used to value shares in unquoted companies as:

Market value (or market capitalization) of company = total earnings x&Ritc

Value per share = EPS x P/E ratio

In general, a high PM&ggests that investors are expectinigher earninggrowthin the future compared

to companies with dower P/E. However, the P/E ratio doesn't tell us the whole story by itself. It's
usually more useful to compare the P/E ratios of oc@mpany to other companies in the same industry, to
the market in general or against the company's own historical PAEQ & y 2 G dzA SFdz G 2
compare a technology company (typically higher)RtEa utility company (typically lower P/E) as each
industry has much different growth prospects.
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When a stock's P/E ratio is high, it is often considered pricey or overvalued while stocks with low P/Es are
typically considered a good value.

Problems wth using P/E ratio Problems with using P/E ratio

@ ! aAy3datsS eSINNna tk9 NIGA2 Yre y24 060S | 3I22R ol
share price is at an abnormal level, due for example to the expectation of a takeover bid.

(b) Findinga quoted company with a similar range of activities may be difficult. Quoted companies are
often diversified.

(c) If a P/E ratio trend is used, then historical data will be being used to value how the unquoted
company will do in the future.

(d) The goted company may have a different capital structure to the unquoted company.

(e) Itis subjective in that there is no proven method for converting the PE ratio of a listed

company to one applicable to the entity being valued.

(H The method focuseonly on one aspect of the company and that is earnings. It ignores

the asset values and ability of the company to generate cash flows, among other things.
lllustration 10

For example, if a company is currently trading at N43 a share and earningshevest 12 months were
N1.95 per share. What is the P/E ratio?

Solution

The P/E ratio for the stock would be 22.05 (N43/N1.95). This number basically shows how much investors
are willing to pay per naira of earnindsa company were currently trading atmultiple(P/E) of 22, the
interpretation is that an investor iwilling to pay N22 for N1 afurrent earnings.

4.0 CONCLUSION

In this unit, we discussed different types of value and various reasons while valuation is carrigdeout.
also looked at some eammon approaches to valuation; asset base approaches, Income approach,
dividend approach, free cash flow approach etc. Business valuation is a complicated issue because
there are many acceptable valuation methods. Rather than using a "esiefits-all" valuation
approach, buyers and sellers need to decide which method is right for their business based on
industry, size and the circumstances of the sale.

5.0 SUMMARY

There are various concepts of value, depending on what value is being discussed. Thp@sseh views
the business as a set a$setsandliabilitiesthat are used as building blocks tonstruct the picture of
business value. Income based valuation methods deterii@memarket valueby dividing the benefit
stream generated by the subject or Target Compentiplied by a discount or capitalization rate.

6.0 Tutors Mark Assessment

1.Ubiaja Corporation is expected have EBIT of N6.2M this year. Ubiaja Corporation is in the 40% tax
bracket, will report N1.2M in depreciation, will make N1.4M in capital egjiares, and have a N160,000
increase in net working capital this year. What is Ubiaja’s FCFF?

2.The directors of Omonso plc, a large conglomerate, are considering the acquisition of the entire share
capital of Qjiso, which manufactures a range of eagiing machinery. Neither company has any long
term debt capital. The directors of Omonso believe that if Ojiso is taken over, the business risk of Omonso
will not be affected.

The accounting reference date of Ojiso is 31 July. Its balance sheet asudy 3@03 is expected to be as
follows.
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Non-current assets (net of depreciation)
Current assets

Inventory

Receivables

Bank balances

Capital and reserves
Issled ordinary shares of N1 each
Distributable reserves

Current liabilities
Payables
Bank overdraft

haArazQa adzyyYlk NAT SR

Year ended 31 July 2000
N

Profit before norrecurring
items

30,400
Non-recurring items 2,900
Profit after nonrecurring 33,300
items
Less dividends 20,500
Added to reserves 12,800

2001

69,000
(2,200)

66,800

22,600

44,200

The following additional information is available.
1. There have been no changes in the issued share capital of Ojiso during the past five years.
2. The estimated values ¢f 2 A & 2-€dentiegfs and inventory and work in progress as on 31 July

2004 are as follows.

Non-current assets

Inventory

A 2 4 A x

3. LG Aa SELISOGSR

Replacement cost

N
725,000

550,000

515,900
745,000
158,100

753,600
862,900

TAYLFYOAL €

2002

49,400
(6,100)

43,300

25,000

18,300

651,600

1,419,000
2,070,600

50,000

404,100
454,100

1,616,500
2,070,600

NEO2NR F2NJ 4KS FTAOS

2003 2004
(estimated)
N N

48,200 53,200
(9,800)  (1,000)

38,400 52,200

25,000 25,000

13,400 27,200

Realisable value

N
450,000

570,000

0 Kl G 1ay 200&Fwillb€unéole@idle. NS OSA @l of Sa
4. The cost of capital of OmonsoCarment plc is 9%. The directors of Qjiso estimate that the shareholders
of Ojiso require a minimum return of 12% per annum from their investment in the company.
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5. The current P/E ratio oflOmonso is 12. Quoted companies with business activities and profitability
similar to those of Ojiso have P/E ratios of approximately 10, although these companies tend to be
much larger than Ojiso.

Required:

(a) Estimate the value of the total equity ofi€b as on 31 July 2004 using each of the following bases:

() Book value;
(i) Replacement cost of the assets;
(i) Realisable value of the assets;
(iv) The dividend valuation model;
(v) The P/E ratio model.
(b) Explain the role and limitations of eaohthe above five valuation bases in the process by which
a price might be agreed for the purchase by Omonso of the total equity capital of Ojiso.
7.0 References/Further Reading

James C. Van Horne John M. Wachowicz, Jr. (2009) Fundamentals of Finaraginvart 13th
Edition Pearson Education Limited
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UNIT EIGHTACCOUNTING FOR FOREIGN BRANCHES

CONTENT
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12.0 Summary

13.0 Tutor Marked Assignment
14.0 References/Further Reading

1.0 Introduction

Foreign branches are branches situated outside the country where the head office of the firm/business
organization is located. They usually maintain a complete set of book under the double entry principles.
Before a trial balance of the foreign branch is incorporated in the head office books, it has to be converted
into the home currency.

Accounting for foreign branches is covered under International Accounting Standards (IAS) 21. (The Effects
of Changes in Foign Exchange Rates)

2.0 Objectives
After studying this unit, the student should be familiar with :
A Rules for translation of trial balance of foreign branch
A How to convert trial balance in foreign currency to functional currency of head office
A How to prepardinal account incorporating foreign branch

3.1 Rules for conversion

Nature of Account Exchange Rate Applicable
1 Non Current Assets Rates ruling at the time they wer
acquired
2 Non Current Liabilities Rates ruling as at the date of the tri
balarce
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3.2

3 Current Assets and Liabilities Rates ruling as at the date of the tri
balance

4 Goods received/return to Head Office | At the rates ruling on the date g
dispatch or the date of receipt

5 Nominal accounts (Except dep. A| Averagerate ruling during the accountin

closing inventory) period

6 Depreciation of Fixed Assets Rate of conversion applicable in case
the particular assets concerned

7 Opening and closing inventory Rates ruling on the opening and closi
dates respectively

8 Balance in H@ccount Value at which the branch accou
appears in H.O. books on the date

9 Remittances sent by the branch At the actual rates at which remittance
were made.

Differences in Exchange
As a result of conversion of branch trial balance in home aggrea difference in the trial balance

will often arise. If a loss (Dr.), it should be debited to profit and loss account. If a profit (Cr.) the
prudent course is to credit it to exchange reserve account so as to provide for future losses on

exchange.

Illustration1

Obeto Itd (a Nigerian company) has a branch at Washington. Its Trial Balance 4Sap8&mber,
2003 is as follows:

Particulars Dr.Us$ | Cr.Us$
Plant & Machinery 1,200,000
Furniture & Fixtures 8,000
Stock on Oct?l, 2002 56,000
Purchases 2,400,000
Sales - 4,160,000
Goods from NigeraCo. (H.O) 80,000
Wages 2,000
Carriage inward 1,000
Salaries 6,000
Rent, rates and taxes 2,000
Insurance 1,000
Trade Expenses 1,000
Head Office A/c -—-| 1,140,000
Trade Debtors 24,000
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Trade Creditors 17,000
Cash at Bank 5,000
Cash in Hand 1,000

5,470,000{ 5,470,000

The following further information is given:

Wages outstanding $ 1,000

Depreciate Plant & Machinery and Furniture & Fixtures @ 10 Pempcant
The H.O. sent goods to Branch #89,400,000

The H.O. shows an amountd#3,000,000 due from Branch

Stock on 30th September, 20&352,000

There were no in transit items either at the start or at the end of the year.

~oQoo0 oW

Exchange rates:

a. On F'Septenber 2001 when the fixed assets were purchased, the rate of exchandé38ds one $.
b. On F'October, 2002 the rate wad39 to one $.

c. On 30" September, 2003 the rate wa#!1 to one $.

d. Average rate during the year wag0 to one $.

You are asked to preparéa) Trial Balance incorporating adjustments given above, converting dollars
into naira,(b) Trading and P & L A/c for the year ended 30.9.2003 and Balance sheet as on that date.

Solution

Incorporated TB

Dr Cr

N N
Cost
Plant and Mahinery 4,560,000 -
Furniture and Fittings 304,000 -
Accumulated Depreciation: - -
Plant and Machinery - 456,000
Furniture and Ftings i 30,400
Stock on Oct 1, 2002 2,184,000 -
Purchases 9,600,000 -
Sales - 16,640,000
Goods from indian Co. (HO) | 3,940,000 -
Wages 80,000 -
Carriage inward 40,000 -
Salaries 280,000 -
Rent, rates and taxes 80,000 -
Insurance 40,000 -
Trade Expenses 40,000 -
Head Office Alc - 4,300,000
Trade Debtors 984,000 -
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Trade Creditors

738,000

Cash at Bank 205,000 -

Cash in Hand 41,000 -

Depreciation: - -

Plant and Machinery 456,000 -

Furniture and Fittings 30,400 -

Closing stock

Exchange Loss 700,000

Profit

Total 22,864,400| 22,864,400

Obeto Itd

Profit or Loss Account

for the year ended September 30, 2003

Sales 16,640,000
Opening Stdc 2,184,000

Add : Purchases 9,600,000

Goods sent from HO 3,940,000

Carriage Inward 40,000

Cost of goods available for sale 15,764,000

Less Closing Stock 2,132,000

Cost of goods sold 13,632,000
Gross Profit 3,008,000
Administrative Expenses

Salaries 280,000

Wages 80,000

Rent, rates and taxes 80,000

Insurance 40,000

Trade Expenses 40,000

Exchange Loss 700,000
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Depreciation 486,400
Total Expenses 306,400
Net Profit 2,701,600
Obetoltd
Balance Sheet
As at September 30, 2003
Fixed Asset 4,377,600
Current Asset
Stock 2,132,000
Trade Debtors 984,000
Cash at Bank 205,000
Cash in Hnd 41,000

3,362,000
Curent Liability
Trade Creditors 738,000 2,624,000
Net Current Asset
Asset Employed 7,001,600
Finance By
Net Prdit 2,701,600
Head Office Account 4,300,000

7,001,600

4.0 Conclusion

A Foreign branch usually maintains a complete set of books under double entry principles. So, the
accounting principles of a Foreign BrancH i the same as those applying to an Inland Branch.
Before a Trial Balance of the Foreign Branch is incorporated in the head office books, it has to be

converted into home currency.

5.0 Summary

Foreign branches are branches situated outside the country wibee head office of the
firm/business organization is located. Various rules exist for conversion of branch trial balance to
the home currency. Conversion of branch trial balance will often result to exchange loss or gain
which is either debited to profiind loss account or credited to exchange reserve account.

6.0 Tutor Marked Assignment
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London Branch of Akwanga Export House sent the following T.B. as on 31.12.2001.

Particulars Dr. Cr.
Fixed assets 17,500
Loan (taken to purchag
of fixed assets) 13,000
Depreciation 2,500
Stack 1:1-2001 8,200
Goods from H.O. 58,800
Sales 1,05,200
Salaries & Wages 15,200
Interest 2,880
Cash & Bank 1,700
Debtors 21,200
H.O. Account 9,780
Fixed assets were purchased ofi-ihd 4 K Sy ™ ' Hp ®tp beX10 years To gl a
TAYIFYyOS GKS FTAESR FaasSd | t2by Y2dzydAay3a G2
installment of 3,000 and interest were payable in every December. Exchange Rates are as follows:
Average of 199¢ ™ 29.70
On 31.12.1999 ™ 2610
Average of 200( ™ 26020
On 31.12.2000 i 26.40
Average of 200] W 36050
On 31.12.2001 ™ 4220

In the Head Office books London Branch A/c appeared as follows:

London Branch A/c

Particulars N

Particulars

N

To Balancd®/d | 7,000( 1,840,800
To goods 58,800( 21,460,200
To P&L Alc -1 1,260,446

Exchange gair -

By Bank | 56,020

By Balancg 9,780

20,440,730

4,120,716
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You are required to show Branch fixed assets Al/c., Branch Loan A/c., Branch Tria@ ivalaaica
terms, Branch P & L A/c, Adjustment Entries to incorporate branch balances in the H.O. Books.

7.0 References/Further Reading
Frank woodalansangster2008)business accounting, volumeRZT Press

Bello, S. O. & Barnabas, S. A. (2017).Advanced Financial Accounting, Bida, 9ICE LINK Production
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

For most largescale project or program, a single business has not enough strength both in finance or
technology to undertake it as a whole. However, it would be a strong point for them to undertake a
particular part of the project. Under this circumstangeint efforts with other business in necessary to
undertake the project. The collaborative approach to the manufacture of an aircraft is a good example of
this type of joint venture where the wings, body and engine are built by different companies. Each
company bears its own costs and takes an agreed contractual share of the revenue from the sale of the
aircraft.
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A joint venture is simply a venture undertaken jointly by two or more persons with a view to
making a profit. It differs from a partnership that it is more temporary in nature and has
more specific limited objective(s).

Joint Ventures can be found in almost every business sphere but they are often associated with
one-off transaction, such as buying up the stocks of a bankrupt business ogiegga other

short term operations. A party to a joint venture may be called avartture or simply a
venture.

2.0 OBJECTIVES

At the end of this unit, you should be able to:

Define a joint venture business

Understand types of joint ventures

Prepare joinventure Accounts from Information provided.

3.0 Main Content
3.1 Main Features of a Joint Venture
A The ratio in which business profits (losses) are to be shared must be clearly stated and
agreed by the venture. Where this has not been explistifed, profit is assumed to
be shared to be shared equally.
A The scope of the venture and the respective responsibilities of each venturer must be
agreed upon, e.g. one venturer does the buying and the other the selling; but often
each venture makes antncial contribution.
A The parties may agree to pay a venture for services rendered e.g. handling or selling and
such payment is deducted from revenue before the profit (or loss) of the venture is
ascertained

3.2 IFRS 11:Joint Arrangements
Types of joint arangement identified in IFRS 11

0] Joint Operations

A Joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have right to the assets and
obligations forthe liabilities relating to the arrangement. Those parties
are called joint operators.

(i) Joint venture

A Jointventure is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have right to the net asset of the
arrangement. Mese parties are referred to as joint venturers.

Definition of Terms by IFRS 11

Joint arrangement:
An arrangement of which two or more parties hgeat control.

Joint control
The contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, whichseaidly when decision
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Joint operation
A joint arrangementwhereby the parties that havgint control of the arrangement have rights t
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the assets, and obligatiorisr the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.
joint operator
A party to goint operationthat hasjoint control of that joint operation.

Joint venture
A joint arrangementwhereby the parties that hav@int control of the arrangement have rights t
the net assets of the arrangement.

Joint venture

A party to goint venturethat hasjoint control of that joint venture.

Party to a joint arrangement

An entity that participates in gint arrangement regardless of whether that entity hgsint control
of the arrangement.

Separate vehicle

A separately identifiable financial structure, including separate legal entities or entities recogni:

statute, regardless of whether those entities have a legal personality.

3.3  Main Features of a Joint Venture

(i) The ratio in which business profits (losses) are to be shared
must be clearly stated and agreed by the venture. Where this has not
been explicitly stated, profit is assumed to be shared to be shared
equally.
(i)  The scope of the venture and the respectivepassibilities of
each venturer must be agreed upon, e.g. one venturer does the
buying and the other the selling; but often each venture makes a
financial contribution.

A joint operator shall recognise in relation to its interest in a joint operation:

(@) its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

(b) its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

() its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
(d) its share of the revenue from the Igaof the output by the joint operation; and

(e) its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

3.4 Accounting Entries for Joint Venture Accounts

(i) If cashis paid ouDR Joint Venture A/C
CR Cash A/IC

(i)  If cash is received : ¢fm sales or from ceenturer):
DR  Cash

CR Joint Venture Account

(i)  Any charges agreed upon e.g. Sales Commission:
DR Joint Venture Account

CR Commissions Accotim the books of the venture thasto
receive the Commission
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(iv) When it is time to asrtain profit (or loss), the Joint Venture
Account of each party (venture) are combined together in a
Memorandum Joint Venture Account. This account does not form
part of double entry in the books of any venturer.

It is purely a memorandum of what hasaurred and it is used to
ascertain profit (or loss) of the venture.

(v) When profit (or loss) is found, each venture will:
DR Joint Venture Account with his share

CR Profit and Loss on Joint Venture Account with the same amount

(vi) Inthe event of a losgach venture must:
DR Profit and Loss on Joint Venture Account with his share of
the lossCRJoint Venture Account, with the same amount

Memorandum of Joint Venture Account

Whereone party is paying out money and the other receiving money, someegdcwe must be devised to

bring the accounting records together to ascertain whether the venture has made a profit or loss. This is
done by means of a memorandum joint venture account that is opened by each party. This account
contains all the operating eries in the joint venture account of all the parties on the same side as the
original accounts;however, any capital entries should be excluded from this account. This account does
not form part of the double entry system. Contra entries between the paréiee excluded from it. The
valance on the memorandum joint venture account is the profit or loss on the venture.

JOINT VENTURE A/C

N N
Purchases XX Sales XX
Expenses XX Interest on drawing XX
Interest on capital XX Share ofoss XX
Share of profit XX Remittance from other XX
Remittance to others xx

Illustration 1

Ralie and Kadio entered into a joint venture to buy and sell sebamd cars. Profits and losses
were to be shared: Ralie thrdéths, Kadio twéfifths. It was agreed that each party would record
his own transactions only.

On 23 September 2008, Ralie purchased two car8i®@2,000 and¥420,000. He incurred
expenditure ofN98,000 on repairs and on 4 September 2008 sold one of the cars for
N469,000. On 10 September 2008 the other car was sol&{5@5,000, paying the proceeds

in each case into his own bank account.

On 14 September 2008, he purchased another cai&50,000 and sold it on 30 September
2008 forN546,000 the amount he paid over Kadio who paid it into his bank account.
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On 25 September 2008, Kadio purchased a car for N245,000 on which he incurred
expenditure ofN56,000 and which he sold on 10 October 2008M850,000; the amount he

paid into his bank account. This car watireed by the purchaser on 20 October 2008 and
Kadio paid hinN322,000 for it. As this car was still unsold, on 30 November 2008, it was

agreed that it should be taken over by Kadio at a valuatidd3df,000.

Other expenditure was incurred by the padias follows:

Ralie Kadio

N N
Insurance 17,500 3,500
Garage 14,000 7,000

On 30 November 2008, the sum required in full settlement as between Ralie and Kadio was

paid by the party accountable.

You are required tprepare:

(@) The Joint Venture account as it would appear in the books of Kadio recording his

transactions for the joint venture.

(b)  The memorandum account for the joint venture showing the net iprof

RALIE AND KADIO

(&  Inthe books of Kadio

JOINT VENTURE WITH RALIE

N
Purchases (cash) 245,000 Sales
Expenses (cash) 56,000 Ca taken over by Kadio
Sales return (cash) 322,000 Cash
Insurance 3,500
Garage 7,000
Share of profit 56,000
Cash 521,500

1,211,000

() MEMORANDUM JOINT VENTURE ACCOUNT

N

Ralie: Ralie:
Purchases 1,302,000 Sales
Repairs 98,000
Kadio:

Insurance 17,500 Sales

Garage 14,000 Car taken over
Kadio:
Purchases 245,00(
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350,000
315,000
546,000

1,211,000

1,540,000
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Sales return 322,000

Expenses 56,00(
Insurance 3,50(
Garage 7,00(C

Share of profit:
Ralie 3/5 N84, 000
Kadio 2/5 N56,000140,000
2,205,000 2,205,000

4.0 CONCLUSION

A joint venture is simply a venture undertaken jointly by two or more persons with a view to making a
profit. It differs from a partnership in that it is more temporary in nature and has more specific limited
objective(s).

5.0 Summary
Joint Ventures can be found in almost any sphere of business activity. The parties to the
venture are called coentures or simply vent@s. Sometimes a separate set of books is
maintained for the venture.
In most cases, however, each venture records in his own ledger the transactions
undertaken by him on behalf of the venture.

6.0 TutorMarked Assessment
Mohsin and Ali entered into aint venture to buy and sell laptops. Profits and Losses were to be
shared equally.
On 7" October, 2014 Mohsin purchased three laptops 80,000, N35,000 andN40,000
respectively. He bought a special cabinet cost7®00, which he fixed for one of tHaptops. On
31 October 2014, he sold two of the sets f60,000 each paying the proceeds into his private
bank account.
On 18" November, 2014, he sold the other set #50,000 which amount he paid over to Ali who
paid it into his Bank Account.

On6" October, 2014, Ali purchased a laptop set##5,000 having incurred expenditure #2000

on repairing sold it on % October 2014 forN42,000 paying the proceeds into his own bank
account. This set developed mechanical trouble and dhQ@étober, D14, Ali agreed to take the set
back at a price ol28,000 which he paid out of his bank account. The set was still unsold"at 30
November, 2014 and it was agreed that Ali should take it over for his personal use at a valuation of
N25,000.

Mohsin incured N3000 as showroom charges and Ali incud42250 as travelling and postage.
You are required to prepare (a) the account of joint venture with Mohsin and it would appear in the
books of Ali and (b) Memorandum Joint Venture Account showing the net profi

7.0 References/Further Reading
Adebayo, P.A.(2011). Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards for Students and

Professionals, Abuja: Rainbow Graphic Printers and Publishers
Bello, S. @& Barnabas, S. A2017)Advanced Financial Accountin g, Bida, 9ICE LINK

Production
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UNIT TWO: HIRE PURCHASE

1.0 Introduction
2.0 Objectives
3.0 Main Content
3.1 Definition of Hire Purchase
3.2 Differences between HirPurchase and Credit Sales
3.3 Apportionment of Interest on Hire Purchase
3.4 Disclosure Requirements
3.5Methods of Accounting fathe Hire Purchaséransactions
4.0 Conclusion
5.0 Summary
6.0 TutoMarked Assessment
7.0 Referencesdither Reading

1.0 Introduction

The purchase of expensive fixed assets can cause serious cash flow problems for businesses. However, if a
business wishes to remain viable, fixed assets must be replaced or added to from time to time. To ease
cash flow, ather than purchasing for cash or on normal trade terms, assets may be acquired under a hire
purchase contracHire purchase transaction is a form of extended credit agreement and there are two
parties to hire purchase agreement; they are buyer or user amador or finance company, although
sometimes the vendor and finance company may be different parties. In law, ownership of the item
subject to hire purchase is retained by the vendor or finance company until the fulfillment of a certain
condition usuallypayment of alinstallments However, using substance over form, the items are treated

as if ownership was given to the buyer immediately.

2.0 Objectives

After studying this chapter, you should be able to:

A Differentiatebetween credit purchase and hipirchase.

A Know the entries for the different method of accounting for hire purchase
A Pass entries for hire purchase transactions

3.0 Main Content

3.1 Definition of Terms

Hire purchaseA hire purchase contract is a contract for the hire of an adsat¢ontains a provision giving

the hirer an option to acquire legal title to the asset upon fulfillment of certain condition stated in the
agreement. These conditions are usually the payment of an agreed number of installments or the payment
of a notionalsum at the end of the contracted hire period.
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During the period of the contract, legally the asset remains the property of the supplier. The payments
made are technically hire charges.

Cash Sales Prickhis is the purchase price at which the goods/madp should have been sold to the buyer
had the transaction is not on hire purchased (cash price). This will be greater than cost price hut less than
the hire purchase price.

Hire purchase price (HPR3ash PricelusHire Purchase Interest.

Hire purclase interest: This is also known as finance charges. It is the excess of the hire
purchase price over the cash price.

Initial deposit: This is the initial amount payable by the hire purchase buyer at the inception of
the hire purchase transaction.

Installments: This is the sum payable by hire purchase buyer at specific intervals to liquidate
the balance of the purchase price after the payment of the initial deposit.

3.2 Differencebetween Hire Purchase an@reditSales

Although hire purchase systecould ultimately result in sale of goods, the sale in normal sense and sale
under hire purchase system are not the same. The following are the differences between sale and hire
purchase.

CreditSale Hire Purchase

1.1 YwalkfSQ Aa 32 @&BI|1. Hire purchase is governed by the Hire
Act, 1930. Purchase Act, 1972.

2. In case of sale, the ownership of the 2. In case of Hire purchase, the ownership of
goods is transferred to the buyer goods is transferred to buyer on payment of
immediately. instalments.

3. In case of sale, the buyer makes payme| 3. In case of hire purchase, the payment is mag
in lumpsum (if thelumpsumpayment is in installments.

made immediately on transfer of
ownership and possession of goods, it ig
called Cash Sale and if the payment is
made on a specified future date, it is
called credit ske.

4. The buyer pays only for the price of 4. The hire purchaser pays for the price of goog

goods. and also some amount of interest.
5. On nonpayment of the consideration theg’ 5. On nonrpayment of any installment, the selle
seller cannot take badcthe goodshut can can repossess the goods.

only take legal actioon buyer.
6. Once a sale has taken place, neither thg 6. Either the buyer or the seller can terminate
seller, nor the buyer can terminate the the contract at any point of time, until the
contract (unless it is for genuine reason payments of last installment.
like damage of goods etc.)
7. When the buyer becomes insolvent, the|7. When the hire purchaser becomesoivent,
seller has to undertake the risk of loss. the seller can reposes the goods, and hence
need not undertake the risk of loss.
8. A sale is subject to levy of Value Added|8. In this casethe Value Added tax will be
tax at the time of contract of sale. leviable at the time of ownership (i.e. on
payment of last installment).
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3.3 Apportionment of interest on Hire Purchase Transactions
There are several methods available by which interest charged on a credit sale may be apportioned over
the period of the payment. These include:
A Thestraightline method the total interest charge is spread equally over the accounting periods.
A Thereducing balance method interest charged to an accounting period is calculated by basing it on
the amounts outstanding.
A Sumof the digits method interest charged to an acating period is calculated by basing it on the
number of outstanding periods in relation to the total period of credit:

ear Outstanding Proportion of interest
5/15
4/15
3/15
2/15

Y
1
2
3
4
5 1/15

PN WSO

A in proportion to cash receiveadterest charged to an accounting period is calculated by basing it
on the amount of cash received relative to the total price. This method is sometimes easier to
apply by first taking credit for all the interest and therarisferring that proportion out to a
suspense account relative to the amount not yet received.

A actuarial methoahis method will be described in castudy about typical hire purchase contract.

lllustration 1
The following example illustrates the differem¢sults that may be obtained from some of the above
methods.

Basic Data:

Cash price of good5i9,600

Number ofinstallments 3 years

Amount of eachinstallment 84,000 per annum

Without consideration of timevalue, combine the threénstallmentstogether as its hire purchase price
and then:

Amount of interestiN4,000x3--N9,600=N2,400

1 Straight line
Year Interest=N
1 800
2 800
3 800
N 2,400
2 Sum of the digits
Year Outstanding InterestM
1 3 3/63 N2,400 1,200
2 2 2163 2,400 800
3 1 1/6 3 2,400 400
N 2,400
3 In proportion to cash received
Year Received Cash Interest=N
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1 4,000

4,000 ,
2 N 4,000 2,400,800
12,000
4,000 ,
3 N 4,000 2,400,800
12,000

lllustration 2

lieshatedo Limited acquired a car on 1 January 2003 under ayéap hire purchase

agreement. An initial deposit 0fN160,000 and four halyearly installments of160,000

commencing on 1 July 2003 are required. ThecashprdeisnZnnan +FyR GKS O2YLJ ye@
year ends every 30 September.

Calculate the hire purchase interest
Solution

N160,000 4N160,00 x 4)- N754,400 =N45,600

lllustration 3
White sold a machine to Green on hire purchase basis. You are given the following
information:

Cash price N2,800,000

Initial Deposit N1,000,000

A yearly installment di750,000 payable on 31 Decemlfer 4 years, was agreed. The company makes up
its accounts to 31 December.

(a) Calculate the hire purchase price.
(b) Calculate the hire purchase interest attributable to each year using straight line

method.
1 N1,000,000 +M750,000 X 4yrs) = N4Am
2 N4,000000¢ 2,800,000 = N300,000
4
Illustration 4

Calculate the hire purchase interest attributable to each year using straight line

Using the surof-the-year digit in hiregpurchaseagreement, calculate the finance
charge in the income statement in the third year if the total finance charge for five
years iN72,000.

315X 72,000 14,400

3.4 Disclosure requirements
Income Statement
The hire purchase interest due is charged tmme statement and it is
treated as part of the Financial charges.
Depreciation for the year on the fixed asset is also charged to the profit & Loss Account.

Statement of Financial Position

The cost of the fixed assets acquired on hire purchase igdis@ R I & WFAESR | &
the balance sheet. The relevant accumulated depreciation charged is also
shown to determine the net book value of the asset.

QX
(0p))
et
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Similarly liabilities outstanding on the asset which is due to the vendor is also
RAAOt 248K t A @DUHNNBEEEQ 2N ONBRAG2ZNE FFALAY
falling due after one year, as the case may be.

lllustration 5

On 1 January 20x1 Homenda Ltd sold a machine, casfibgD00, to Bus Transportation Ltd under a hire
purchase agreement requestingdeposit ofN5,000 and three equal instalments 86,000 per annum
payable at the end of each year. Interest in the contract is at 9.7% per annum and cashiN2@;e08.

Cash price 20,000
Cost 15,000
Profit 5,000

Hire purchase price  (5,000+(3%6,000) 23,000

Cash price 20,000
Interest 3,000

3.5 Methods of Accounting for The Hire Purchase
Hire purchaseriterest method
Under this method, the hire purchase buyer will debit the asset account and credit vendor
or finance company account with the cash price of the of it the item. The interest element
is only recognized as it falls due.

Hire purchase interessuspense method
TKA&d YSGK2R Ay@2t @dSa RSoAGAY3T GKS FaasSid |
purchase interest suspense account is debited with the total hire purchase interest or
finance charges while the vendor or finance companyridited with total hire
purchase price. When an installment falls due, the appropriate amount of the hire
purchase interest that is due is charged to profit & loss account from hire purchase
interest suspense account.

O
O«
N
o
N

Accounting Methods Entries InSelSND& . 22140 C2NJ {YIff LGSYa
Small items sold on hire purchase are counted for using different methods from those earlier
highlighted for large items.

There are two methods that are used for accounting for hire purchase of small items in the
AaStt IOPR2ANKE 0221 a0 ¢tKS G2 NBO23IYyAT SR YSiK2Ra&a |

A Stock on hire method
A Provision for unrealized profit method.

I 002dzy iAy3a 9y UGNRSa LYy | ANB t dzZNOKFa&asS . dz2 SNDa
Account Method

S/N | Nature of Transaction Account to be debiéd or credited
DR CR
1 With cash price asset acquired on hir Fixed Asset Account Hire purchase ver
purchase terms Account
2 Deposit/Installmentpaid Fixed Asset Account Vendor Bank Account
Account
3 Accounting for H.P. interest | H.P. interest Account H.P. Vendor Account
included in thanstallmentpaid
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Purchase Interest Account Method

4 At the end of the accounting year H.F Profit & Loss Account Hire purchase interest
interest due should be transferred to account
profit and loss Account
5 At theend of the accounting year Profit & Loss Account Provision for
depreciation due on asset should be depreciation
charged to profit and loss account Account
Accounting Entriesn H.P Buyers Books Using H.P Interest Suspense Method
S/N | Nature d Transaction Account to debit or credited
DR CR
1 On acquisition of asset, (and with the | (i) Fixed asset Alc
purchase price) (Cash price) -
(i) H.P interest
suspense (total H.P -
Interest) H.P. Vendor A/c (Hire
(iii) - purchase
price)
2 To accant for deposit and| H.P. Vendors
installments paid Account
3 To recognie H.P interest due included i| H.P Interest H.P. Interest
installment payment Account Account
4 To transfer H.P. interest due for the yeg Profit & Loss Hire purchase
to profit & Loss Accourat year end Account interest Account
5 To recognize the depreciation on the | Profit & Loss Provision for
asset for the year Account depreciation Account
Accounting Entries for Accounting For Large ltemsAiliE  t dzNOKIF &S Sy R2 NRA&

SIN

Nature of transaction

Accounts to be Debited or Credited

DR

CR

On selling large items on H.P (with ca

price of the item)

H.P.Receivables
Account

H.P Sales Accoun

With the amount ofinstallmentor
deposit received

Bank Account

H.P. ReceivablesAccount

iii To recognse the H.PInterest H.P.Receivables H.P. Interest received Accour
included in thanstallmentreceived Account
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v To recognis the cost of goods for largg H.P. Trading Account | General Trading or purchase

items sold in H.P Trading Account
Account

\Y To recognie H.P. Sales Account in thg H.P. Sales Account H.P. Trading Account
H.P. Trading Account

Vi To recognize the H.terest H.P. Interest received | H.P. Trading Account
received in the H.P. trading Account

Vil Account for unealid profit(UP) and | H.P. Trading Account | Provision for
transfer to unreabed profit account unrealised profit

from H.P. Trading Account

UP =Bal. of cash price outstandixg(Cash price Cost)
Cash Price

viii | Transfer of credit balance from H.P | H.P. Trading Account | General Profit & Los&ccount
Trading Account to General Profit & L
Account after accounting for

steps (iv) to (vii)

Accounting Entries for Accounting for Large Items In Hire Purchase Vendors Books Using H.P.
Interest Suspense Method

S/N | Nature of transaction Accounts to be debited or credited
DR CR
[ On selling the large items o hire (a) H.PReceivables
purchase (with H.P. Price)
ii On receipt of deposit/installment from| Bank Account H.P. Sales (with cash price) H.
the buyer Interest suspense (Total H.P.
Interest)
iii To recognize H.P. Interest included in| H.P. Interest| H.P. Interest received Account
the installment received Suspense Account
Vi To recognize the H.P. Interest H.P. Interest received H.P. Trading Account
received in the H.P. trading Account
vii Account for unrealisd profit and H.P. Trading Account| Provision for
transfer to unrealisd profit account unrealsed profit
from H.P. Trading Account
UP =Bal. of cash price outstandimxgCash price Cost)
Cash Price
viii | Transfer of credit balance from H.P | H.P. Trading Account| General Profit & Loss Account
Trading Account to General Profit & L
Accouwnt after accounting for
steps (iv) to (vii)

lllustration 6

Sabaka Prints Limited purchased a machine from Africanus Limited on hire purchase over a period of three
years, payingd13,080 on 1 Januarg006 and a further annual payment 8#0,000 due on 31 December

2006, 2007 and 2008.

The cash price of the machine w&i20,000. The supplier charges interest at 6% per annum on
outstanding balances.

Depreciation at 20% per annum straight line is tacharged.
Required:
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(a) UsindHire purchase interest method, wri@ the following ledger accounts for the
three years in the books of Sabaka Prints Limited:
0] Machinery
(i) Africanus Limited
(i) Provision for Depreciatiog Machinery
(c) Show the relevant extracts from the Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) as at 31
December 2006

Suggested Solution
MACHINERY ACCOUNT

N N
1/1/06 Africanus Ltd 120,000 |31/12/06 Balance c/d 120,000
1/7/07 Balance b/d 120,000 |31/12/07 Balance c/d 120,000
1/1/08 Balance b/d 120,000 (31/12/08 balance c/d 120,000
1/1/09 Balance b/d 120,000

AFRICANUS (HFAYABLEACCOUNT

N N
1/1/06 Bank a/edeposit 13,080 1/1/06 Machinery a/c 120,000
31/12/06 Bank a/& 40,000 31/12/06 H/P interest 6,415
installment alc
31/12/06 Balance c/d 73,335
126,415 126,415
31/12/07 Bank a/& 40,000 1/1/07 Balance b/d 73,335
installment
31/12/06 Balance c/d 37,735 31/12/07 H/P interest 4,400
alc
77,735 77,735
31/12/08 Bank a/einstallment 40,000 1/1/08 Balance b/d 37,735
31/12/08 H/P interest 2,265
alc
40,000 40,000
Provision for Depreciation Account
N N
31/12/06 Balance c/d 24,000 31/12/06 P & L alc 24,000
31/12/07 Balance c/d 48,000 31/12/07 Balance b/d 24,000
31/12/07 P & L 24,000
48,000 48,000
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31/12/08 Balance c/d 31/12/08 Balance b/d 48,000

31/12/08 P &L 24,000
72,000
72,000 1/1/09 Balance b/d 72,000

Sabaka Prints Limited
Statement of Financialdgition (extracts) as at 31 December 2006

N N
NonCurrentassets
Machinery 120,000
Less accumulated depreciation (24,000)
96,000
Current liabilities
H/P PayablegAfricanus Ltd) 73,335
Calculations of Interest
N N
01/01/06 Cas price 120,000
01/01/06 Deposit (13,080)
106,920
31/12/06 Interest (6/100:A106,920) 6,415 6,415
31/12/06 1% installment (40,000) 4.0 CONCLUSION
01/01/07 Outstanding balance 73,335 H.ire purchase isa
31/12/07 Interest (6/100 x73,335) 4,400 4,400 specialisd
31/12/07 2" installment (40,000) transaction  that
01/01/08 Outstanding balance 37,735 requirecomputing
Interest (6/100 x37,735) 2,265 2,265 and charging to
31/12/08 respective periods,
31/12/08 3%installment (40,000) finance charges and
Total NIL hire purchase
interest.

5.0 SUMMARY

Hire purchase transaction is a form of extended credit agreement and there are two parties to
hire purchase agreement; they are buyer or user and verafofinance company, although
sometimes the vendor and finance company may be different parties. In law, ownership of the
item subject to hire purchase is retained by the vendor or finance company until the fulfillment
of a certain condition usually paymeat all installments. However, using substance over form,
transactions on hire purchase the items are treated as if ownership was given to the buyer
immediately.

There are two methods of accounting for the hire purchase transaction, Hire purchase Inmecesint
Method and Hire Purchase Interest Suspense Method. In Hire purchase Interest Account Method, interest
paid or received is only accounted for when due. However, inHire Purchase Interest Suspense Method,
total interest on the hire purchase traadion is recognized and readid on periodic basis.
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6.0 TUTOMMARKED ASSIGNMENT
Using the information in illustration Gyriteup the following ledger accounts (Usikiire
purchase interest Suspenggethod) for the three years in thdooks ofthe buyer:
0] Machinery
(i) Africanus Limited
(i) Provision for Depreciatiog Machinery

7.0 REFERENCES/FURTHER READINGS
Accounting technicians scheme West Africa (ATSWA) ,(2009).principles and practice of financial
accounting, second edition

Adebayo, P.A.(2011). Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards for Students and

Professionals, Abuja: Rainbow Graphic Printers and Publishers
Bello, S. @& Barnabas, S. A22017)Advanced Financial Accounting, Bida, 9ICE LINK

Production
Jennings,A.R. (1993)inancial Accounting.ondon: Letts Educational.
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UNIT THREE: GOODS ON SALE OR RETURN

1.0 Introduction

2.0 Objectives

3.0 Main Content
3.1Types oGoods sent on Sale or Return
3.2Accounting Entries

4.0 Conclusion

50 Summary

6.0 TutoMarked Assessment

7.0 References/Further Reading

INTRODUCTION

There are times when goods are sold by the manufacturer (or wholesaler) to retailer on the agreement
that shoud the retailer sells thegoods;he will incur liability for them to the producer. If the retailer is
unable to sell the goods, he/she then returns the goods back without incurring any liability on the goods. In
a situation where part of the goods was soilde retailer will only pay for the part sold while returning the
part not sold.

li should be noted that goods are not effectively sold to the retailer until he/she sells it to someone else.
2 KSy Al KFLWSyasz Yl ydzFl Ol dze®liNgyaTheipart @hsold ShaultidzdiBe A y O
AyOfdzZRSR & LI NIL 2F NBOGFAESNI ad201 d GKS SyR 27

2.0 Objectives
After studying this chapter, you should be able to:
A Prepare journal for goods on sale or return
A Prepare relevant account for goods on sale or return
3.0 Main Content
3.1 Types o6Goods sent on Sale or Return

There are three main types of Goods sent on sale or Return. These are:

(&) Where the number of Sale or Return Transactions is small
(b) Where the number of sale or Return Transaction is large and the goods are of
considerable value

3.2 Accounting Treatment

Where the number of Sale or Return Transactions is small

In the case where the transaction is small, the double entry system is notarggdnemorandum records
are kept. Itis usually to record these transactions by using a specially ruled form of day book as shown
below.

Date Particulars | Goods sent on Date Goods Goods Sale
Sale or Return returned | sold ledger
1) (2) 3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
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(a) Where the number of sale or return transactions is large and the goods are of
considerable value
Ly OANDdzyaldlyoOSa ¢KSNBE GKS ydzYoSN) 2F a{ S
involved are of considerable value, it is betterhave a separate set of books kept on double
entry principles. Three books will be needed. These are i. Sales or return Ledger, ii. Sale or
Return day Book, Sale or Return Journal. A separate double entry type sale or return ledger
may be continued wh the usual sale or return day book.

This set of books makes it easy to ascertain at any given time, the total selling value of goods sent out on

GalktS 2NJ NBddaNYé¢ o

The recording procedure is as follow:
When goods are sent out on sale or return;
Record in sale or return day book as usual and post there from as follows:

Debit: Customers Personélccount ina Sale or Return
Credit: TurnoverSales or Return Total Account Ledger at selling price

When the customer signifies acceptance of the goadsale is deemed to have been made. An
entry is therefore required to reduce the sale or return total account balance to the value of
goods not yet accepted and to change the status of the customer from a prospective buy to a
debtor. To achieve that:
Debit: Turnover/Sales or Return Tetal Account  in a Sale or Return
)

Credit: Customers Personal Accou Ledger with selling value of

The goods at the stage is how set for recording the sale transaction in the normal double entry system

Debit: / dza G 2 YSNR & t SgGRl&syYddder | 002 dzy G Ay
Credit:Turnover/ Sale Accountn the General Ledger

When goods are returned
Debit: Turnover/Sale or return Total Account
Credit: Customers Personal Account With the selling value of toelg returned

lllustration 1
ARO[ h.! Qad &SIFNJ SYR A& 5SOSYOSNI Hnnpd® 2KSyYy KS
them out as ordinary sales. The following informatisrelevant to his end of the year position.

N
Inventory(at factory) at cost31 December 2005 104,000
Turnover 600,000
Trade Receivablat 31 December 2005 88,000

QX

(s}

1. Turnoverincluded goods on sales or return of NI 50,000 of which N30,000 have not yet been sold by the

retailer as at the end of thgear.

2. Trade Receivabliggure also included goods booked out on sale or return
3. The goods sent on sales or returns were at cost price plus 25%umark

2dz I NB NBIdANBR (2 OFfOdf 48 GKS T2t 2erkste I &

end of the year:
a. Turnoverfigure
b. Inventoryfigure
c. Trade Receivab®®d ¥ A 3 dzNB
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Suggested Solution

TurnoverFigure: N

Total figure 600,000
Value of goods on sale or return not yet sold (30,000)
Figure to be included in the trauy account 570,000
Inventory Figure N
Inventoryfigure before accounting for goods on sale or returbi04,000
Cost of goods on sale or return not yet sold 24,000
Figure to be included in the Financial Statement 128,000
Trade Receivabléigure N

Trade Receivabliecluding goods or sale or return 88,000
Value of goods on sale or return not yet sold (30,000)
Figure to be included in the Financial Statement 58.000

4.0 CONCLUSION
Goods sent on Sale or Return is similar in somgswia consignment. However, the accounting
treatments are quite different

5.0 SUMMARY

Goods sent on Sale or Return is a method used to boost sales by sending goettsisted.

In this instance, the transfer of goods to the customer does not amousal®, since the right

of ownership has not passed to the customer. In other words, the ownership of the goods vests
with the sender, until the expiration of time within which the goods are to be returned.

Until the passage of time and the acceptance ld goods are signified, it would be incorrect to debit
Odzai2YSNRa | O02dzyia yR ONBRAG altSa | O02dzyio

6.0 TUTORMARKED ASSIGNMENT

Adaku sent to Amina , a regular customer 500 calculators each costingMgjakQ at an
invoiced price oN 2,500 per set 0 Goods sent out on sale or return on thedf October 2007.
Amira returned fifty five setso Adaku on 18 October and sixty five sets off Blovember. On
31° December 2007, Adaku received an amounié85,000 from Amina as sales during the
period.

Required:
(@) Show the necessary recording in sale or return day book

(b) Determine the closing stock i.e. Goods sent on sale or return for financial
reporting purpose

7.0 REFERENCES/FURTHER READINGS

Accounting technicians scheme West Africa (ATSWA) ,(p@id8)ples and practice of financial
accounting, second edition
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3.1 Types of Royalties
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4.0 Conclusion
5.0 Summary
6.0 TutoMarked Assessment
7.0 References/Further Reading

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Royalty is the remuneration payable to a person in respect of the use of an asset or right like mine,
copyright or patent to its owner. Calculatdy reference to and varying with quantities produced or sold

as a result of the use of the asset. The owner of the asset is generally referred to as landlord while the user
of the right is referred to as the tenant. There are times the main tenant ulilet the right to another

person who is generally referred to as the Sténant.

2.0 Objectives
Upon completion of this chapter, students should have learnt:

The nature of royalty arrangements;

Key terms associated with royalty contracts, saciéssoQ Yesse®
short-workings and dead rent;

A Accounting for royalty transactions in the books of thesso€bf legal
rights,

A Accounting for royalty transactions in the books of thesse&€Df legal

rights,

> >

3.0 Main Content
3.1 Types of Byalties

Mining royalty
It is a periodical payment generally basedautput, madeby lessee of a mine or quarry to the lessor or
the landlord {.e., owner of the mine or quarry).

Patent royalty
It is the periodical payment based ountput, madeby the bssee of a patent or patent right to be lessor or
the patentee (.e., the holder of the patent right).

Copyright royalty
It is also the periodical payment based on sales,madthb lessee of a copyright (i#e publisher) to the
lessor (i.e. the authgr

3.2 Terms Used in Royalty Agreements
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There are some special terms which generally are used in royalty agreements. The meaning of such terms
must be clear to the reader. The special terms are:

Landlord

The persons who gives out his some special rigies something say mining rights or patent rights or
copyrights, on lease to another person for a consideration is called the landldidssofbr PatenteeCor
@Hn authoQ

Lessee (Tenant)
The person who takes out the special rights from its ownelease for consideration is called lessee or
patent or publisher.

Minimum rent or Dead rent

It has been stipulated that in case of low output or low sales, a certain sum of money will be payable in any
caseeven if the royalties based on output or sale lower. Implying therehythat the sum payable is the
minimum amount or actual royaltiesvhichever is higher. The minimum sum is known as minimum rent or
deeds rent. K. if A, patentee, allowsB to use his patent on a royalty of N2/unit Produced subject, to
minimum of N10000 then incase the output is 7000 units; it will be N14000.

Shortworking

The excess of minimum rent over actual royalty calculated on the basis of output or sales is termed as
short-working. Normally shorvorking are during gestain period or due to abnormal working condition
during the early periods of lease as the activity level is low in that period.

Recouping shorworking-

Most ofthe times, along with the stipulated for a minimum rent, there is a condition that if actualltieg

are less than the minimum rent, the excess paid will be recoverable out of any surplus that there may be
over the minimum rent in subsequent years. The right of getting back the excess made by the lessee in
earlier years is called the right of regument of shortworking. The right of recoupment of shestorking

can be:

Restricted (i.e. fixeddRecoupment only in the first few years of the agreement.

Unrestricted (i.e. floating)Recoupment in the year/few year$ollowing the year in which the shor
working occurs

Ground or surface rent
It is the fixed yearly or half yearly rent payable by the lessee to the landlord in addition to the minimum
rent.

Royalty payable

This is the amount calculated based on the quantities produced or sold. The tighguantities sold or
produced, he higher the royalties payable. In other words, if the Landlord receives the royalty without
minimum rent, royalty payable will be applicable.

Royalty paid

This is the amount actually paid to the landlord in any mowthich is the higher of the ROYALTY PAYABLE
and the MINIMUM RENT. The process of getting the amount to be paid to the landlord in a particular
period therefore is (in the absence of any previous short workings to be recouped) to compare the royalty
payableas calculated above with the minimum rent specified in the agreement. THE HIGHER will be paid to
the Landlord.

Illustration 1
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Ehidiamenon January 2005 granted a copy right to a publisher to print his textbook whereby she is to
receive N2, 000 per book plished. The minimum amount payable by the publisher per month is N200,
000.

The number of books published for the first six months is:

January 60 copies February 80 copies March 110 copies
April 120 copies May 150 copies  June 200 copies
Requirel

(a) Compute the Royalty Payable (b) Royalty Paith@minimum rent and
(d) The short workings

Suggested Solution
(a) Royalties payable for the six months are:

Copies published Price/copy Royalty Payable
N N

January 60 2,000 120,0®

February 80 2,000 160,000
March 110 2,000 220,000
April 120 2,000 240,000
May 150 2,000 300,000
June 200 2,000 400,000

(b) The minimum rent

The minimum rent from the above illustration is N200,000. Megrihere is no month the Landlord will

receive an amount less than N200,000.

(c) The royalties paid to the landlord for each of the month (assuming no short working is recoverable) are:

Copiespublished Prickeopy Royalty Payable Minimurent Royhy paid

January 60
February 80
March 10
April 120
May 150
June 200

(d) Shortworkings are
Price/copy

Copies published

N
January 60
February 80
March 110
April 120
May 150
June 200

Illustration 2

AsejereMultilinks Limited acquired the rights to remove soft sand deposits from the land owned by
Morning Stars Limited of Gidimo Village. The rights were granted on the following terms:

N

2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000

N

2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000

N

120,000
160,000
220,000
240,000
300,000
400.000

N

120,000

160,000
220,000

240,000

300,000

400,000

N

200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000

N

200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
200000

N

200,000
200,000
220,000
240,000
300,000
400,000

AN

200,000
200,000
220,000
240,000
300,000
400,000

(@) The payment of a royalty #4625 per tonne of sharp sand extracted.
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80,000
40,000
0

0
0
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(b) A minimum payment oi6,250,000 per annum on 31 December every year
(c) Shortg 2NJ Ay3da FFNBE (2 6S NBEO2dzLISR FTNRY
the two years following

GKS NREF T

During the first fouryears of the contract, the following quantities of sharp sand were extracted:

Year 1 - 8,000 tonnes
Year 2 - 9,500 tonnes
Year 3 - 12,000 tonnes
Year 4 - 16,000 tonnes

You are required to show the ledger accounts needed to record the aboveatiimss in the books of
AsejereMultilinks Limited for each of the four years.

IN THE BOOKS OF ASEJERE MULTILINKS LTD
MORNING STARS LTD A/C

YEAR 1 N YEAR1 N
Dec 31 Bank 6,250,000 Dec 31 Royalties payable 5,000,000
ShortWorkings 1,250,000
6,250,000 6,250,000
YEAR 2 YEAR 2
Dec 31 Bank 6,250,000 Dec 31 Royalties payable 5,937,500
ShortWorkings 312,500
6,250,000 6,250,000
YEAR 3 YEAR 3
Dec 31 ShoiVorkings 1,250,000 Dec 31 Royalties payib 7,500,000
Bank 6,250,000
7,500,000 7,500,000
YEAR 4 YEAR 4
Dec 31 shortWorkings 312,500 Dec 31 Royalties payable 10,000,000
Bank 9,687,500
10,000,000 10,000,000
ROYALTIES PAYABLE A/C
N N
YEAR 1 YEAR 1
31 Dec morning stars Itd 5,000,000 31 Dec Operating A/C 5,000,000
YEAR 2 YEAR 2
31 Dec Morning stars 5,937,500 31 Dec operating A/c 5,937,500
YEAR 3 YEAR 3
31 Dec Morning stars Itd 7,500,000 Dec Operating Alc 7,500,00
YEAR 4 YEAR 4
31 Dec Morning Stargd- 10,000,000 31 Dec operating Alc 10,000,000
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SHORT WORKINGS RECOVERABLE A/C

YEAR 1 N YEAR1 N
31 Dec Morning Stars Ltd 1,250,000 31 Dec Morning Stars Ltd 1,250,000
YEAR 2 YEAR 2
31 Dec Morning Stars Ltd 1,250,000 31 Dec Balance c/d 1,562,500
312,500
1,562,500 1,562,500
YEAR 3 YEAR 3
1 Jan Bal b/d 1,562,500 31 Dec Morning Stars Ltd 1,250,00
Bal c/d 312,500
1,562,500 1,562,500
YEAR 4 YEAR 4
1 Jan Bal b/d 312,500 31 Dec Morning Stars Ltd 312,500

4.0 NCLUSION
Royalty Account is accounting in respect of the remuneration payable to a person in respect of the use of
an asset or right like mine, copyright or patent to its owner.

5.0 SUMMARY
Royalty is the consideration paid by a lessee, tothe l&dsbr £ S3AFf NAIKG&>X F2NJ dziAf .
rights. In straight forward cases royalty arrangements involve two parties, the lessor (or
landlord) and the lessee (or tenant). In such cases the accounts required to rcord the
transactions in the books of tHessee are usually:
A Royalties Payable
A Landlord Account
A ShortWorkingsRecoverable A/C
Subroyalty arrangements occur in slightly more complicated cases, where the original lessee (tenant) in
turn sublets the acquired rights to a sdlbssee. Suboyalty is the payment made by the sidssee to the
original lessee (tenant). Here three parties are involved viz:
1 Landlord (Lessor)
1 Tenant (Lessee)
1 SubTenant (Sulfessee).

6.0 TUTORMMARKED ASSIGNMENT

Ramesh wrote a book on Financial Accounting got it published with Himalaya Publishing House on the
terms that royalties will be paid &5 per copy sold, subject to a minimum rent#f15,000 p.a., with a
right of recoupment okhort workingsover the first four years of the royalty agreemefitie details are as
under:

No. of copies | No. of copies

vears printed in closing stock
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1996 1,500 100
1997 2,000 200
1998 3,000 300
1999 4,000 400
2000 5,000 500

t NBLI NB aAyAYdzy wSyid 'kOods w2elfidAasSa ko { K2
Himalaya Publishing House.
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INTRODUCTION

Containeror packagds anythingin which product is packetbr sale It may be a packet, bottle tu
drum cylinder jar or any other item. Packet or container may be of two type Pvimaryor
secondary The forme is related to those packagesvhich form type of products. The cost of si
containers is included in the cost of the product. The other itypgated to those containers whi
are required for distribution of goods to the cumtrs. Such types of containers are us
Returnable to the seller within a stipulated period of time by the buyer.

2.0 OBJECTIVES
At the end of this unit, you should be able to discussdbeounting arrangement for the differenypes
of containers ando be ableto prepare container accounts.

3.0 MAIN CONTENT
3.1 Purpose of Containers Account
A to exercise control on movements of containers to ensure that containers are [
returned by customers and dueedit is givento them are charged separately.
A To see that there is no misappropriation of containers.
A Tofind out profit or loss on containers separately from the main product when a s
charge is made for containers.

3.2 Key Terms

1. Purchase Price (PP)his is the Price at which the issuers of containers purchase them.

2. Chargeebut-price (COP):Thisis the price at which containers are issued out to the customers
containers should he returned within theeacified /agreed time.

3.Creditback price (CBP):This is the price at which customers will be credited back (refunded) prc
containers are returned within the stipulated period.

4. Valuation pricgVP):This is the price at which container are lied in the stock. To take care
depreciation. Valuation price is normally less that, purchase price.

5. Profit on hiring: This is the excess of chargelit price over the creditback price multiplied by th
number of containers invoiced to the domer during the periodi.e. (COPCBP) x no of containe
invoiced to customers.

6. Profit on containers retained by customer$his is the excess of credibackt price over the valuatio
price multiplied by the number of container retained by thetounsers.

i.e. (CBR/P xNo of containers retained by customer.
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